Page 1
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, February 26, 2026

S

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2026 - 5:00 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

Members of the public may participate remotely via Zoom at the following link https:/zoom.us/join
with the following Webinar ID and Password:
Meeting ID: 991 5300 5433
Security Passcode: 007953

TELECONFERENCE LOCATION!:
Director Gabriel
400 W. Mineral King Ave.
Visalia, CA 93291

Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive,
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the
community.

Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs
with quality care in a safe and compassionate environment.

AGENDA
Presented By:
1. Call to Order / Roll Call (Johnson)
2. Board Announcements (Johnson)
3. Public Comment (Johnson)

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to
exceed three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board, which
are not otherwise covered under an item on this agenda. This is the appropriate place to
comment on items on the Consent Agenda. Board Members may not deliberate or take
action on an item not on the duly posted agenda. Written comments for the Board should
be provided to the Board clerk or designee for the official record. Whenever possible,

! Note: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(b), this meeting will include teleconference
participation by Director Gabriel from the address shown above. This notice and agenda will be posted at
the teleconference location.



Page 2

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, February 26, 2026

written correspondence should be submitted to the Board in advance of the meeting to
provide adequate time for its consideration. Speaker cards are available.

Consent Agenda — General Business (Johnson)

The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote on the
Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A Board Member
may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One motion shall be made to
adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda.

A.

Consider and Approve Minutes:
o Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors — January 22, 2026

Receive Committee Minutes:
o Patient Satisfaction Committee — August 21, 2025

o Patient Satisfaction Committee - November 20, 2025

o District Bylaws / Policies and Procedures Committee - January, 13, 2026

Receive Officer/Director Written Reports
¢ Physician Services & Clinic Operations
e Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
e Laboratory and Radiology
¢ Foundation
e Public Relations
e PMO Project Summary

Consider and Approve Policies:

Updating Renamed (Board Member Handbook)

Absence of CEO

Ethics and Education Training

Board Member Expenditure Reimbursement Renamed (San Benito Health Care District Board
Member Expenditure Reimbursement)

Meeting of Directors

Compounding — Personnel Sterile Training and Evaluation — New

Compounding — Environmental Monitoring: Surface and Air Sampling — Revised
Compounding — Facility: Sterile Compounding Facility — Revised

Compounding — Personnel: Competence for Sterile Compounding — Revised
Alcohol Withdrawal Syndrome Medication Management — New

Tranexamic Acid Administration Policy and Procedure for Trauma Patients - New

Post-Exposure Shuttering, Cropping, and Electronic Masking in Diagnostic Imaging Policy —
Revised

Utilization of Contrast Media in Diagnostic Imaging - Revised
Administration of Gadolinium-Based Contrast Agents — Revised
Blood and Blood Products Administration — Revised



Page 3

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, February 26, 2026

s.

6.

E. Consider and Approve Archival of Policies:

District Finance Committee Charter

District Networking Committee Charter

District Planning and Facilities Committee Charter
Joint Conference Committee Charter

Patient Safety Program

F. Consider and Approve Privileges:

SNF Medicine Privileges (Revised)

Physician Assistant Privileges — Clinic Medicine (New)

Nurse Practitioner Privileges — Clinic Medicine (New)
Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP) (New)

Recommended Action: Approval of Consent Agenda Items (A) through (F).

Receive Informational Reports
A. VP, Ambulatory & Physician Services (Verbal Report) (Breen-Lema)

e Community Health and Provider Needs Assessment Update
e Culture of Safety Survey

» Public Comment

B. VP, Information & Strategic Services (Verbal Report) (Mays)
e Meditech Expanse Update

» Public Comment

C. Chief Financial Officer (Robinson)
Facilities - Project Dashboard — January, 2026

Financial Statements — January, 2026

Finance Dashboard — January, 2026

Supplemental Payments — January, 2026

HCAI — Rural Health Transformation Program

» Public Comment

Action Items

A. Consider and Approve Commercial Lease with Ceglia Properties, LLC — 5-Year Term in the amount of
$10,555.83 with a 2% Increase at Anniversary Date. (Robinson)

Recommended Action: Approval of Commercial Lease with Ceglia Properties, LLC — 5-Year Term in
the amount of 810,555.83 with a 2% Increase at Anniversary Date.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVVyVyY



Page 4
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, February 26, 2026

B. Consider and Approve Professional Service Agreement with Focus Physical Therapy and Gym
Management Services, Inc. — 5-Year Term in the amount of $42,000.00 per month with a 3% Increase
on Anniversary Date.

(Robinson)

Recommended Action: Approval of Professional Service Agreement with Focus Physical Therapy and

Gym Management Services, Inc. — -Year Term in the amount of $42,000 per month with a 3% Increase
at Anniversary Date.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVvVVvVVYyYyY

C. Consider and Approve Master Service Agreement with Innova Revenue Group for a 3-Year Term.

(Robinson)
Recommended Action: Approval of Master Service Agreement with Innova Revenue Group for a 3-Year
Term.
» Report
» Board Questions
» Public Comment
» Motion/Second
» Action/Board Vote-Roll Call
D. Consider and Approve Purchase of Weapons Detection System, Extract One, in the amount of
$138,276.64. (Ramirez)
Recommended Action: Approval of Weapons Detection System, Extract One, in the amount of
$138,276.64.
» Report
» Board Questions
» Public Comment
» Motion/Second
P> Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

E. Consider and Approve Architectural Fee for Lab Remodel Phase 3 & 4 in the amount of $831,315.
(Robinson/Castronuevo)

Recommended Action: Approval of Architectural Fee for Lab Remodel Phase 3 & 4 in the amount of
$831,315.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

A\ A A A4



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, February 26, 2026
F. Consider and Approve Incentive Goals for the Chief Executive Officer.

Recommended Action: Approval of Incentive Goals for the Chief Executive Officer.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVvvVvVvyy

G. Consider and Approve District Board Approval Policy.

Recommended Action: Approval of District Board Approval Policy.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVvVvVvyy

Page 5

(Tartala)

(Robinson)

H. Public Hearing and Consideration of Resolution No. 2026-09 Modifying the NUHW Bargaining Unit at

San Benito Health Care District Regarding Security Guards.

(Tartala)

Recommended Action: Approval of Resolution No. 2026-09 Modifying the NUHW Bargaining Unit at

San Benito Health Care District Regarding the Security Guards.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment

Close Public Hearing
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

VVVVVYY

7. Public Comment

(Johnson)

This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed session topics, not to exceed three (3)

minutes.

8. Closed Session
See the Attached Closed Session Sheet Information

9. Reconvene to Open Session

10. Closed Session Report

11. Adjournment

(Johnson)

(Johnson)
(Counsel)

(Johnson)

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, March 26, 2026 at 5:00 p.m.,

Great Room.



Page 6
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, February 26, 2026

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is available at the
Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the District, and posted on the District’s website at
https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/. All items appearing on the agenda are
subject to action by the Board. Staff and Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Board.

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in connection with any
agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District office. Public records distributed
during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be available for public inspection at the meeting. If the
public record is prepared by a third party and distributed at the meeting, it will be made available for public
inspection following the meeting at the District office.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular
business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District
to make reasonable accommodations.

Please note that room capacity is limited and available on a first-come, first-served basis.



Page 1 of 2
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
February 26, 2026
AGENDA FOR CLOSED SESSION
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda

items as provided below. No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code.

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

O LICENSE/PER DE ATION
(Government Code §54956.7)

Applicant(s): (Specify number of applicants)

O NF WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
(Government Code §54956.8)

O] NF WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION
(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1))

Name of cases:

| CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
(Government Code §54956.9)

0  LIABILITY CLAIMS
(Government Code §54956.95)

Claimant: (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961):
Agency claimed against: (Specify name):

O THREA P SERVICES OR FACILITIES
(Government Code §54957)

Consultation with: (Specify the name of law enforcement agency and title of officer):

U PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT

(Government Code §54957)
Title:
O UBLIC L E
(Government Code §54957)
Title:
O PUB YEE PERFORMANCE EVA N
(Government Code §54957)

(Specify position title of the employee being reviewed):



Page 2 of 2

Title:
O PUB OYEE DISCIP MISSAL/REL
(Government Code §54957)

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline,
dismissal, or release of a public employee. Discipline includes potential reduction of compensation.)

O CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
(Government Code §54957.6)

Agency designated representative:
Employee organization:

O NFERENCE WITH LA OR
(Government Code §54957.6)

Agency designated representative:
Unrepresented employees

O CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
(Government Code §54957.8)

(No additional information is required to consider case review or planning.)

a REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET
(Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code § 32106)

Discussion will concern: (Specify whether discussion will concern proposed new service, program, or
facility):

1. Trade Secrets, Strategic Planning. Proposed New Programs. and Services.

Estimated date of public disclosure: (Specify month and year):

X HEARINGS/REPORTS
(Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 32106)

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical
executive committee, or report of quality assurance committee):

1. Report — Credentials

O CHARGE OR COMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED
BY FEDERAL LLAW (Government Code §54956.86)

(No additional information is required to discuss a charge or complaint pursuant to Section 54956.86.)

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"°-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

THURSDAY, JANUARY 22, 2026
5:00 P.M.
MINUTES

Directors Present
Bill Johnson, Board Member
Devon Pack, Board Member
Victoria Angelo, Board Member
Nick Gabriel, Board Member
Josie Sanchez, Board Member

Also Present
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer
Karen Descent, Chief Nursing Officer
Suzie Mays, Vice President, Information & Strategic Services
Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM. A quorum was present, and attendance was taken
by roll call. Directors Johnson, Pack, Gabriel, and Sanchez were present. Director Angelo arrived at 5:06.

2. Public Comment
An opportunity for public comment on the closed session items was provided; no public comment received.

3. Closed Session
President Johnson announced the items to be discussed in the Closed Session, as listed on the posted
Agenda:
a) Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation; Government Code §54956.9(d)(1) (2 PERB
cases) and Savista, LLC vs. Hazel Hawkins Medical Center, File No. 6337918; b) Conference with Labor
Negotiator; Government Code §54957.6 (NUHW); ¢) Conference with Labor Negotiator; Government
Code §54957.6 (unrepresented employees); and d) Hearing/Report, Quality, Credentials, Evidence Code
Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(b).

The members of the Board entered into a closed session at 5:02 pm.

4. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report
The Board of Directors reconvened to open session at 5:29 p.m.

Page 1



. Closed Session Report

Counsel reported that the Board met regarding several items:

As to the three matters of existing litigation, the Board received a report and provided direction, but no
reportable action was taken.

As to the conference with labor negotiators, for NUHW and the unrepresented employees, the Board
received a report and provided direction, but no reportable action was taken.

As to the Credential report, on Motion of Director Angelo, and second by Director Pack, the report was
unanimously approved.

. Board Announcements

Director Angelo provided a summary of the CEOs accomplishments. Director Johnson announced that
item 10 (B) will be deferred to next month’s meeting.

. Public Comment

An opportunity for public comment was provided, and individuals were given three minutes to address
the Board Members and Administration. Public comment was received by Mr. Bernosky and Mr. Swett.

. Consent Agenda - General Business
A. Consider and Approve Minutes:
o Special Meeting of the Board of Directors — December 8, 2025.
o Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors — December 18, 2025.

B. Receive Minutes: District Bylaws / Policies and Procedures Committee —
o December 15, 2025

C. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.
e Physician Services & Clinic Operations
e Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
e Laboratory and Radiology (No report)
e Foundation
e Public Relations
¢ PMO Project Summary Report

D. Consider and Approve Policies:
¢ Development of Board Agenda (Revised)
e Fiduciary Responsibility of Board Members (Revised)
¢ Limit of Authority (Revised)
e Oversight of Safety, Emergency Management, and Disaster Preparedness (Revised)
e Strategic Planning (Revised)
¢ Board Member Identification, Compensation and Benefits (Compensation & Human Resources
Requirements has been integrated) (Revised)
e Life Safety - Fire Watch (Revised)
e Section 1135 Waiver Compliance (New)
e Suicide Assessment/Self-Harm Behavior (Revised)
¢ Emergency Management Plan (Revised)
e Patient Safety (New)
e Practitioner Code of Conduct (Revised)

E. Consider and Approve Archival of Policies:

Page 2




e Events Monthly Calendar (direction was to recommend archival)
e Human Resources Requirements (direction was to recommend archival; this was consolidated
with Compensation policy; now named Compensation and Benefits)

e Improvements Comments, Suggestions (direction was to recommend archival; this was
consolidated with Area of Concern policy)

e Meeting with the Administrator (direction was to recommend archival)
¢ Office Assistance for Board (direction was to recommend archival)

e Time Lines (direction was to recommend archival of policy; and consolidate terms with the
Development of Board Agenda policy)

e Relationship to Management (direction was to recommend archival)
e Use of Letterhead by Directors (direction was to recommend archival)

Director Johnson presented the consent agenda items (A-E) to the Board for action, this information is
included in the Board packet.

MOTION: By Director Angelo to approve the Consent Agenda — General Business, Items (A-E);
Seconded by Director Johnson.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried. Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, and Sanchez. Approved 5-0
by roll call.

. Receive Informational Reports

A. Chief Executive Officer (Verbal Report)
e Community Needs Assessment Update
e Alliance for Aging

Ms. Breen-Lema provided an update on the Community Health Needs Assessment. She said there will be
two community listening sessions, one scheduled for Tuesday, February 10, 2026 and Wednesday,
February 11, 2026. Information is on the website. Ms. Casillas announced that Jaylee, Davison Interim
Director of the Skilled Nursing Facilities (“SNFs”) will be representing the hospital at the Alliance for
Aging meetings. Ms. Casillas also thanked Ms. Davison for the job well done with the tranquility room at
the SNF. Ms. Casillas also provided an update on BETA HEART and Rural Health Transformation Grant.

An opportunity was provided for public comment; no public comment received.

B. Chief Nursing Officer
e Dashboard — December, 2025

Ms. Descent provided a verbal update on Flu, RSV, and International Dysphagia Diet Standardization
Initiative (“IDDSI”). The dashboard is included in the packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment; no public comment received.

C. Facilities and Finance Committee — October 20, 2025

e Facilities Project Dashboard — December, 2025
Financial Statements — December, 2025
Finance Dashboard — December, 2025
Supplemental Payments — December, 2025
Update Cashflow Budget FY 2026

Page 3




Mr. Robinson provided his CFO report, which included an update on Facilities, financial statements,
dashboard, supplemental payments, and cashflow budget FY 2026. These reports are included in the
Board packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment; no public comment received.

10. Action Items

A. Consider and Approve Purchase of Digital Mobile Ergo C-Arm ESP (Expanded Surgical Platform).
and 1-vear Warranty

Ms. Castronuevo provided a verbal report. The total cost of the C-Arm, which includes sales tax is
$205,346.85.

An opportunity for public comment was provided; no public comment received.

MOTION: By Director Sanchez to Approve the Purchase of the Digital Mobile Ergo C-Arm ESP
(Expanded Surgical Platform), and 1-year Warranty in the Amount of $205,346.85; Seconded by
Director Gabriel.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, and Sanchez. Approved
5-0 by roll call.

B. Consider and Approve Incentive Goals for the Chief Executive Officer.
This item was removed from the agenda and will be brought to next month’s meeting.

C. Public Hearing and Consideration of Resolution No. 2026-08 Modifying the NUHW Bargaining Unit
at San Benito Health Care District Regarding Laboratory Clerks.

Mr. Tartala, HR Director provided a report.
An opportunity for public comment was provided; no public comment received.

MOTION: By Director Pack to Approve Resolution No. 2026-08 Modifying the NUHW Bargaining
Unit at San Benito Health Care District Regarding Laboratory Clerks; Seconded by Director Johnson.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, and Sanchez. Approved
5-0 by roll call.

11. Adiournment:
There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 6:39 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, February 26, 2026, at 5:00
p.m.

Page 4



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DISTRICT PATIENT SATISFACTION COMMITTEE
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
MEETING MINUTES
THURSDAY, AUGUST 21, 2025 - 1:00 PM
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"? FLOOR - GREAT ROOM

San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive
health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the community.

Directors Present
Nick Gabriel, Board Member (Teleconference Location)
Bill Johnson, Board Member

Also Present
Karen Descent, Chief Nursing Officer
Shonna Avant, Director of Infection Prevention and Regulatory Accreditation
Kim Pfeiffer, Sr. Administrative Assistant

1. Call to order / Roll Call

Director Gabriel called the meeting of the District Patient Satisfaction Committee to
order at 1:04 pm.

2. Review of Minutes
The previous meeting minutes dated April 17, 2025 were read and approved.

3. Old Business
The Daisy and Petal award were discussed to go live by our next meeting in November.
Dr. Gabriel also would like to explore the WOW incentive program to recognize non-
clinical staff.

4. New Business

The Bylaws Committee Structure regarding the composition and duties were
discussed and validated.

Page 5



The initial planning stage of a Mobile Courtesy Cart for our patients was discussed to
include birthday cards, meal vouchers, phone chargers, etc. More to follow.

e (22025 Results

A report on the dashboard was provided and is included in the packet.
5. Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:33 pm. The next Patient

Satisfaction Committee meeting is scheduled for November 20%, 2025, at 1:00 pm.

Page 6



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DISTRICT PATIENT SATISFACTION COMMITTEE
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
MEETING MINUTES
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2025 - 1:00 PM
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"? FLOOR - GREAT ROOM

San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive
health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the community.

Directors Present
Devon Pack substituted for Nick Gabriel, Board Member
Bill Johnson substituted for Josie Board Member

Also Present
Karen Descent, Chief Nursing Officer
Jacqueline Fernandez, Sr. Director of Acute Care Services
Shonna Avant, Director of Infection Prevention and Regulatory Accreditation
Kim Pfeiffer, Sr. Administrative Assistant

1. Call to order / Roll Call

Devon Pack called the meeting of the District Patient Satisfaction Committee to order at
1:03 pm.

2. Review of Minutes
The previous meeting minutes dated August 21, 2025 were read and approved.

3. Old Business

The Daisy and Super Star award were discussed in further detail and is set to go live in

January 2026. The Super Star award is an incentive program to recognize non-clinical
staff.

4. New Business

o 32025 Results
A report on the dashboard was provided and is included in the packet.

Page 7



e Mobile Courtesy Cart
The planning stage of a Mobile Courtesy Cart for our adult and pediatric patients
is under way was discussed to include birthday cards, meal vouchers, phone
chargers, etc.
S. Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:27 pm. The next Patient

Satisfaction Committee meeting is scheduled for February 19, 2026, at 1:00 pm in the

Great Room.

Page 8



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

DISTRICT BYLAWS / POLICIES AND PROCEDURES COMMITTEE
JANUARY 13,2026 - 1:00 PM
GREAT ROOM, 2"P-FLOOR, SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING

IN PERSON ONLY
MINUTES

Mission Statement -The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive,
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the
community.

Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs
with quality care in a safe and compassionate environment.

Committee Members Present
Josie Sanchez, Board Member (Chair)
Devon Pack, Board Member
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer
Laura Garcia, Executive Assistant

Also Present
Heidi Quinn, Legal Counsel

1. Call to Order
The meeting of the Bylaws/Policies and Procedures Committee was called to order at 1:04 p.m. by
Director Sanchez, attendance was taken by roll call.

2. Consider and Approve Minutes of the District Bvlaws/Policies and Procedures Committee —
December 15. 2025.

Motion: By Director Sanchez, to approve the minutes of the District Bylaws/Policies and
Procedures Committee — December 15, 2025, Seconded by Director Pack, and unanimously
approved.

Page 9



3. Review of Policies for Review and Recommendation

4.

5.

Development of Board Agenda — Direction was provided to forward the revised policy
to the full Board recommending approval, with the recommended edits.

Fiduciary Responsibility of Board Members - Direction was provided to forward the
revised policy to the full Board recommending approval.

Limit of Authority — Direction was provided to forward the revised policy to the full
Board recommending approval.

Potential Conflicts of Interest - Policy, with proposed revisions, to be brought to the
next scheduled meeting for review.

Relationship to Management Company — Direction was to archive the policy.
Oversight of Safety, Emergency Management, and Disaster Plan — Direction was
provided to forward the revised policy to the full Board recommending approval.
Strategic Planning — Direction was provided to forward the revised policy to the full
Board recommending approval, with the recommended edits.

Updating — Policy, with proposed revisions, will be brought to the next scheduled
meeting for review.

Use of Letterhead by Directors — Direction was provided to archive the policy.

Board Member Identification, Compensation, and Benefits — Direction was provided to
forward to the revised policy to the full Board recommending approval, with the
recommended edits.

Compensation of the Chief Executive Officer — Direction was to bring the policy back
to the next scheduled meeting for recommendation of approval.

Consider and Approve Schedule of Future Meetings (Committee)

The Committee approved to meet on Monday, February 9, 2026 at 1:00 pm.

Adjournment
There being no further regular business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:46 p.m.

Page 10



To:
From:
Date:
Re:

o

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

Amy Breen-Lemaq, Vice President, Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services
February 12, 2026

All Clinics — January 2026

January 2024 Rural Health and Specialty Clinics' visit volumes

Total visits Total visits
Clinic Location cur?e:t:nonih prior month
(December 2025)
Orth di
ropedie 506 504
Specialty
Multi-Specialty 604 558
Sunset 853 706
Surgery & Primary 335 395
Care
San Juan Bautista 311 323
1st Street 666 533
4th Street 1,113 1,006
Barragan 650 523
Total 5,038 4,478

Provider recruitment activities with anticipated start dates by specialty:

» Urogynecology: Dr. Katherine Volpe — February 2026

In reflecting on the past year, | want to recognize and thank our providers
and clinic staff for their exceptional dedication to patient care and their
steadfast support of the hospital District. Last year’s success is a direct result
of their teamwork, clinical excellence, and daily commitment to our
patients and community. Their efforts, often behind the scenes, have made
a meaningful difference in both patient experience and operational
stability. 1 am truly grateful for their professionalism, compassion, and
continued partnership.

Page 11



latty

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
Mabie Southside/Northside Skilled Nursing Facility

Board Report — February 2026
To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
From: JaylLee Davison, Interim Director of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility

1. Census Statistics: January 2026

~ Southside 2026 - Northside . 2026
Total Number of Admissions 15 Total Number of Admissions 10
Number of Transfers from HHH 15 Number of Transfers from HHH 8
Number of Transfers to HHH 6 Number of Transfers to HHH 4
Number of Deaths 1 Number of Deaths 1
Number of Discharges 15 Number of Discharges 13
Total Discharges 16 Total Discharges 14
Total Census Days 1363 Total Census Days 1423

Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of discharges. Total
census excludes bed hold days.

2. Total Admissions: January 2026

Southside From | Payor Northside ~  From ____ Payor
7 HHMH Medicare 1 HHH MEDICARE
2 HHMH CCA 1 HOME HOSPICE
2 HHMH CCAER 1 GOOD SAM MEDICARE
2 HHMH Medicare Re- 1 HHH CCA
Admit
1 HHMH Medicare Re- 2 HHH MEDICARE
Admit Obs.

1 HHMH Medicare ER 1 HHH/OBS CCA

2 HHH/RE-ADMIT CCA

1 HHH/RE-ADMIT MEDICARE

Total: 15 Total: 10

3. Total Discharges by Payor: January 2026

~_____ Southside _ 2026 ~_ Northside | — 2026
Medicare 11 Medicare 9
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0
CCA 4 CCA 4
Medical 0 Medical 0
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0
Hospice 1 Hospice 1
Private (self-pay) 0 Private (self ay) 0
Insurance 0 Insurance 0
Total: 16 Total: 14

1
Page 12



4. Total Patient Days by Payor: January 2026

~ Southside 2026 Northside 2026
Medicare 258 Medicare 172
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0
CCA 991 CCA 1056
Medical 31 Medical 68
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0
Hospice 52 Hospice 122
Private (self-pay) 31 Private (self-pay) 0
Insurance 0 Insurance 0
Bed Hold / LOA 16 Bed Hold / LOA 5
Total: 1379 Total: 1423
Average Daily Census 44.48 Average Daily Census 45.90

2

Page 13



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

From: Bernadette Castronuevo, Director of Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging Services
Date: February 2026

Re: Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging

Updates:

Laboratory

1. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Update on chemistry analyzer project > Assay validation completed. Interface validation on going.

- Phase 2A construction update = Phase 2A pending completion. Phase 2B started and estimated to be completed
on 4/2026.

2. Laboratory Statistics

January 2026 2026 YTD
Total Outpatient Volume 4726 4726
Main Laboratory 1398 1398
Mc Cray Lab 1081 1081
Sunnyslope Lab 475 475
SJB and 4™ Street 98 98
ER and ASC 1674 1674
Total Inpatient Volume 130 130
Diagnostic Imaging
1. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- New C-arm ordered.
- Multi-purpose trailer pad approved by ELT
- Imaging space planning to resume
2. Diagnostic Imaging Statistics
January 2026 2026 YTD
Radiology 2022 2022
Mammography 591 591
CcT 1113 1113
MRI 199 199
Echocardiography 105 105
Ultrasound 816 816

San Benito Health Care District
A Public Agency
911 Sunset Dnive, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 637-5711, hazelhawkins.com

Page 14



Hazel Hawkins Hospital

FOUNDATION

inng for OQur Community

TO: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
FROM: Liz Sparling, Foundation Director

DATE: February 2026

RE: Foundation Report for February

The Foundation Board of Directors met on February 12 and three presentations:

e Shanell Kerkes, RN, BSN, Director of Emergency Services & House Coordinators and Dr. Bogey
presented the need for new ER lobby furniture and an external pacemaker for the ER.

e Mendi Suber-Ventura, RN, HHMH Director of Surgical Services updated the Board on the GE
Care-Station Anesthesia Delivery System that was funded in November and brought dessert to
thank the Board for all the equipment the Foundation has purchased for the Operating Rooms.

e Kyle Sharp presented an update on our Foundation Edward Jones accounts

Finance Committee

a. Financial Report February
1. Income $ 17,506.24
2. Expenses $ 137,126.76
3. New Donors 1
4. Total Donations 185
Allocations:

1. Up to $18,000 for new Emergency Room Hospital Grade Chairs

2. $10,000 for WOWs equipment from funds dedicated to this purpose. Additional donations
came in after the Dinner Dance for this purpose.

3. Upto $10,000 for an external pacemaker for the ER
Directors Report:

¢ [ gave our new Board members a tour of the Hospital and went over our Board Orientation. They
were very impressed with our Hospital.

e Working on the Tranquility Rooms in the Skilled Nursing Facilities and they are almost complete.
We are looking at having an event with our Board, the District Board and the Community
Foundation Board soon. Due to flu and RSV season we will keep it small with the hope of having a
larger gathering at the SNFs in the spring.

e Our end of year tax letters went out to all our donors. We issued 300 letters, had 2,362 donations
totaling over $572,000 in 2025. This is the most end-of-year tax letters we have every issued.

¢ Our All for 1 Employee Giving Campaign will run the month of April. This is a campaign where we
ask employees to pledge gifts through payroll deduction. Last year we had 78 participants
pledging $ 66,110. Employees can designate to their department too. 1 am working on new ideas
for encouraging new employees to donate.

e lam on the San Benito Leadership Institute Board and we just had a % day Board retreat at the St.
Francis Retreat. It was amazing and the program is doing great work. I am hoping we send more
Hospital employees to the program.

Fundraising/Development Committee
¢ To date, the Foundation has received 2,733 donations totaling $1,552,240.88

Scholarship Committee

e We have received a few applications. They are due by April 1, 2026. The Foundation plans to
allocate around $20K this year.

Page 15



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Board of Director’'s Report January 2024

Marketing/Public Relations

MARKETING

« Social Media Posts

FACEBOOK

Preview 4

g In honor of Presidents Day, our offsit...

~ & Q@ Subnzrec s Tep 13 3t 301 PN
&:&

HHMH is pleased to weicome Katheri...
Q Subiished » Fab 133t 23172

¥ . Youcan nowﬁnd us on Nextdoor! ht...

“e Sl + 3208 3t 12457

We are hosting Public Listening Sessi...

& What's Going On In Hollister CA.
B Pubhshed e Fer 9 3t S.a1 AN

msd - “2b § 3t 941 AM

Today we had the absolute honor of ...
@ Subiisneo » Feb £ at 217 EM

E We are wearing red today in support ...
@ Publiared « Sab € 5t 211330
Today was Jeans and Jerseys Day to ...
Q Subiished « Tab 3 3t 201 SN

p-" Q Sublizred » T2t 3 3t T0ICA

Thank you to the Publisher of the Ho...

Q Suniitnec s Feb 2 3t 232N

286 Join our community partners in savin...
5 D Sunlizred « F2b 2 3t TABAM
"

“""" We are hosting Public Listening Sessi...

A=
ﬂ O Supiznes « an 50 31 23500

s
@ We are hostmg Public Listening Sessi...
- Q@ Pub

We are hosting Public Listening Sessi...

s

sse

interactions @ v

Views () « Vewers @ 1
501 349 1
8,855 6,153 87
920 630 1
1295 896 0
381 240 4
9,539 6399 213
13115 7,756 77
23,042 13,540 86
685 367 4
1,527 939 4
573 381 4
928 585 6

Event Invitation on FB

Harei Hawhins Hospital vt
e

P

YOur MATTERS!

2026 Community Neads Assessment
PUBLIC LISTENING SESSIONS

) e | e |
L) 1 ]

2026 Community Needs Assessment Public Listening Sessian

Going (4)

T e et

Interested {78

Page 16

+



Hazel Hawkins Board of Director's Report February 2024

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL pagez
gmk =1 z&nl:‘ugfs o 2,496 1,380 48
&?:?:T labisﬁearvgc;s\ .i“ the main h... 2349 1550 "
It has come to our attention that the ...
sWha’sGemgOninNoﬁerA. 1718 1,103 ]
& Published « f3n 203 7T N
;OUR Y?l'CE M-?’:'IT,ERS' Hazel Hawki... . 542 79 3
It has come to our attention that the ...
e & What's Going On in Hollister CA. see 1,718 1,103 o
w & Bunbenad e Jan 20 a1 T LT AN
T
@ - . YOUR VOICE MATTERS! Hazel Hawki...
% Q Publishea » fan 0 3 £10 ) s 542 279 3
am———
— It has come to our attention that the ... .
e-».mls'sec Jar 20 at 402 500 " 543 310 3
et
=== |t has come to our attention that the ...
' @ Sublisned » Jar 20 32 3:36PM 3073 2379 437
’--- To clear up confusion in the commun...
“‘:-"ﬁe_ -_‘3)3'1 16 3t 10:27 40 o 2977 1842 18
HAZEL HAWKINS HOSPITAL AUXILIA...
= @ Subishec s e 14 ar 23858 - 1,186 730 5
@ Hazel Hawkins Hospital Hazel Hawkms Hospltal
¢ Pud Frankie Gallagher @ c. Frankie Gallagher @
F IPM. Q@ - s 3071 DA
F'.'..:',.: i e

We are wearing red today in support of the
American Heart Association and their
promotion of Early Detection and Prevention

Today was Jeans and Jerseys Day to celebrate
the upcoming Super Bowl. The 49er's were

of Heart Disease in Women. Even our skilled definitety the most popular team of the day!
nursing residents joined the cause! You can The two hig hest ]

leam more by visiting WearRedDay.org .

samericanheartassociation viewed posts for the

FWearRedDay

month.

r




Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

NEXTDOOR - Posts and Ads

@ Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital @

Your Voice Matters!

We are hosting Public Listening Sessions for our 2026 Community Health
Needs Assessment. Please join us on February 10th at 6:00 pm or February
11th at 3:30 pm to provide valuable input about health care needs in San
Benito County.

if you are unable to attend these sessions. please scan the QR code to
complete a brief survey online.

YOUR VOICE MATTERS!

2026 Community Needs Assessment
PUBLIC LISTENING SESSIONS

Tuesday Wednesday ;
February 10** February 11t i
6:00 pm 330 pm
Hazel Hawkins Hospital

Support Services Building - 2™ Floor - Great Room
All community members are welcome.

Your foedback is valuable—and appreciated.

M yous ool (RN © eoniey) Semsen, Do Mok Our oo suneoy

byscumng tha (R code of QO 10 Mg Sorme o oo oo foberillAgt

DCommont

641 Views

Board of Director’'s Report February 2024
page 3

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital 1
6 days ago

HHMH is pleased to welcome
Katherine Volpe, MD!

Dr. Volpe recently joined the
HHMH Medical Staff adding th...

O 38 D 7 Q 2,217 Views
Impressions
1,363
Women's Health Services
Impressions: 618
m Clicks: 3

Community Health Needs Assessment

Impressions: 748

—_— Clicks: 3

Page 18



Hazel HCIWkinS Board of Director’s Report February 2024

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL page4

[EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

Employees:

e Hazel's Headlines

 Employee Years of Service Recognition program

e Casual for a Cause - Jeans and Jerseys Day - Celebrating the Super Bowl

e Wear Red - Casual for a Cause - Women's Heart Health Awareness

¢ Food Trucks and goodie bags for Valentines Day

e Casual for a Cause—Blue Jean Day - Celebrating Valentines Day

e Launching Daisy/ Super Star Employee Recognition Program for Exemplary Service - February 23

MEDIA

Press Release:
+ HHMH Welcomes Katherine Volpe, MD, New Urogynecology Specialist

» Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Invites Community to Participate in 2026 Community
Health Needs Assessment Survey

COMMUNITY

Public:
e Working with Wipfli on the 2026 Community Needs Assessment

= There are 35 community leaders/stakeholders that have been identified to be interviewed by Wipfi.
25 interviews were completed.

= Promoting Community Needs Assessment questionnaire to the community.

= Hosted two Community Listening Sessions

o Donated 50 first aid kits to Hollister Little League

» Participated in county-wide disaster drill on 2/18

Page 19



WV T¥:L 920Z/L1/T

SSNDS) ME@M_ 30 h_“_ow“ ‘op8ud zeispul B PIOH UQ qQgl SzoT/1/11 |spowial puo up|diaysow ABojoIppDy
1P O} painpay ABojoIpDY/q0T 8j4spouleg HOH ! juswdinbs Jo juswissassy ’ i
aq o} Buyssw
pleliel= g Zaepul d 0i6d
pajwans [0sodold ABOJOIPOY/GO] onepoUIeY PIOH UO a4l asL pajwgns |psodold apoiBdn (AW
‘uBisep
JPWBYDS 3y} Ui pID
O} yIom pup sjpsodoud
yos099) Bulpusad SPIDPUDS
payLIGns Uoypoyddo| SORMOS HOdANS| o sior BUIOBUO eeoz/1/t|  szoz/1/11| Avesos 8 @ouDIdWOD Swsies olsiag
J0}o8.Q JoIudS
$uniB |YDH ‘sulpoap T IVDOH J93W o} spoifdn
9Z/1/1 8y} 81042q
pa{IWIgns AjjnNjssadons
up|d asupildwo)
NVT [N um?%mm s201nSS (0IDINS S BuIoBUO 1| seoensrzl|  vzozsoz/it susLRINbSY JapOWSY O
i - : d Buyopd
USBQ SDY JOAIDM HddD jloplelte g} Jagng tpusw AdHSO J8d O buyopan
've
uo Jjo ubis o} 0D pup J040811( zaJapu] juswaop|day R
0S4 I¥DH Buipuad|  ABojoipoa/aoT ayepoUIeg 297 bZ0chel? 18ZAIDUY :Z 850U GO IaEP =g
‘PBHD|S SDY g¢ S50Yd
"Z @soyd ojul
Jojo3iq za1spu] UODPIIDA
P8||01 Ussg SDY PUD 9zoT/ 11T ZAIOUY J S50 b {spoway qo1
110 pasold st 18I0y ABojolpoy/ap] ajjepoulag JazZA|IpUY 1| 8sDYd P
PEENeEY JrT— S j ook
pup Qg ypm sbulssw ASOWIDYY D|SADY USSADN adl ¥20Z/¥ 1/11| UOJOIYUBA BUIPUNOAWOD Al J8des) ADDWIDUY 09
{o21uYyo8} Bulobup
'saulyoDW
Uuo uIn} O} HISIA 3jis g J04031Q A
Buipuad "UOKINYSUOD A2DWIDYY DISADY USSADN £8y 9z0C/ /v yToe/v/TL SBUIYODW SIXAd MBN uolyo|ojsut ag
pPa}o|dwod spy Wwna]
IOPUBA UM SBDIASP JO
Buuny pup uoyoziwydo SSDIAIBS
Cleliclele/ple)) 810D 8jNdY ZepunuIs4 20f 6L 9T0C/ /S yzoz/Tily AJUnDaS Jupju| SDINNDBS/SONH
Buudoalid ‘pajo|dwod| Jo Jo}osiaQ oSS
S| UOIDNISUOD
"MOPIOM
aulyai o} siosiasadns S9DIAIBS
3SNOY PUD S UILPD O} 810D 8Ny Z8pUD LIS DDT 0 agl vz02/9/21 aiomjos Buiinpayos 8sINN UOJDACU]
aAl| §1 §onpo.d ‘Buiobuo| jo Joosuq Joluas
Buiuibyy JO}O8NG/HOIS
Swopdn 910¥| I19PIOYIMADIS AN snipys| uoyping A1 05 CICT R ) asodind SWDN §d3[01d

pipog 9Z0z Aibnigad - pipoqyspq joafoid

Page 20



WV Z¥:L 920T/L1/C

*M8IASI IO} pajusasald
PUD P8}o8||0d
sioyep Buidud

S@DIAISS
2I0D 9jNOY
4O JO}OBII JOIUBS

‘(1DACIAAD Y DH JBH0
HDJS |)IM UOHDNISUOD
‘PapIwIgnNs usaq

soy josloid () oinBay

saoiA18S poddng
Jojoauq Jojuss

‘ssauboid

Ul S18PI0 HOM PauUUD|d
PUD SAID}UBASIY
*SISPIO FIOM BAIDBLOD
10} 67/6 SOM BAIN 0D

$8DIAI8S poddng
10}23.1Q JosS

UOI}DD0| MBU

By} 4O ApNys AlliqIsosy
wiopad o} Buyoo

Adpiay] |021ISAUd
J0 Joyo8ug

‘WDd} |4 SND04 PUD
SIOHYDID Yim ubissp
oupWBYDS BuobBuo

saoIAIes poddng
1040811 JoIuss

9L/€ 40

A98Mm aNp spig '¥Z/Z DD
Usim jjom ays paysod

§1 PIG JOJ JUSWISSILIBAPY

$921A186 |0216INS
O Joyoaug

EIEV
196UO| OU puDWaQ

sa2IAI8¢ poddng
1042811 JOIuag

S9DIASP

JIo JjpgsuUl ANDJOD

0} 8SNOY3JDS PB3U [|IMm
HUS €2/ 40 de8m xiddp
HDJS JIM UCHDNISUOD
uay} 8ouDpnss|

Huued Buping IvDH
Buipuad ‘uoiansuod
Hoys 0} dnoio 810D
8y| O} Panss! {DDHUOD

saoInes poddng
10}0811( Jouss

|0ACIAA0
jpsodoid Buipusy

1012080
ABO[OIPDY/QDT

Z3puduIB O0f PIOH UO agl ¥20Z/01/6 soD|day WIBISAS |IDD S5INN
[CEENE)
snop.iozoy b Budsq o anp
zawoy ob.or (0729 9z0T/1/9 §T0T/L2/S no pasoyd aq o} painbs: podisH 3
S| VD Ul pamojip 1abuo) ou
PUD WSJsAS 444V UD SI WaJSAS
wiaysAs Buyaxoly
zawoy abior ST0T/6t/6 Gzoz/ /1 BuLesUIBUS JuSLND 8oD|doY upisios
puowsp |japoway
DPOYS3 une PIOH UO aal SZ0T/1/9 Buobuo yum disy o} S AdoIay) [0915AUd
uoloo0| jusund Bupuodx3z| T :
WD Adpusyy spods
za)wpy abior adl SZoT/ /L $N504 PUDHXS PUD BJDACUSY Adouay] spods snoo4
SIS Juswpodag Buissaoold 8jusis
_leanc | ﬁm A Ly 9TaT/1/11 §ToT/91/6 1oy juswidinba gs gy 00F|  tuswsdD|day JoZIUS)S
ANSIPUSY ODSWY M3U JO UoyD(o}suUl
ousIip ayy
0} }SOD OU D $I84D3Y I9}DM
zoaW0Y 9B.0r wnipaw aal|  szoesszie| NioCS >or o _ME | suounios AB1auz uDPIM
SUORDIO] & :WBIBOI] Z| XD
zo)uwiny 8bior _ ast §Z0Z/11/€| sseo0v JooQ + OSS / Ajundss DPONIBA.
Za1spu] ” SHDJS APDaY 9IOW
ajoppuiag wnipew PIOH UO asl a8l dW uaum djay o} Joupal| pod Ja(0i) BuilBow,

pinog 9Z0zZ Aibnigad - pipoqyspq joaloid

Page 21



WV ZtL 920T/LT/T

uo Bupom Ajjusun)
'9Z/G1/1 SOM BALL 0D

% INNOD ALNONd
SW3ll ONIGN3d % ALINONNd 103roydd
%001 [44 V101
%S L
% L €
%ET S
%0 0
PoyIDIS %65 1
_Lou/may aigissod
ol o6 psuunid %0 0
SAreElEsiEze % INROD snuvis
% SNLV1S MSV1
_\ n_o.oh_
"uolbjUBWSIAWI ;
R — o) PoIDIBL 50 130000 o suolnlos
PUD §5920D WILUOD ,h_o oow_ _ IPeW asl seoz/eL/s 8 n.vu } > 5] mwo ~ cm*of 2J0DY}D3H UIDS
1M WDS} US[DD ietle) {00 MO 142J0 {1 109
‘Buiuunid sousiBo)
ssNosIp O AuoinBai
Buysaw WosLPWBWI (o) Busin INS OPISULON SU}
*J040DIU0D BuLoO) 10,0531 E_._wE_ uosiAD( asjADr asl 920Z/1/1 15 BULGOY cmcui eo0/dey Bulool{ sapIsUHON
10§ [psodoud pun
JO8HYDID JO) (DAOIAAD
josodoud Bulpuayd
"siioda) pasu 10423113 Za1apuj
SADY 8M JDYL §,1D Uiog ABojoippy/qo] Sispoulag a8y o 290199y JoUUES 1O
12/ - 61/5 puo
y1/5-¢1/S 10} pauuoid sooIAB
Al YOOW 'SEODUB}UI InSs uoypjuswa|dw| SOPW
. ) oiBe}0us pup SADW a1zng 9z0T/ /L SToT/LL/6 PJO28Y YDBH DU O8] '
10y ssaiboud ul sBuljesw ‘ | ’ ’ asupdx3 yoa)ipaw
. UOHOWIOU| “dA
ssai601d ul Buiuioly
puD PlINg AIDUCKDIQ
SalIIoDd
. BuisiNN PaJIins SpIsy4nos
uola|dwos Buupau uoyoPUNOS ’ ‘
SWOOJ AINbUDI] 101910 Buipods zn Qdl SZOLIVL/L PUD SPISUHON SIQDW Zau| SWooy AHinbuos)
g WDI|[IM |0 SWO0) AIOSUSs
MO Dlpnadpisy) paioolpsQd
SBUjU8810s Yjoay
"ADDINDOD MIUIIDSH 2 '$2INSOAXS ‘SUOHDZIUNWIWII
8INSUd O} UOHOBLOD 3O AJIIgisia @A0sdw SIDMYOS Y4O8H
PUD UCHDPIDA DR ®‘®_Mﬂ_m.w%nm_ N UOA Ueqoz3 9e0z/SL/L §eoz/Le/9 ¢ Buiodas aoupldwod|  98A0dw3 amomNuiw|

SoWOND ‘Bu DYy
yjioay 8ako|dwa aulwnals

pipog 9Z0z Albniqad - piooqysp( joafoid



WV Z¥:L 9202/LT/T

sjsanbay
abubyd

%001 114 V101

%6 4 MO
%eT S wnipaw
%01 9l UybiH

pipog 9Z0z Aipnigad - piooqyspq jo3loid

Page 23



San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors

Policy Manual
SUBJECT YpdatingBoard Member Handbook
WRITTEN BY | Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy & POLICY 2000 - 26
Procedures NUMBER

APPROVED San Benito Healthcare District Board of
BY Directors EFFECTIVE | May 24, 2001

Resolution#

REPLACES September 21, 2000
Other

POLICY

The San Benito Health Care District (District) shall provide each Board member, at the beginning of
their term of ofﬁce a Board Member Handbook containing the following materials:

. District Bylaws

. The District’'s Organizational Chart

. A Department Manager Roster (includes names and extension numbers) (Also see
Communication Directory)

= Board Committee Assignments (includingescommittee description, rames-ef
Bboard;- and staff members, deetersmedical staff representatives (if applicable), and
dates/times-sfmeeting scheduless)

. The Administrative Policy Manual

Materials related to continuing education. including seminar information, legislative updates.

and relevant trammg resources

. Reasons for closed session (Quarterly QA Reports in January, April, July and October)
= A copy of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

Updates to the above materials shall be provided to Board members throughout their term.

PROCEDURE

1. Administration will distribute updated materials to Board members as needed. Deliverv may occur
by email. telephone notification. or other means to ensure timely communication.

4924-3255-5917, v. 2

Page 24



VIO AT UTIIIGe UL vy

Pianenation
COMPrRCastion-

OOV EatATVH IVIVPOaunuva Ul STINGnee tU L7Vl w MIVItIUWIY WU WA P eult

2. Administration offices are open Monday through Friday, except for holidays, from 7:30 a.m. to 5:36
4:30 p.m.% = sraa-slets:

3. When timely delivery is necessary, information may also be sent electronically to ensure prompt
receipt.

4924-3255-5917, v. 2

Page 25



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL

CREATED: 9/2021 LD
Reviewed: NEW

Revised: NEW Pg. 1 of 1

SUBJECT: ABSENCE OF SBHCD-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURPOSE: The San Benito Health Care District (District) Board of Directors (Board) is responsible for
appointing the Chief Executive Officer-ef-the-Distsist, who is responsible for overall manasiasmanagement of
SBHEDhe District. In the absence of the CEO, it is important that a qualified administrative pessea-leader be
available to ensure continuity of operations. provide ferdecision-making authority, and address urgent
operational guidanee,and-te-answerguestiensissues.

TR oiia A wiiies A AWNAAAR

............ 3, and in recognition of the SBHEDDistrict Organization Plan, the qualified individuals
de51gnated below shall assume responsibility (in the order presented-here) for all aspects of management of District
and Hospital operations, in collaboration with other SBHECDDistrict Senior Executives:

POLICY During the absence of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), or any Interim CEQ.-e£SanBeniteHaalth

£; Chief Nursing Officer (CNO); or

3. _ex-dDesignee as appointed by the Chief Executive Officer

*  A—Absence of the Chisf Executive-OffeerCEO includes periods during which the CEO cannot be contacted

will-mean-the—inabilibtocentast-the CEO due to vacation, illness, incapacity, or other absenee—from—the

facilitiescircumstances resulting in unavailability.
* B—Executives include ChisfExecutive O ertiie CEO, ChisftFinansialOHeerCFO, Chief-Operating

Officer—and Chief Clinical Officer and Chisf M
Services.

ing-Offieer CNO. and VP. Ambulatory and Physician

GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Iathe-eventWhen the CEO is unavailable-due-to-absence, the-Chi :
G#feerCFO shall be the Acting CEO responsible for the following, 1nclud1ng but not limited to:

o Ad-Overseeing all operations of SBHCBDistrict and its facilities.

e Attending Board and committee meetings where the CEQ’s attendance is required, such as Medical
Executive Committee (MEC) and sub-committees of the Board-e£-Bisectoss.

e Beeeasulted-eaAddressing regulatory issues normally brought to the attention of the CEO.

® Representing the SBHCDDistrict at Hhospital functions.

B. Issues relating to medical staff matters shall be reviewed in consultation with the Medical Staff
Department prior to taking action. Should answers to questions be difficult to reach or uncertainty exists
in making the correct decision, the designees may contact the President of the Board sfDPireetors—for
appropriate direction, and/or consult District Legal Counsel for assistance.

C. Whenever possible and practical, matters involving issues with potentially serious ramifications should
be deferred until the return of the CEO.

PROCEDURE
Page 26



A. In the absence of the Chisf Txecutive Offioor cocording 4o shic wolicw(CEQ), the Chief Oneratins
(=} J A

5 =7 Zeevoy Tiivwl

ChisfFinaneial-Offeer(CFO or other Executive Designee is to be contacted as the Acting CEO. Should

the Administrative Supervisor, operator or person initiating the response be unable to contact the Chief
Operating-Officer, ChisfHinancial OfficerCF O, the above chain of command will apply.

Page 27



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL
Committee Approval:

Board Approval:

Policy #: BOD-

New: 8/24/22

Reviewed: 4/14/23

Revised:
Pg. 10of 1
SUBJECT: Ethics Fraining-and Education Training Relating-te \Work! larassment-Requirements

PURPOSE:

To Bmwdeestabhsh clear qundelmes to ensure the farcompliance-wi

isn-for-San Benito Health Care DIStrlCt (“D|str|ct") Board members comply with
statutorv requwements for ethics training and sexual harassment prevention training.

POLICY:

fin A-Benite-Health-Care DistristtTo ensure that District Board members rassive-complete
tralmng in ethics according to Calufornla Government Code sections 53234; ef seq-—{AS-1234) trainins and

vV TE=NS T/ Ciuati e

education regarding sexual harassment_prevention and abusive conduct in the workplace.

PROCEDURE:

1. Each District Board member is required to complete a minimum of two (2) hours of ethics training
sufficient to meet the legal requirements of AB-4234Government Code section 53234 within six (6)
months of assuming office. and every two (2) years thereafter. Such training must cover
responsibilities. conflicts of interest. transparency and new fiscal rules.

2. All District Board members are required to complete at least two (2) hours of training and education
relating to workplace harassment, abusive conduct. within six (6) months of assuming office,
everyand every two (2) years thereafter.

Free online training is offered at-through the Institute for Local Government at www.ca-ilg.ora/ethics-
education-and-training-ab- 1234 -the California Civil Rights Department at https://calcivilrights.ca.aov/shpt/ or

self-studyerthraugh District : H-serve training program. therefore, there will be no expense
reimbursement for this mandatory tralnmg

The District shall maintain ethics training records for five (5) vears, and these records are subiect to disclosure
under the California Public Records Act.

REFERENCE:

AB 1234 (Chapter;
Code section 32103: and SB 82? x

overnment Code; S-sections 53232 and 53235 Health and Safety

Page 28



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL
Committee Approval;

Policy # BOD-3

Reviewed: 1/2017, 8/2/22

Revised:

Board Approval: 8/25/22

Pg. 1 of3

SUBJECT: San Benito Health Care District (District) Board Member Expenditure Reimbursement

POLICY: District Board members are entitled to reimbursement for actual and necessary traveling and

incidental expenses incurred in the perfformance of official business of the District.

PROCEDURE:

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Authorized Expenses

Generally Authorized Expenses. District funds, equipment, supplies, titles, and staff time must only
be used for authorized Ddistrict business. Authorized expenses are, generally, expenses incurred in
connection with activities including, but not limited to, the following:

1.1.1 Communicating with representatives of regional, state, and national government on Ddistrict-
adopted policy positions;

1.1.2 Attending educational seminars designed to improve Board Member's skills and information
levels;

1.1.3 Participating in regional, state, and national organizations whose activities affect the Ddistrict's
interests;

1.1.4 Participating in an event recognizing service to the Ddistrict; and

1.1.5 Attending Ddistrict events.

Prior Approval for Other Expenses. All other expenditures require prior approval by the Ddistrict
Bboard of Ddirectors (Board) in a public meeting. The following expenses also require prior approval
by the Ddistrict Bboard-ef-dirsctors:

1.2.1 International and out-of-state travel;

1.2.2 Expenses that exceed the annual limits established for each effice-helderBoard member; and

1.2.3 Expenses exceeding $2,500 per trip.

Personal Expenses. Examples of personal expenses that the Ddistrict will not reimburse include, but
are not limited to:

1.3.1  The personal portion of any trip;,

1.3.2 Political or charitable contributions or events;

1.3.3 Family expenses, including partners’ expenses when accompanying efficials-Board members
on Ddistrict-related expenses;

1.3.4 Entertainment expenses;

Page 29



RN
NN

1.

2.1

22

23

2

1.3.5 Non-mileage personal automobile expenses, including repairs, traffic citations, insurance, or
gasoline; and

1.3.6 Personal losses incurred while on Ddistrict business.

Questions. Any question regarding the propriety of a particular type of expense should be resolved

by the district board of directors before the expense is incurred.

Cost Control. To conserve Ddistrict resources and keep expenses within community standards for
public officials, expenditures should adhere to the following guidelines. In the event that expenses

are incurred that exceed these guidelines, the cost borne or reimbursed by the Ddistrict will be limited
to the costs that fall within the guidelines.

Transportation. Directors shall utilize the most economical mode and class of transportation
reasonably consistent with scheduling needs and cargo space requirements must be used, using the
most direct and time-efficient route._Government and group rates should be utilized when available,

2.1.1 Rental Vehicles. Charges for rental vehicles may be reimbursed under this provision if the

expense is economical and reasonable for purposes of conducting the business of the
Ddistrict.

2.1.2 Airfare. Charges for airffare may be reimbursed under this provision if the expense is
economical and reasonable for purposes of conducting the business of the Ddistrict.

2.1.3 Automobile. Automobile mileage is reimbursed at Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rates in
effect at the time the expense is incurred. The IRS mileage reimbursement rate does not
include bridge and road tolls, which are also reimbursable. These rates are designed to
compensate the driver for gasoline, insurance, maintenance, and other expenses associated
with operating the vehicle. The !aterral Revenus-Servica|RS rates will not be paid for rental
vehicles; only receipted fuel expenses will be reimbursed for rental vehicles.

2.1.4 Taxis/Ride Share/Shuttles. Taxis, ride share, or shuttle fares may be reimbursed, including a
fifteen percent (15%) gratuity per fare, when the cost is economical and reasonable for
purposes of conducting the business of the Ddistrict.

Lodging. Lodging expenses will be reimbursed or paid for when travel on official Ddistrict business
reasonably requires an overnight stay.

221 Conferences/Meetings. If lodging is in connection with a conference, lodging expenses may
shall not exceed the maximum group rate published by the conference or activity sponsor, for
the-meeting-in-gquestien, if such rates are available at the time of booking. If the group rate is
not available, see the next section.

222 Other Lodging. Travelers must request government rates, when available. Lodging rates that
are equal to or less than government rates are presumed to be reasonable and hence
reimbursable for purposes of this policy. In the event that government rates are not available
at a given time or in a given area, lodging rates that do not exceed $300 per night or the
conference rate are presumed reasonable and hence reimbursable for purposes of this policy.

Meals. Reimbursable meal expenses and associated gratuities will not exceed the lnternal Revenue
Service|RS rates in effect at the time the expense is incurred. When a meal function is an organized
event, the director shall be reimbursed the amount being charged by the event organizer for the meal,
regardless of whether the per-person cost exceeds the Internal Revenue Service rates. The Ddistrict
will not pay for alcohol/personal bar expenses.

Page 30



24

25

2.6

3

Phone/Fax/-Internet. Board Members will be reimbursed for actual telephone and fax expenses
incurred ea-for Dédistrict business. Telephone bills should identify which calls were made on Ddistrict
business. Board Members will be reimbursed for internet access connection and/or usage fees away

from home, not to exceed $25.00 per day, if internet access is necessary for Ddistrict-related
business.

Airport Parking. Long-term parking must be used for travel exceeding twenty-four (24) hours. Board
Members will be reimbursed for airport parking expenses.

Personal Responsibility. If a Board member elects to incur expenses that exceed the established

rates or allowable amounts under this Policy without first securing prior approval from the Board. the
District will reimburse only up to the approved limits. Anv costs above those limits must be paid
personally by the Board member.

Expense Reports

3.1 Expense Report. All expense reimbursement requests must be submitted on an expense
report form provided by the Ddistrict, accompanied bv receipts documenting each expense.

Euvnanaas rannrtc miict dans HR n‘ blnnb dhm Avnan $inm o
P w v (oYY T ey SO T Rz sy L

policy-

$ tho rocusiramants of this
bl

3.2

3.3 Audits. All expenses are subject to verification that they comply with this policy.

Director Report. Board members must provide a brief report at the next reqular meeting for any
meeting or conference attended at District expense.

Compliance With Laws. Board Members understand that some expenditures may be subject to

S

reporting under the Political Reform Act and other laws. All agency expenditures are public records
subject to disclosure under the Public Records Act and other laws.

Violation Of This Policy. Under state law, the use of public resources or falsifying expense reports
in violation of this policy may result in any or all of the following: (1) loss of reimbursement privileges;
(2) a demand for restitution to the Ddistrict; (3) the agensy's-District's reporting the expenses as

up to $1,000 per day and three times the value of the resources used; and (5) prosecutlon for misuse
of public resources.

Page 31



G

TALL 3
HOAE FEALTH AGENCY

s i REViISE:
Board Approval: 1/22

BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL
Committee Approval: 1/22

Policy #: BOD-30

Reviewed:

Pg. 1 of 1
SUBJECT: Meetings of Directors
POLICY:
San Benito Health Care District (District) Board Meetings: Location, Time, Date, and Quorum
PURPOSE:

To establish procedures for meeting notice. scheduling, quorum, and public access to ensure all

meetings of the District Board of Directors (Board) comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act

(Government Code § 54950 et seq.).

PROCEDURE:

1.

Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held monthly on the fourth (4th) Thursday of each
month at 5:00 p.m. at a location on the Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital campus. The
Board may from time to time, by majority vote, change the time and place of a regular
meeting. The District shall post an agenda in a location freely accessible to members of the
public and on the District website. which eemplying—complies with the Califosnia
GevernmentCedeBrown Acl at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to aregulasthe meeting.

Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President of the Board or by three (3)
Ddirectors. The District shall deliver written notice of a special meeting to all Board
members at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the time of the meeting as specified in the
notice. The District shall post the notice of the special meeting in a location that is freely
accessible to members of the public. This 24-hour notice requirement shall not apply in an
“emergency situation” as defined in the California Government Code. Written notice must
be provided to each Board member (unless waived) and provided to all media outlets that
have submitted written requests for notice. The notice must be delivered by personal

delivery or any other means that ensures receipt at least twenty-four (24) hours before the
time of the meeting.

Emergency Meetings

Emergency meetings may be called when prompt action is required due to a work stoppage.
crippling activity. or other emergency that severely impairs public health. safety. or the
ability to provide essential public services. Notice shall be provided to all news media who
have requested notice of special meetings by telephone at least one (1) hour before the
meeting. All telephone numbers provided by the media must be attempted. If telephones
are not functioning. notice requirements are waived. but the District shall notify the media
of the meeting and any action taken as soon as possible.

Page 32



Adjourned and Continued Meetings

4.5,

5:6.

A regular. special, or adjourned meeting of the Board may be adiourned to a stated time
and place. If the meeting is adjourned to a time not stated in the original order of
adjournment. the meeting shall be deemed continued to the time regularly scheduled for
Board meetings. Any meeting may be adiourned by the Board members present. even if
less than a quorum is in attendance. If no Directors are present, the Clerk or Secretary of
the Board may adjourn the meeting. If a meeting is adiourned for less than five (5) calendar
days. a new agenda is not required, provided that no new item of business is introduced at
the continued meeting. A copy of the order of adiournment shall be posted within
twenty-four (24) hours after the meeting is adiourned at or near the door of the place where
the meeting was held. If a meeting is continued to a later date. all public notice and agenda

requirements applicable to the original meeting shall apply to any new business added to
the continued meeting.

Quorum

For regular and special meetings of the Board, a quorum shall be three (3) members. No
action may be taken without a quorum present.

Public Meetings

All meetings of the Board, whether regular, special, or adjourned, shall be open and public,
and all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting unless otherwise provided by law.
Public testlmony on a particular issue shall be limited to a-meaximum-sfthree (3) minutes

12 - DL speaker per agenda item. unless othermse
adlusted by the —TFhe Board may—atit an—allew sd

~based on the number of speakers or other reasonable
considerations consistent with the Brown Act.

Closed Session

The Board may meet in closed session only as authorized by the Brown Act. The agenda
shall identify the statutory authority for each closed-session item. Before convening in
closed session. the Board shall make the required public announcement. Following the
closed session. the District must provide an oral or written report of any reportable action
taken and the vote of evervy Board member present. as required by law.

Page 33



San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors
Committee Charter

.
SUBJECT DISTRICT FINANCE COMMITTEE
CHARTER
WRITTEN BY Board Ad Hoc Committee
APPROVED BY Board of Directors on 9/21/00
Resolution #
Other
REVISION
APPROVED BY
|
a Recommends to the Board policies regarding business practices, financial
systems, and hospital financial performance benchmarks.
Q Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on business development

opportunities, and hospital contracts exceeding the authority of the Chief
Executive Officer.

Makes recommendations to the Board concerning capital improvements.

Reviews and recommends to the District Board for approval, the District budget
and financial performance.

Finance Committee Charter.doc.bod

Page 34



San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors
Committee Charter

SUBJECT DISTRICT PLANNING AND FACILITIES
COMMITTEE CHARTER
WRITTEN BY Board Ad Hoc Committee

APPROVED BY Board of Directors on 9/21/00

Resolution #
Other

REVISION

APPROVED BY

Q Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board regarding the hospital’s three-

(3) year strategic plan.

Conducts an annual review of the three- (3) year strategic plan.

Recommends to the Board a Facility Master Plan and an annual Management
Action Plan (MAP).

Q Reviews specific business development facility projects in conjunction with the
Finance Committee.

a Reviews the Management Action Plan (MAP) and the hospital’s overall strategic
plan process and performance.

Q Serves as a forum for consideration of community concerns and opportunities.

Planning & Facilities Committee Charter.doc.bod

Page 35




San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors
Committee Charter

SUBJECT DISTRICT NETWORKING COMMITTEE CHARTER

WRITTEN BY Board Ad Hoc Committee

APPROVED BY Board of Directors on 5/24/01
Resolution #
Other

REVISION
APPROVED BY

a Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on networking opportunities
with other facilities/entities that would be beneficial to and enhance the services
provided by Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital.

a Reviews Management Action Plan (MAP) and Strategic Plan for potential
networking opportunities.

Q Recommends Board approval to pursue networking actions that would add value
to and improve existing District healthcare services.

a Reviews annually all networking agreements and makes recommendations to the
Board for renewal, changes or cancellation.

Networking Committee Charter.doc.bod

Page 36




San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors
Committee Charter

SUBJECT JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

WRITTEN BY

APPROVED BY Board of Directors on 9/21/00
Resolution #
Other

REVISION
APPROVED BY

Q Provide a forum for discussion of issues of mutual concern to the Medical Staff,
the Board of Directors, and Administration.

| Recommends to the Board and Medical Staff, initiatives, policies and practices to
improve and support effective operations and the quality of care.

Joint Conference Committee Charter.doc.bod

Page 37



JOINT COMMISSION
DOCUMENTS FOCUSED ON IN ASSESSING GOVERNING BODY COMPLIANCE
2009

Assure that the minutes of the Governing Body clearly reflect evidence that the following documents were reviewed,
approved, and — when necessary — acted upon:

Document

Q Organization Policy upon Initiation and Whenever Revised. (simple policy review or procedures do not have
to be sent to the governing body)

@ Mission, Vision, and Value Statements upon Development

Q Strategic Plan

Q Document Describing Scope and Degree of Leaders’ Involvement, Authority, and Responsibility in
Corporate-Level Policy Decisions

O Hospital Plan for the Provision of Patient Care

QO  Annual Operating Budget and Long Term Capital Expenditure Plan

Q Plan to Improve Organizational Performance (PI Plan)

Q Patient Safety Program / Annual Evaluation of the Patient Safety Program

Q Periodic (quarterly) Reports on Performance Improvement Activities (specific data is up to the organization,
but at the least should include core measure performance, patient flow measurements)

Q Annual Evaluation of the Safety Program (seven plans)

QO Recommendation for Environment of Care Performance Improvement Project

O Annual Report on Staffing Effectiveness

Q Annual Evaluation of the Infection Control Program

0 Governing Body Bylaws

Q Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules & Regulations

Q Recommendations of Individuals for Medical Staff Membership / Credentialing

Q Recommendations for Delineation of Physician Clinical Privileges

O Recommendations for Appointment / Reappointment to the Medical Staff

Page 38



SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
HAZEYL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL

SUBIECT: PATIENT SAFETY PROGRAM LEADERSHIP/GOVERNANCE/MANAGEMENT

WRITTEN BY: PATIENT SAFETY OFFICER NUMBER: LD - 411

APPROVED BY: EFFECTIVE: 09/07
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPLACES: 05/04
POLICY:

The San Benito Health Care District is committed to addressing the National Patient Safety
Goals through an organizational proactive risk reduction approach.

PROCEDURE

The Governing Board, Medical Staff, and Administration appoint a Patient Safety Officer. The
Patient Safety Officer collaborates with departments and Safety Programs within the
organization while focusing on continuous compliance with the current National Patient Safety
Goals. (National Patient Safety Goals all revised by the Joint Commission on an annual basis.)

The Patient Safety Officer facilitates the Patient Safety Committee members to fullfill the
specific expectations related to each goal. Recommendations for change, solutions to problems
identified and education feedback to staff are developed within the Committee. Compliance with
meeting expectations is measured and reported to the Safety and PI committees on a quarterly
basis.

Page 39



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

MEMORANDUM
To: Board of Directors
From: Suzie Mays
Vice President, Information & Strategic Services
Date: February 13, 2026
Re: Policies for Approval

Please find below a list of policies with a summary of changes for Board of
Directors approval. All revised policies are available for review upon request.
New policies are included in the packet.

Blood and Blood Products Revised procedure based on the 21st

Administration edition of AABB Technical Manual,
adding the correct Blood Bank extension
number, and attaching the Blood
Transfusion Record and Emergency
Liability Forms.

Administration of Gadolinium- Revised. Gadolinium-based MR contrast

Based Contrast Agents agents (GBMCA) definition added.
Added a maximum dose in 24 hours.
Minimum GFR changed per Dr. Richard
Rupp's recommendation.

Utilization of Contrast Media in Revised to explain 1) the patient

Diagnostic Imaging screening and documentation process
for contrast, 2) the roles and
responsibilities for distributing contrast, 3)
the process, requirements, and
quadlifications for administering contrast,
and 4) guidance on reporting reactions
and medication errors, and 5) disposal
of contrast.

Post-Exposure Shuttering, Cropping, Revised to provide clear guidance for

and Electronic Masking in image acquisition to ensure technical

Diagnostic Imaging Policy factors support both radiation reduction
and optimal diagnostic image quality.

Page 40



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Compounding - Personnel Sterile
Training and Evaluation

Compounding — Environmental
Monitoring: Surface and Air
Sampling

Compounding - Facility: Sterile
Compounding Facility

Compounding ~ Personnel:
Competence for Sterile
Compounding

Alcohol Withdrawal Syndrome
Medication Management

Tranexamic Acid Administration
Policy and Procedure for Trauma
Patients

New.

Revised since incubating in hospital
pharmacy now, and not in lab.

Revised to add "24 hours if refrigerated,
or sooner if the manufacturer's
instructions require” for BUD.

Revised to update frequency of
retesting, added references, and
affected departments.

New.

New.

Page 41



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Compounding - Personnel Sterile Training and Evaluation

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 2/13/2026. PDFs should not be used as
official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc
makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness”,

or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to
date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Approvals

o Committee Approval: Policy Committee approved on 2/5/2026
+« Committee Approval: Infection Control approved on 9/9/2025
o Committee Approval: Pharmacy & Therapeutics approved on 6/24/2025

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12336

Revision Number: 0

Owner: Edwin Florendo,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
added steps on how steps for aseptic technique

Page 1 Page 42



DoclD: 12336
Revision: 0
Pending Committee

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Jratuis: Approval
Department:Pharmacy
Manual(s):

Policy : Compounding - Personnel Sterile Training and Evaluation

PURPOSE

To define the required procedures and standards for garbing competency (including gloved fingertip sampling)
and media fill testing used to evaluate sterile compounding personnel in accordance with United States
Pharmacopeia (USP) <797>. These assessments verify the ability to maintain aseptic conditions during
compounding.

POLICY

All sterile compounding personnel must successfully complete initial and ongoing evaluations of garbing
competency (including gloved fingertip sampling) and media fill testing before and during compounding
activities. Evaluations are required at specified intervals and must meet defined microbial action limits to be
considered passing.

Failures require immediate remediation and retesting before resuming compounding duties.

DEFINITIONS

» Gloved Fingertip Sampling (GES): Microbiological sampling of the fingertips of both gloved hands to
evaluate aseptic garbing and hand hygiene practices.

» Media Fill Testing: A compounding simulation using sterile media to evaluate aseptic technique during
sterile preparation.

» CFU (Colony Forming Unit): A measure of viable microorganisms on a culture plate.

« Category 1, 2, 3 CSPs: Levels of sterile compounding risk based on environment and beyond-use dating
(BUD), per USP <797>.

 Tryptic Soy Broth (TSB): A nutrient-rich medium used to promote microbial growth.

PROCEDURE

A. Initial Garbing Competency Evaluation

All personnel involved in sterile compounding, including those who directly supervise compounders, must
complete a garbing competency evaluation that includes:

« Visual observation of proper hand hygiene and garbing technique
» Gloved fingertip sampling from both gloved hands
B. Initial Gloved Fingertip Sampling

1. When Performed:

Page 2 DocumentID 12336 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 43



o Conducted after full garbing.

2. Frequency:
o Must pass three consecutive GFS tests (Initial)

o Must pass one GFS test (ongoing)

3. Action Limits:
o Post-garbing GFS: >0 CFUs (total from both hands) = failure

4, Incubation:
o At 30-35°C for >48 hours, then at 20-25°C for >5 additional days.

5. Failure & Remediation:

o Any failure requires remediation and a repeat of the entire sequence until all samples have
successfully passed.

6. Ongoing Gloved Fingertip Sampling

o Category 1 & 2 Compounding personnel: At least every 6 months
o Category 3 Compounding personnel: At least every 3 months
o Supervisors: At least annually

D. Initial Media Fill Testing

1. Must simulate actual or worst-case aseptic manipulations performed by the individual.

a. Aseptically attach one sterile filter needle to the sterile syringe.
b. Draw up the contents of the GroMed ampule into the syringe.
c. Inject the contents into the GroMed sterile vial.

d. Shake the vial gently to mix the TSB and indicator dye.

e. Using a new sterile needle for each transfer, withdraw 1 mL of TSB from the GroMed
vial and inject it into the GroMed sterile minibag.

f. Repeat this step 19 additional times (20 total transfers), using a new sterile needle
each time, but using the same syringe.

g. After the final transfer, the vial should be empty and the minibag should contain
approximately 120 mL of TSB.

h. Label the minibag with the compounder’s name or unique identifier and date of
compound

2. Includes:

o Visual observation of aseptic technique

o Aseptic transfers using sterile growth media
o Gloved fingertip sampling

o Surface sampling

3. Incubation:
o Media fill incubated for at 20-25°C for >7 days, then at 30-35°C for >7 additional days

Page 3 DocumentID 12336 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 44



o GFS incubated at 30-35°C for >48 hours, then at 20-25°C for >5 additional days
o Surface sample incubated at 30-35°C for >48 hours, then at 20-25°C for >5 additional days

4. Pass Criteria:
o No visible contamination in media.

o Post-media fill GFS <3 CFUs (total).
o Surface sample <3 CFUs (total).

5. Failure:
o Any growth in media or GFS and surface sample >3 CFUs = failure.

o Retraining and full retesting required.

6. Ongoing Media Fill Testing

o Category 1 & 2 Compounding personnel: At least every 6 months
o Category 3 Compounding personnel: At least every 3 months

o Supervisors: At least annually.

REFERENCES
United States Pharmacopeia. USP General Chapter <797>: Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile

Preparations. In: USP 46-NF 41. United States Pharmacopeial Convention; 2023. Accessed June 16,
2025.

Ql Medical. IFU0O14_GM7030: Directions for Use — Personal Aseptic Technique Test (PATT®2) kit.
Grass Valley, CA; November 2024. Available at: QI Medical website PDF. Accessed June 16, 2025.

AFFECTED DEPARTMENTS

Pharmacy

Page4 DocumentID 12336 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 45



Document ID 12336 Document Status Pending Committee Approval

Department Pharmacy Department Director Ravela, Naveen
Document Owner Florendo, Edwin Next Review Date
Attachments:

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:
{WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version
is in Lucidoc at

http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?returnto=%2Fcgi%2Fdoc-gw.pl%3Fref%3Dhhmh%3 A 12336%240.

Page 5 Document ID 12336 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital P age 46



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Alcohol Withdrawal Syndrome Medication Management

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 2/13/2026. PDFs should not be used as
official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc
makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness",

or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to
date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Approvals

« Committee Approval: Pharmacy & Therapeutics approved on 12/16/2025
o Committee Approval: Policy Committee approved on 2/5/2026

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12410

Revision Number: 0

Owner: Edwin Florendo,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
No revision note

Page 1

Page 47



DoclD: 12410
Revision: 0
Pending Committee

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Status: Approval
Department:Pharmacy
Manual(s):

Policy : Alcohol Withdrawal Syndrome Medication Management

PURPOSE

To provide standardized guidelines for the safe and effective medication management of Alcohol
Withdrawal Syndrome (AWS), ensuring timely assessment, appropriate pharmacotherapy, and
continuous monitoring to prevent complications.

POLICY

It is the policy to provide evidence-based medication management for alcohol withdrawal
syndrome, guided by the Clinical Institute Withdrawal Assessment for Alcohol, Revised (CIWA-Ar)
scale. This policy aims to prevent complications and ensure timely intervention and physician
notification, adhering to institutional guidelines, patient factors, and physician orders

DEFINITIONS
. IV: Intravenous.Administered into a vein.
. PQO: Administered by mouth (oral administration).

. CIWA-Ar: Clinical Institute Withdrawal Assessment for Alcohol, revised. A standardized scoring
tool used to assess alcohol withdrawal severity and guide treatment.

PROCEDURE

1. Admission and Initial Assessment

1.1 CIWA-Ar Scoring:

. Utilize the CIWA-Ar scale to assess the severity of alcohol withdrawal. The scale ranges from
0-70.
. Document the initial CIWA-Ar score upon admission.

1.2 Admission to Intensive Care Unit (ICU):

. Patients with an admission CIWA-Ar score greater than 20 should be admitted directly to
the ICU for close monitoring and management.

1.3 Medication Choice Considerations:

. Lorazepam: Is the drug of choice for patients with advanced liver disease or the elderly.

Page2 DocumentID 12410 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital P age 4 8



. Chlordiazepoxide and Diazepam: Should not be used in the elderly or in patients with hepatic
impairment.

2. Ongoing Assessment and Medication Administration

2.1 CIWA-Ar Reassessment Frequency:

. CIWA-Ar Score 0-9: Reassess score every 4 hours and as needed.

. CIWA-Ar Score 10 or greater: Reassess score every 1 hour until the score is less than 10 on 3
consecutive measurements.

. If CIWA-Ar score remains 20 or greater on two consecutive measurements, continue
benzodiazepines AND notify the physician immediately to determine if a dose adjustment is
needed.

2.2 Benzodiazepine Administration Based on CIWA-Ar Score:

. If CIWA-Ar score 20 or greater - severe agitation - must choose one
° Diazepam 10mg IV every 1 hour as needed for CIWA-Ar score greater than 19
° Diazepam 20mg IV every 1 hour as needed for CIWA-Ar score greater than 19
0 OR
° Lorazepam 2mg IV every 1 hour as needed for CIWA-Ar score greater than 19
° Lorazepam 4mg IV every 1 hour as needed for CIWA-Ar score greater than 19
. If CIWA-Ar score 10-19 - moderate agitation - must choose one

° Diazepam 5mg PO/IV every 1 hour as needed for CIWA-Ar score 10-19

° Diazepam 10mg PO/IV every 1 hour as needed for CIWA-Ar score 10-19
° OR

° Lorazepam 1mg PO/IV every 1 hour as needed for CIWA-Ar score 10-19
° Lorazepam 2mg PO/IV every 1 hour as needed for CIWA-Ar score 10-19

2.3 Respiratory Depression Protocol:

. If respiratory rate is less than 10 breaths per minute, hold all benzodiazepines immediately
and notify the physician.

2.4 Discontinuation of CIWA-Ar Assessment:

. After 24 hours, assess the need for ongoing CIWA-Ar assessment. Notify the provider for
discontinuation of the protocol if appropriate.

3. Phenobarbital Protocol (for Benzodiazepine Resistance)

3.1 Indications:

Page3 DocumentID 12410 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 49



. Consider phenobarbital if the patient has received a cumulative dose of 50mg of diazepam or
10mg of lorazepam and continues to exhibit symptoms of severe alcohol withdrawal
(suggesting benzodiazepine resistance).

. Phenobarbital has a synergistic effect with benzodiazepines.

3.2 Administration and Monitoring:

. Phenobarbital should only be used in the Intensive Care Unit (ICU).
. Dosage: 130mg IV every 15 minutes as needed for CIWA-Ar score greater than 19.

. Maximum Doses: Repeat for a total of 3 doses.

. Physician Notification: Contact the physician if CIWA-Ar remains greater than 19 after the
administration of 3 doses of phenobarbital.

3.3 Contraindications for Phenobarbital:

. Absolute Contraindications:
° Stevens-Johnson Syndrome
° Acute Intermittent Porphyria

. Avoid Use With Caution:
° Patients on retrovirals
° Hepatic encephalopathy

° Pregnancy
4. Nutrition and Vitamin Supplementation

4.1 Empiric Prevention of Wernicke's Encephalopathy and Korsakoff's Psychosis:

. Nutrition
° Dextrose 5% in Water with 100mg of thiamine, 1 mg folic acid and 1 multivitamin IV
. Empiric Prevention of Wernicke’s Encephalopathy and Korsakoff’s Psychosis in severe alcohol

use disorder
° Administer dextrose first whenever feasible
° Thiamine 100mg IV daily for 3 days
. Treatment of Wernicke’s Encephalopathy
° 200mg IV every 8 hours for 3 days
. Otherwise
° Thiamine 100mg PO daily
° Folic acid daily

Page4 DocumentID 12410 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 50



° Multivitamin daily
5. Safety and Precautions

5.1 Fall Prevention:

. Conduct a fall prevention risk assessment.

5.2 Seizure Precautions:

. Implement seizure precautions and continuous monitoring.
. Elevate the head of the bed to 30 degrees.

5.3 Restraints:

. Utilize soft mechanical 2-point restraints as indicated by patient condition and physician
order.

6. Clinical Communication

. Ensure clear and timely communication with the physician regarding CIWA-Ar scores,
medication administration, patient response, and any concerns (e.g., respiratory depression,

persistent severe agitation).
. Document all assessments, interventions, and communications thoroughly in the patient's
medical record.

REFERENCES

The ASAM Clinical Practice Guideline on Alcohol Withdrawal Management. J Addict Med. 2020
May/Jun;14(3S Suppl 1):1-72. doi: 10.1097/ADM.0000000000000668. Erratum in: J Addict Med. 2020
Sep/Oct;14(5):e280. doi: 10.1097/ADM.0000000000000731. PMID: 32511109.

AFFECTED DEPARTMENTS

Pharmacy

Nursing

Page 5 DocumentID 12410 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 51



Document ID 12410 Document Status Pending Committee Approval

Department Pharmacy Department Director Ravela, Naveen
Document Owner Florendo, Edwin Next Review Date
Attachments:

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version
is in Lucidoc at

http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?returnto=%2Fcgi%2Fdoc-gw.pl%3Fref%3Dhhmh%3 A 12410%240.

Page 6 DocumentID 12410 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 52



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Tranexamic Acid Administration Policy and Procedure for Trauma
Patients

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 2/13/2026. PDFs should not be used as
official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc
makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness",

or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to
date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Approvals

o Committee Approval: Pharmacy & Therapeutics approved on 12/16/2025
« Committee Approval: Policy Committee approved on 2/5/2026

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12406

Revision Number: 0

Owner: Edwin Florendo,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
No revision note

Page 1 Page 53



DoclD: 12406
Revision: 0
Pending Committee

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Status: Approval
Department:Pharmacy
Manual(s):

Policy : Tranexamic Acid Administration Policy and Procedure for
Trauma Patients

PURPOSE

To establish a standardized policy and procedure for the safe and effective administration of
Tranexamic Acid (TXA) in the management of hemorrhage in trauma patients, optimizing patient
outcomes by reducing blood loss and transfusion requirements.

POLICY

Tranexamic Acid (TXA) shall be administered according to established medical guidelines and within
the framework of this policy and procedure. Administration will be based on clinical indication,
patient assessment, and consideration of contraindications to ensure patient safety and therapeutic
efficacy in trauma patients. This policy applies to all healthcare professionals involved in the care
of trauma patients who may require or are receiving Tranexamic Acid (TXA) within San Benito
Health Care District

DEFINITIONS

. Creatinine Clearance (CrCl): A measure of renal function used to assess the kidneys' ability to
clear creatinine from the blood.

. Intravenous (IV): Pertaining to administration directly into a vein.

. Complete Blood Count (CBC): A blood test used to evaluate overall health and detect a wide
range of disorders, including anemia, infection, and leukemia.

PROCEDURE
Patient Assessment and Indications

Prior to TXA administration, a thorough patient assessment must be conducted to identify
appropriate indications and contraindications.

Indications: This Protocol addresses treatment of the patient who presents with traumatic, life-
threatening, non-compressible bleeding with any of the following:

. Systolic Blood Pressure <90 mmHg

. Heart Rate >110 beats per minute

Page2 Document|D 12406 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 54



. Bleeding or presumed bleeding that is NOT controllable by direct pressure, wound packing,
or tourniquet application

. Major amputation of any extremity proximal to the wrist or ankle
. Significant Blood Loss (>500 mL)

Contraindications

Do not administer Tranexamic Acid (TXA) if ANY of the following are present:

. Greater than 3 hours from injury

Patient has an active (within the last 24 hours) thromboembolic event (active stroke,
Myocardial Infarction (Ml), or Pulmonary Embolism (PE))

Traumatic Arrest >5 minutes

Any patient with a known allergy to Tranexamic Acid (TXA)
. Penetrating Cranial injury

. Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI) with exposed brain matter

Isolated hanging or drowning victims
. Cervical Cord Injury with motor deficits

General Dosage Guidelines

. Adult Dosing Guidelines (218 years old):

° Initial dose: 1 gram in 50 ml Normal Saline IV over 10 minutes.
° Maintenance dose: 1 gram in 500 ml Normal Saline IV over 8 hours after the initial
bolus.

Pediatric Dosing Guidelines (<18 years old):
° Initial dose: 15 mg/kg in 50 ml Normal Saline IV over 10 minutes.

g Maximum dose: 1 gram (1000 mg)_per dose

° Maintenance dose: 1 gram in 500 ml Normal Saline IV with a rate of 1 ml/kg/hr over
8 hours after the initial bolus

. Maximum rate: 62.5 ml/hr
Monitoring and Documentation
. Monitoring: Continuously monitor patient’s vital signs (especially blood pressure), bleeding
status, and laboratory parameters (e.g., CBC, coagulation studies) as clinically indicated.

Monitor for signs of allergic reaction, thromboembolic events, visual disturbances, and
seizures.

Page 3 DocumentID 12406 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 55



REFERENCES

. PATCH-Trauma Investigators and the ANZICS Clinical Trials Group; Gruen RL, Mitra B, Bernard
SA, et al. Prehospital Tranexamic Acid for Severe Trauma. N Engl J Med. 2023 Jul
13;389(2):127-136. doi: 10.1056/NEJM0a2215457. Epub 2023 Jun 14. PMID: 37314244,

. Chauncey JM, Patel P. Tranexamic Acid. 2025 Apr 26. In: StatPearls [Internet]. Treasure Island
(FL): StatPearls Publishing; 2025 Jan-. PMID: 30422504.

AFFECTED DEPARTMENTS

Emergency Department
Nursing

Pharmacy

Page4 DocumentID 12406 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 56



Document ID 12406 Document Status Pending Committee Approval

Department Pharmacy Department Director Ravela, Naveen
Document Owner Florendo, Edwin Next Review Date
Attachments:

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version
is in Lucidoc at

http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?returnto=%2Fcgi%2Fdoc-gw.pl%3Fref%3Dhhmh%3 A 12406%240.

Page5 DocumentID 12406 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 57



San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors
Committee Charter

SUBJECT DISTRICT FINANCE COMMITTEE
CHARTER
WRITTEN BY Board Ad Hoc Committee

APPROVED BY Board of Directors on 9/21/00

Resolution #

Other

REVISION
APPROVED BY

Q Recommends to the Board policies regarding business practices, financial
systems, and hospital financial performance benchmarks.

Q Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on business development
opportunities, and hospital contracts exceeding the authority of the Chief
Executive Officer.

Makes recommendations to the Board concerning capital improvements.

Reviews and recommends to the District Board for approval, the District budget
and financial performance.

Finance Committee Charter.doc.bod

Page 58



San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors
Committee Charter

SUBJECT DISTRICT NETWORKING COMMITTEE CHARTER

WRITTEN BY Board Ad Hoc Committee

APPROVED BY Board of Directors on 5/24/01
Resolution #
Other

REVISION
APPROVED BY

Qa Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on networking opportunities
with other facilities/entities that would be beneficial to and enhance the services
provided by Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital.

dJ Reviews Management Action Plan (MAP) and Strategic Plan for potential
networking opportunities.

Q Recommends Board approval to pursue networking actions that would add value
to and improve existing District healthcare services.

O Reviews annually all networking agreements and makes recommendations to the
Board for renewal, changes or cancellation.

Networking Committee Charter.doc.bod

Page 59



San Benito Health Care District

Board of Directors
Committee Charter

SUBJECT DISTRICT PLANNING AND FACILITIES
COMMITTEE CHARTER
WRITTEN BY Board Ad Hoc Committee
APPROVED BY Board of Directors on 9/21/00
Resolution #
Other
REVISION
APPROVED BY
Q Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board regarding the hospital’s three-

(3) year strategic plan.

Conducts an annual review of the three- (3) year strategic plan.

Recommends to the Board a Facility Master Plan and an annual Management

Action Plan (MAP).

Q Reviews specific business development facility projects in conjunction with the

Finance Committee.

a Reviews the Management Action Plan (MAP) and the hospital’s overall strategic
plan process and performance.

a Serves as a forum for consideration of community concerns and opportunities.

Planning & Facilities Committee Charter.doc.bod

Page 60



San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors
Committee Charter

SUBJECT JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

WRITTEN BY

APPROVED BY Board of Directors on 9/21/00

Resolution #

Other

REVISION
APPROVED BY

| Provide a forum for discussion of issues of mutual concern to the Medical Staff,
the Board of Directors, and Administration.

Q Recommends to the Board and Medical Staff, initiatives, policies and practices to
improve and support effective operations and the quality of care.

Ioint Conference Committee Charter.doc.bod

Page 61



JOINT COMMISSION
DOCUMENTS FOCUSED ON IN ASSESSING GOVERNING BODY COMPLIANCE
2009

Assure that the minutes of the Governing Body clearly reflect evidence that the following documents were reviewed,
approved, and — when necessary — acted upon:

Document

O Organization Policy upon Initiation and Whenever Revised. (simple policy review or procedures do not have
to be sent to the governing body)

O Mission, Vision, and Value Statements upon Development

O Strategic Plan

O Document Describing Scope and Degree of Leaders’ Involvement, Authority, and Responsibility in
Corporate-Level Policy Decisions

0O Hospital Plan for the Provision of Patient Care

O Annual Operating Budget and Long Term Capital Expenditure Plan

O Plan to Improve Organizational Performance (PI Plan)

0O Patient Safety Program / Annual Evaluation of the Patient Safety Program

Q  Periodic (quarterly) Reports on Performance Improvement Activities (specific data is up to the organization,
but at the least should include core measure performance, patient flow measurements)

Q Annual Evaluation of the Safety Program (seven plans)

@ Recommendation for Environment of Care Performance Improvement Project

O Annual Report on Staffing Effectiveness

O Annual Evaluation of the Infection Control Program

O Goveming Body Bylaws

Q Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules & Regulations

O Recommendations of Individuals for Medical Staff Membership / Credentialing

O Recommendations for Delineation of Physician Clinical Privileges

O Recommendations for Appointment / Reappointment to the Medical Staff

Page 62



SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL

SUBIJECT: PATIENT SAFETY PROGRAM LEADERSHIP/GOVERNANCE/MANAGEMENT

WRITTEN BY: PATIENT SAFETY OFFICER NUMBER: LD -411

APPROVED BY: EFFECTIVE: 09/07
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPLACES: 05/04
POLICY:

The San Benito Health Care District is committed to addressing the National Patient Safety
Goals through an organizational proactive risk reduction approach.

PROCEDURE

The Governing Board, Medical Staff, and Administration appoint a Patient Safety Officer. The
Patient Safety Officer collaborates with departments and Safety Programs within the
organization while focusing on continuous compliance with the current National Patient Safety
Goals. (National Patient Safety Goals all revised by the Joint Commission on an annual basis.)

The Patient Safety Officer facilitates the Patient Safety Committee members to fullfill the
specific expectations related to each goal. Recommendations for change, solutions to problems
identified and education feedback to staff are developed within the Committee. Compliance with
meeting expectations is measured and reported to the Safety and PI committees on a quarterly
basis.

Page 63



Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
at-BirecterSkilled Nursing Facility Medicine

Provider Name:

Privilege l

In order to be eligible to request clinical privileges for both initial appointment and reappointment, a practitioner must meet the following
minimum threshold criteria:
. Education: M.D. or D.O.
. Formal Training: The applicant must demonstrate successful completion of an ACGME or AOA - approved post-graduate
residency program in Internal Medicine, Emergency Medicine, or Family Practice.
. Required Clinical Experience: The applicant for initial appointment or reappointment must be abie to demonstrate that
he/she has satisfactorily performed services as an attending physician in an outpatient setting to at least 200 patients in
the past 24 months.

CORE: Privileges include the ability to admit and discharge patients to and from the SNF, order and interpret diagnostic tests, prescribe
treatments and medications, and consult with hospital based specialists.

Acknowledgement of Practitioner

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience and demonstrated performance I am qualified
to perform and for which I wish to exercise.

Signed:

Date:

Department Chair Recommendation

Aliprivilegesdelineatedhavebeenindividuallyconsideredandhavebeenrecommendedbased upon the physician's specialty, licensure, specific
training, experience, health status, current competence and peer recommendations

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make the following
recommendation(s):

[ 1 Recommend all requested privileges

[ ] Recommend privileges with the following conditions/modifications:
[ 1 Do not recommend the following requested privileges:

Department Chair Signature

Print Name

Date

Page 1 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 64




Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
Physician Assistant- Clinic Medicine

Provider Name:

Privilege |

In order to be eligible to request clinical privileges for both initial appointment and reappointment, a practitioner must meet the following
minimum threshold criteria:

. License: Hold a current, unrestricted Physician Assistant license issued by the Medical Board of California. The Physician Assistant
must also maintain a current, unrestricted Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) registration when requesting prescriptive
authority for controlled substances.

. Education: Graduate from an ARC-PA accredited Physician Assistant program.

. Certification: Maintain current certification by the National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants (NCCPA).

. Required Clinical Experience: The applicant must demonstrate current clinical competence by providing evidence of having
satisfactorily performed Physician Assistant services for a minimum of fifty (50) patients in a primary care setting within the
previous twenty-four (24) months. If requesting newborn and/or pediatric privileges, the applicant must additionally provide
documentation demonstrating recent clinical experience and competency in the evaluation and management of newborn and/or
pediatric patients, defined as:

o A minimum of twenty-five (25) documented newborn patient encounters, and/or
o A minimum of twenty-five (25) documented pediatric patient encounters.

Acceptable documentation may include case logs, training program encounter logs, or verification from a supervising physician or
employer. Applicants who do not meet the above minimum encounter requirements must complete a period of proctoring with direct
observation by an appropriately privileged physician until the required minimum number of supervised encounters has been achieved and
competency is confirmed in accordance with Medical Staff FPPE policy

. Other Requirements: Current BLS certification. Proof of Hepatitis B immunity or signed declination (Title 22 compliance).

SUPERVISION REQUIREMENT
Physician Assistants may exercise clinical privileges ONLY under the supervision of an appropriately privileged supervising physician.

A written Supervising Physician Agreement must be:

. Signed by both the provider and Supervising Physician
. Maintained on file in the Medical Staff Office
. Approved by the Medical Executive Committee

The PA:Must function within the scope of the supervising physician’s privileges

. Must have supervising physician availability consistent with state law and organizational policy
. Must foliow all co-signature, chart review, and delegation requirements established by the Medical Staff and California regulations

Failure to maintain an approved supervising physician automatically suspends the PA’s privileges until supervision is re-established. If the
applicant meets the above criteria, he/she may request privileges as specified below

Core Privileges

Perform physical examinations, obtains medical and famity histories

Diagnose and manage common acute and chronic conditions

Order, perform, and interpret routine diagnostic studies

Develop and implement treatment and care plans

Provide preventive care and health maintenance

THERAPEUTIC PROCEDURES

Liquid Nitrogen for wart removal

Immunization/therapeutic injections and medication administration

Splinting of sprains

Page 1 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 65



Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
Physician Assistant- Clinic Medicine

Provider Name:

Privilege

Application and removal of sutures/staples

Removal of impacted cerumen

Removal of superficial foreign bodies from the skin

Routine wound infections/abscess care

Routine minor wound and dressing care

Routine minor burn care

Routine epistaxis care

Newborn and Pediatric Care

Newborn Services

° Perform routine newborn well-baby examinations following hospital discharge
Assess growth, feeding, hydration status, and jaundice risk
Provide parent education, anticipatory guidance, and safety counseling
Order and review newborn screening results and appropriate follow-up
Coordinate referrals to pediatrics or specialty care when indicated
Silver Nitrate to umbilicus

Pediatric Services
. Perform well-child examinations in accordance with accepted preventive care guidelines
. Evaluate and manage common acute pediatric ilinesses (e.g., upper respiratory infection, otitis media, fever, minor injuries,
rashes, gastrointestinal illness)
Manage chronic pediatric conditions within scope of training and supervision
Immunization/therapeutic injections and medication administration
Provide developmental, behavioral, and other screenings in accordance with regulatory requirements
Order and interpret age-appropriate diagnostic tests

Trigger Point Injection*

*Performs trigger point injections for the treatment of myofascial pain after documented training and demonstration of competency (10
direct observation cases) under the supervision of a privileged physician.

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES: Assist physician in management of acute medical emergencies

Cardiopulmonary resuscitation

External hemorrhage

Syncope

Seizure

Anaphylaxis

Page 2 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 66



Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
Physician Assistant- Clinic Medicine

Provider Name:

Privilege

Acknowledgement of Practitioner

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience and demonstrated performance I am qualified to
perform and for which I wish to exercise.

Signed:

Date:

Department Chair Recommendation

All privileges delineated have been individually considered and have been recommended based upon the physician's specialty, licensure,
specific training, experience, health status, current competence and peer recommendations

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make the following
recommendation(s):

[ 1 Recommend all requested privileges

[ ] Recommend privileges with the following conditions/modifications:
[ 1 Do not recommend the following requested privileges:

Department Chair Signature

Print Name

Date

Clinic Medical Director Signature

Print Name

Date

Page 3 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 67



Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
Family Nurse Practitioner-Clinic Medicine

Provider Name:

Privilege |

In order to be eligible to request clinical privileges for both initial appointment and reappointment, a practitioner must meet the following
minimum threshold criteria:

. License: Hold a current, unrestricted license as a Registered Nurse and Nurse Practitioner in the State of California. The Nurse
Practitioner must also maintain a current, unrestricted Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) registration when requesting
prescriptive authority for controlled substances.

. Education: Graduation from an accredited Nurse Practitioner program (MSN or DNP)

. Certification: Board certification by the American Academy of Nurse Practitioners (or equivalent board)

. Required Clinical Experience: The applicant must demonstrate current clinical competence by providing evidence of having
satisfactorily performed Nurse Practitioner services for a minimum of fifty (50) patients in a primary care setting within the
previous twenty-four (24) months. If requesting newborn and/or pediatric privileges, the applicant must additionally provide
documentation demonstrating recent clinical experience and competency in the evaluation and management of newborn and/or
pediatric patients, defined as:

o A minimum of twenty-five (25) documented newborn patient encounters, and/or

o A minimum of twenty-five (25) documented pediatric patient encounters.
Acceptable documentation may include case logs, training program encounter logs, or verification from a collaborating physician or
employer. Applicants who do not meet the above minimum encounter requirements must complete a period of proctoring with direct
observation by an appropriately privileged physician until the required minimum number of supervised encounters has been achieved and
competency s confirmed in accordance with Medical Staff FPPE policy.

. Other Requirements: Current BLS certification. Proof of Hepatitis B immunity or signed declination (Title 22 compliance).

SUPERVISION REQUIREMENT

Nurse Practitioners may exercise clinical privileges ONLY with approved clinical privileges and standardized procedures.
Written standardized procedures must be:
° Signed by both the provider and collaborating physician

D Maintained on file in the Medical Staff Office
Approved by the Medical Executive Committee

Failure to maintain an approved collaborating physician automatically suspends the NP’s privileges until a collaboration is re-established. If
the applicant meets the above criteria, he/she may request privileges as specified below

Core Privileges

Perform physical examinations, obtains medical and family histories

Diagnose and manage common acute and chronic conditions

Order, perform, and interpret routine diagnostic studies

Develop and implement treatment and care plans

Provide preventive care and health maintenance

THERAPEUTIC PROCEDURES

Liquid Nitrogen for wart removal

Immunization/therapeutic injections and medication administration

Splinting of sprains

Application and removal of sutures/staples

Removal of impacted cerumen

Removal of superficial foreign bodies from the skin

Routine wound infections/abscess care

Page 1 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 68



Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
Family Nurse Practitioner-Clinic Medicine

Provider Name:

Privilege l

Routine minor wound and dressing care

Routine minor burn care

Routine epistaxis care

Newborn and Pediatric Care

Newborn Services

. Perform routine newborn well-baby examinations following hospital discharge
Assess growth, feeding, hydration status, and jaundice risk
Provide parent education, anticipatory guidance, and safety counseling
Order and review newborn screening results and appropriate follow-up
Coordinate referrals to pediatrics or specialty care when indicated
Silver Nitrate to umbilicus

Pediatric Services
. Perform well-child examinations in accordance with accepted preventive care guidelines
. Evaluate and manage common acute pediatric ilinesses (e.g., upper respiratory infection, otitis media, fever, minor injuries,
rashes, gastrointestinal iliness)
Manage chronic pediatric conditions within scope of training and supervision
Immunization/therapeutic injections and medication administration
Provide developmental, behavioral, and other screenings in accordance with regulatory requirements
Order and interpret age-appropriate diagnostic tests

Trigger Point Injection*

*Performs trigger point injections for the treatment of myofascial pain after documented training and demonstration of competency (10
direct observation cases) under the supervision of a privileged physician.

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES: Assist physician in management of acute medical emergencies

Cardiopulmonary resuscitation

External hemorrhage

Syncope

Seizure

Anaphylaxis

Acknowledgement of Practitioner

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience and demonstrated performance I am qualified to
perform and for which I wish to exercise.

Signed:

Date:

Department Chair Recommendation

All privileges delineated have been individually considered and have been recommended based upon the physician's specialty, licensure,
specific training, experience, health status, current competence and peer recommendations

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make the following
recommendation(s):

Page 2 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 69



Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
Family Nurse Practitioner-Clinic Medicine

Provider Name:

Privilege

[ ] Recommend all requested privileges
[ ] Recommend privileges with the following conditions/modifications:
[ 1 Do not recommend the following requested privileges:

Department Chair Signature

Print Name

Date

Clinic Medical Director Signature

Print Name

Date

Page 3 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 70



Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
CLINIC- Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner

Provider Name:

Privilege |

In order to be eligible to request ciinical privileges for both initial appointment and reappointment, a practitioner must meet the following
minimum threshold criteria:

. License: Hold a current, unrestricted license as a Registered Nurse and Nurse Practitioner in the State of California. The Nurse
Practitioner must also maintain a current, unrestricted Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) registration when requesting
prescriptive authority for controlled substances.

. Education: Graduation from an accredited Nurse Practitioner program (MSN or DNP) with PMHNP program completion

° Certification: Board certification by the American Academy of Nurse Practitioners (or equivalent board), or National certification
as PMHNP

. Required Clinical Experience: The applicant must demonstrate current clinical competence by providing evidence of having
satisfactorily performed Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner services for a minimum of fifty (50) patients within the
previous twenty-four (24) months. Acceptable documentation may include case logs, training program encounter logs, or
verification from a collaborating physician or employer. Applicants who do not meet the above minimum encounter requirements
must complete a period of proctoring with direct observation by an appropriately privileged physician until the required minimum
number of supervised encounters has been achieved and competency is confirmed in accordance with Medical Staff FPPE policy.

. Other Requirements: Current BLS certification. Proof of Hepatitis B immunity or signed declination (Title 22 compliance).

SUPERVISION REQUIREMENT

Nurse Practitioners may exercise clinical privileges ONLY with approved clinical privileges and standardized procedures.
Written standardized procedures must be:
. Signed by both the provider and collaborating physician

. Maintained on file in the Medical Staff Office
Approved by the Medical Executive Committee

Failure to maintain an approved collaborating physician automatically suspends the NP’s privileges until a collaboration is re-established. If
the applicant meets the above criteria, he/she may request privileges as specified below

PSYCHIATRIC MENTAL HEALTH

Diagnose and treat common acute psychiatric problems, ilinesses and crises

Psychopharmacologic management

Provide individual and family psychotherapy

Care for and counsel clients with common identified chronic psychiatric conditions

Coordinate and integrate multidisciplinary services for clients with complex psychiatric problems

Provide comprehensive family psychiatric-mental health education

Work with clients and their families in anticipation of developmental milestones, life cycle events

Perform or recommend age-appropriate screening procedures

Promote wellness-oriented self-care

Advocate for family psychiatric-mental health ciients and their families

Acknowledgement of Practitioner

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience and demonstrated performance I am qualified to
perform and for which I wish to exercise.

Signed:

Date:

Page 1 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 71



Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Delineation Of Privileges
CLINIC- Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner

Provider Name:

Privilege

Department Chair Recommendation

Allprivilegesdelineatedhavebeenindividuallyconsideredandhavebeenrecommendedbased upon the physician’s specialty, licensure, specific
training, experience, health status, current competence and peer recommendations

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make the following
recommendation(s):

[ ] Recommend all requested privileges

[ ] Recommend privileges with the foliowing conditions/modifications:
[ 1 Do not recommend the following requested privileges:

Department Chair Signature

Print Name

Date

Clinic Medical Director Signature/or Chair, Interdisciplinary Practice Committee

Print Name

Date

Page 2 Printed on Monday, February 23, 2026

Page 72



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2026 - 4:30 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"? FLOOR - GREAT ROOM

San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive health care
resource for its patients, physicians and the community.

1. Call to Order

2. Update on Current Projects
e Project Dashboard — January 2026

3. Review Financial Updates
e Financial Statements — January 2026
e Finance Dashboard — January 2026
e Supplemental Payments — January 2026
e HCALI - Rural Health Transformation Program

4. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Commercial Lease with Ceglia Properties, LLC.
e Report
e Committee Questions
e Motion/Second

5. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Professional Service Agreement with Focus Physical
Therapy and Gym Management Services, Inc.
e Report
e Committee Questions
e Motion/Second

Page 73



6. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Master Service Agreement with Innova Revenue
Group.
e Report
e Committee Questions
e Motion/Second

7. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Weapons Detection System Xtract One in the amount
of $138,276.64.
e Report
e Committee Questions
e Motion/Second

8. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Architectural Fee for Lab Remodel Phase 3 & 4.
e Report
e Committee Questions
e Motion/Second

9. Public Comment

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to exceed
three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board Committee, which are
not on this agenda.

10. Adjournment

The next Facilities and Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 23,2026 at
4:30 p.m.

The complete Facilities and Finance Committee packet, including subsequently distributed materials and
presentations, is available at the Facilities and Finance Committee meeting and in the Administrative Offices of
the District. All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Facilities and Finance Committee. Staff
and Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Facilities and Finance Committee.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular business hours at 831-
636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable
accommodations.

Page 74



Jopdang zZaepul
uoisioap Buipusd ABojolpoy/qQoi ayepnuIag
‘ubissp

DUDWSBYDS 8y} Ul pIo BunssuIbul
0} JIom pup sjposodoid .m\./m_ .Zm&om
. Ya3j0ag DulpuSd 8j1n ‘Ajundas

payiwgns uoyooyddo| zouwoy S6.07
’ ‘juswsboudw
B j¥OH "eulippap AouabBiawy
9Z/1/1 @u} I10}3q 10 1042811q

payIwgns Aj|nyssaoons
up|d aouodwod

91/ 40

Jeam anp spig ¥Z/Z OO
Uhm djom ays “paysod

S PIQ 10§ JUBWISSILIBADY

$321A19S [DIIBINS
10 Joy08iQ

DINJUBA
~i99ns IPUSW

"ZOT NV [HU0 pSpUSIxs
ud8Q SOY JOAIDM

HJdGD Xl fudidlyns

s921AI88 |D2IBING DINJUBA
11 995 0} JuswadD(dB) 0 0403l -1agns IpuUsw
pod 1sdpays/is|ows 10 1012910 :
10y uoypBYysaul
{owsiul Buipusd
v
uo Jjo ubis oy 0D puo 1op081Q zaI9pul
OS54 IvOH Buipuad|  ABojoipoy/qoT ayjeppuIag
‘PBUOYS SOY 9C S50Yd
'z osoyd ojul lopdanq za19pul
pejior uesq soy pup ABojoipDY/aD ajjapouleg
1N0 Pasod st joaloid ’
‘ssuIyoDW
UO UIny O} }IsiA 4is 09 J040311Qg DoAY USBADN
Buipuad ‘UuolINYSUOD Aopulioyd
paje|dwoD soY Woa|
ajppdn al0y| JapjoyarNoys Aa)

WV 62:L 9202/€1/¢

SLIO|S Apoay a3ow
asl §coe/ /0L dW uaym disy o} Jounai] pod Jo)ipig Buibow,
SPIDPUDS
£60Z/ /1 5Zoz/1/1 1| Aeyps 3 @ouD|dwo) Diwsias QluIsIBS
IVDH 88w o} epoibdn
(uswindag Buissad0id a(usis
Ly 9zoT/ /11 STOT/91L/6 Joy juswudinbe s gy 00F| tuswaoo|dey 1azZ(UatS
ODSWY M3U JO UOUD|(O4sul
1££)  9zoe/ig/el $202/02/L 1 suswalnboy plIngay ¥O
¢ QdHsO Jad ¥O Buyppdn :
699 9202/ /Y 2o/ /9 (uswoniday 1ezAIpuy Z 9s0uUd Qo
{AluO uonoPIDA)
019 920¢/1/T vzoT/L/9 siozAiouy BupPDIBAN | 95DYd go7
1494 9z0T/1/€ yeoe/viTlL ADI! 10} SBUIYODW SIXAd MBN uoyojiolsul ag
snipys| uoyping AA[ 09 3ipQq HDYS asoding QWDN joafo1d

sayi1op4 - pIDOqYsDQ §23f01d 9Z0T 934

Page 75



WV 62:4 9202/€T/T

UODDO| MBU

Adpisyy I0DI1SAUd

oy} 4o Apnys Aliqisos) 10 1043310 OPOAYST UNT | WNIPSW
wiopad o} Bunoo ’
‘Buiuunid soysiBo|
$sNosIP 0} Ao|nBal
Buysaw woa} [ouIaju| (4Ns] ~ BuISInN

'10§2D4U0 D Buuooy
10} |osodoid pup
1981y2ID 10} [pAcsddD
ipsodoid Buipuad

1O J0}284Q WLdjuUY

uoSIAD(Q 83JADM

Buuasuibul

‘ToA0IddD [YDH Jsyo 'SAJ ‘A48408
HIDJS ||IM UOHDNUSUOD 9417 :AjN2as zonLDY 8610 46}

‘pajLgns usaq Juswaboubw : :
soy joaloid {5) sjonbBey Aouablawg
jo Jop08nq
JJOPUBA YHM SBDIASD JO

Buiun} puo uoypziwydo SODIAISS

uoyDO[ 10} 210D 8INdY Zopuonula4 J0f ybiH

Buudoald ‘pata|dwod
L UORDNYSUOD

JO J040811Q Jo1udS

$3DIA8P

[ID IIDisUL AIIND}O0

O} 85n0US3JOS PadU [Iim
II4S "€2/2 0 3@8m xuddo
HIDJS ||IIM UODNUSUOD
uay} 9ouDnNss!

Huuad BuIpEng (VOH
Buipuad "uUOYINLYSUOD
Hoys o) dnoto 8i0D
ay] O} pPanss! jODHUOD

Buuasulbug
'SAT ‘Aj3jos
8y :Ajundag
tueweboubw
AouabBlaw]

1O 10423110

zanuwny a6ior

puowap Bulcbuo ypm diay |apoway
PIoH UO S §20z/L/9 O} UODOO| JuBLND Bulpupdxg| diuND Adoisy) [0DISAYd
ANS @PISYLON 2y o Buuooy Bunooyy
asl 920z/1/1 obpIoys pun UBYDy aoodaY|  USYOHY INS SPISYHON
BleleTIVETN e}
snopJiozoy b Buieq o} enp
0LE 920T/1/9 6z0z/4T/S| o pasoyd aq o} paiinbal podileH a3
s| ¥ Ut pamoyio sabuo) ou
PUD WSSAS J44¥ UD S| WBYSAS
6. 9T0T/L/S yzoT/TL/y Ajunoas juojul SOHIND9S/SONH
asi SZOT/1L/E| $$8922V 100( + OSS / Ajunoas DPOYIBA,

sayiIop4 - piooqyspq j23foid 9Z0T 934

Page 76



WV 62:L 970Z/€1/T

Page 77

%001 £l V10l
%0 0 MO
%LE 4 WNIPaW
%69 6 Yo+
% INNOD ALYONd
% ALIMOIYd 1D3rO¥d
%001 el V1Ol
%8 L
%8 1
%8 1 PIOH UO
%0 0 R
%LL 0l > mmm_.mo_n_ u
any 0B pauuold %0 0 Pap0}s 1ON
aAl-0B paipwlsa % INNOD SNivis
% SNLVIS ASVL
sjpjo]
Buussuibul
'SA3 ‘A13jo§
‘ubisap 2DWBYIS U aj17 ‘A28 21D Adoalayy spods snoo4
$}0B4IYDID Yy Buniom Juswabouow zauIoy SBior | WNIPSW aal seoe/1/L pundxa pup 8jDAOUUSY Adoieyy spods sno4
Aousbiswg
j0 Joyoaiq

say|1oD4 - pIDOqyspQ §29foid 920T 834



‘ San Benito Health Care District
HCIZ@| A Public Agency ‘

HOWKI NS 911 Sunset Drive
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Hollister, CA 95023-5695
SKILLED NURSING FACILITIES (831) 637-6711
HOME HEALTH AGENCY

San Benito Health Care Districi

February 23, 2026

CFO Financial Summary for the District Board:

For the month ending January 31, 2026, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $1,415,733 compared to a
budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $507,787. The District exceeded the budget for the month by $907,946.

YTD as of January 31, 2026, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $8,742,700 compared to a budgeted
Surplus (Loss) of $6,473,259. The District is exceeding its budget YTD by $2,269,441.

Acute discharges were 133 for the month, under budget by 30 discharges, 19%. The ADC was 13.61
compared to a budget of 14.79. The ALOS was 3.17. The acute I/P gross revenue was slightly under
budget by $121,299 or 2% while O/P services gross revenue exceeded the budget by $2.35 million or
8%. ER I/P visits were 105 and ER O/P visits were under budget by 145 visits or 6%. The RHCs &
Specialty Clinics treated 3,928 (includes 650 visits at the Diabetes Clinic) and 1,110 visits respectively.

Other Operating revenue exceeded budget by $793,815 due mainly to:

1) $250,000 in recruitment funding from CCAH payments.
2) Additional accruals for various supplemental payments.

Operating Expenses exceeded the budget by $921,502 due mainly to: overages in Registry of
$206,147, Employee Benefits of $272,650 and Professional Fees of $445,803 being slightly offset by
savings in Salaries & Wages Expense of $132,536.

Non-operating Revenue exceeded the budget by $79,919 due to the timing of donations from the
Foundation.

The SNFs ADC was 89.71 for the month. The Net Surplus (Loss) is $195,150 compared to a budget of
$106,433. YTD, the Net Surplus (Loss) is $1,791,611 exceeding the budget by $1,074,291.

We bring you... Health, Compassion & Innovation



Page 79

[£4 983 4: 0] 4 6S%'096°'T LvT'L8L'E 90L'LEBL'S 968°'S90°C L99 Lz0'828 TL0 82T 860 'ZS6 {S507) FWOONI ONIIVYIIO LIN
vLE'888'88 T TST'L¥8 €81°€0Z'L6 SEE ‘06086 L¥Z EEIET 8 THZ'080°T 6LL'STT 7T TZ0'96T°ST SISNEIXE TYLOL
96E‘E£ET'E (L) (€zg‘oLe) $50°'2L6’E zez'toL’e 609 '8%Y z 529°'TT 102925 978 ‘8¢S YIHLO
665 /€62 (1) (69982) 906 'LET LEZ'60T S0T’S (8%) (90€'6) TES'61 SZT'01 LSITATLNI
Z6S°'61Z°T g L9L'89T 0Zv’'90Z'2 LBL'SLE’T €9%'€0¢E zT ¥0€ '8¢ Z0ZT'STE 905 '€S€E LJOWY 3 NOILLVIDAA4IA
EELETT'T L 000 ‘s8 S8Z°'88T°T S8Z'€LZ'T 689081 €T ovs’1e §SL°69T S62'16T TYINTY
STz €ZE’S (1) (125 '61T) ST9‘EBS'6 S60°¥ZV’6 9ZV T6YV'T 0 SSS 90T 06€'T T9906€°T SFOTAYIS QESVYHIUNG
€62 '¥PL'L T LTP'9TT Z9¢£'186'8 6LL'LE0'E 6z2'982'T 8 985 ‘10T 668°0TE'T S8V 'ZTIV T S9114d40S
0L5'%S0°'TT Tt 195°802°T 80T €TS'TT 699°'12L 2T 95L'THS'T Lz £IS'SPY ¥8L VYT L62'060°'2 5384 TYNOISSHIOYd
808'9LZ'ST 0 (tZL’s%) LPSOTT LT LZT8'%90°LT SE9°TSE’Z 9t 059'S6¢ SE93'2ES‘Z SBZ‘826°'T SLIJ4ANIE FTAOTIWE
£50°609'¢€ Lz TI8T'000°T 069°LL9'E TLB'LLY'Y 89€ ‘1TSS [34 802°'LzZ ¥8€°STS T65°TSL RYLS IO
9TT ' b2T'SE (€) (zvo'L92'1) S6T°2L8'8E £51°'609'LE L96'TLE'S (€) (EEV'EST) Z8Z'T89°S 6¥8°L25'S SAOYM 3 SHIWVIVS
:SISNAdXE ONIIVYELO0
LEV'TEL LB € 219°L08'Z 0EY 066001 Z¥0'86LE0T EPT'663'ST €1 692806 'T 0S8 6€ET %1 6TT'BYVT 9T ANNIATY ONILWYIJO LIAN
SEBGE6’ Y tL YI8°LEC’S 69%'8¢€2'8 €82'9L5 VT 08€°'LYS oL S18'€6L ELL'SET'T B8S 6261 FNNIAZE ONILY¥EE0 ¥FHLIO
Z99°S6L 26 () (Z0Z '0£S'€) T96 ‘TSL'Z6 65L'122'68 €9L'TIST'ST 6 PSPIPTT'T LLO'VOT €T TES'8TZ VT ANNAASE INFIIYd LIAN
00L'S66°8LT ] £S1°68T6'8 TL9'T9% 68T ST8'6LE'H6T 86E'009 0T s S§08'692'1 002'566°LZ 500'S9Z°62 HNNIATY WO¥4 SNOILONAEA TYLOL
0 (4448134 0 TTT'SST 0 (68¢€) 0 (68¢) MOTTY TYALOWALNOD SAAA\LSITYLIdSOH
60T '6VL2E S 8L9'€89°T 059°08L EE 8Z€'¥9¥°S¢E 0Z8°'080°'S S 09v'9te LE6T66'Y L6E'8ZT'S SINFWLSACAY ONY STYALOVYINCD ¥IHLO
BSE ‘0L 89 LLy 8vl 995'812Z €V0'L9€E £6L°T (8) (sLv’'2) €0E'2E 82862 YYD ALIYVHD
€L8°922°S (62) (886°2L0'2) TH0'660°L $50°920°S PEL' 69T (89} (TL6°s0L) 86€'0%0'1 8TV PEE FSNIdXd LEId V"
80Z'989°69 L S09'€99°% 106 ‘122°TL 906588 '9¢L EEV'6T8'6 €T T99°'PHE’T ¥€9'1L9°0T S67°'9T0'2T SEONYMOTTY TYALOVHINOD TYD-IAZW
TST'€9T°TL 9 09T 0%E’® €TS TPT 9L €L9'18%'08 619'822'¢6 ¥ 8T5'L6E 826 ‘852 11 9bY 959 TT STONYMOTTY TYALOVALNOD HAVIIAIW
PANNEATY WO¥d SNOILONAEA
19€ 'T6L'TLE & 756 ‘L8BE’S £€9°€1Z 28T S85°T09°L8T T9T'2SL6E 9 852 '¥8E’T LLT'660°TY SES €8V €Y FNNFATY INAILYd SSO¥D TVLIOL
ETE'EV6 €02 2z Z17'602’°S €8L°E00 ' ¥TZ 566712 612 £0€'2€270¢ 8 €89°SvE’2 606902 'T¢E z65°'255'€¢€ FNNIATE LNIILVALNO SSOUO TYLOL
0 bZh99L 0 TV '99L 0 6z¢'66 0 62€'66 FONIATY d\O SAHd\LSITYLIdSOH
ETE'EV6 "£0T z 8BL ZVY 'Y €8L°€00'¥TZ TLS'9¥% '8TT €0E'2ZET'OE L ¥SE'9VT T 606 '90Z°1¢€ €9Z'€SY'EE FONEATY INZLLY4LIOO AYTTTIONY
8v0°8b8°L9 0 6EL LT 05860289 €85 '88€'89 8586156 0 SLS'8E 89€'268°6 EV6'0E6°6 FNNIATY LNIILYANI SSO¥D TYLOL
0 oLe‘e9T’'t [4 0L€'292°T 0 €E€E'6ST 0 €€E’6ST ANNIATY d\I SAFI\LSITYIIISOH
£66 '912°0¢ (8) (ECL'SPE'2) 0€0'200'0¢€ L62'955°LZ 6269 % (9) (L60°2ZL2) €ST'2Z0E'Y 950°'0€0'¥ SANIAZY LNILLYANI AAVTIIONY
OTE'bEGET (z} (S8%'662) 005'ZTS'¥T 9T10'€TZ'%1 096'650°2 0 0€E’E 005'260°2 0€8°560°C FANIATE INILOOY JINS
SSL'969 €T L t85°199°1 0ZE'569°¢€L L06’95€ ST L00’'166°2 4 600°8¥%T STL'LEV'E ¥ZL'S¥I'E ANNBAZY ENILOOY FLADY
*EANZAGN INIILVd SSO¥D
SZ/1E/10 SONVINVA SONVINVA 9Z/1€/10 9Z/1€/10 sZ/1E/T0 FONVINYA AORVIYVA 9Z/1€/10 9Z/1€/T0
¥A YOINd LNEIDYSd 9aN/S0d rESa0d TYOLOV ¥x yOI¥d INZONSd DEAN/S0d laoang TYOLOY
B it R ity TIVA-OL-YWRR---=~-=-~=====-=---~ semmemamoaaan | [EEER e L L EE PR ---------HINOW INSHUAD----~=-=-===-----= B e
9Z/1¢/10 QOI¥Ed ¥Od
€2056 YO ‘¥ALSITIOR
QENIEWOD - TVYII4SOH TVINOWEW SNINNVE TEZVH

1 39%d

TINTIIQS - 12sQ
L¥ZT ® 9T/91/20 :23eq




$TL°TT 0% TE $10°2 LIV 9 12678 $€2°9T $58°5%T 302°S $LS°€ 2LL78 NIDYWK (SSOT) SATAYAS LEN
350°6 $59° LY 36L° 1 3SL°€E §¥5°S 9T €T 1$69°9L5 22075 $L8°0 %06°S NIDYYW ONILWY¥EdO
$6€°€T 1€0°LZ 391" 2 326 L 190°0T 3997 LT 1¥6° €01 30€°S 10T°S $6€°0T NID¥YW YaIgs
LTL'SBO'ET § %95°0¢€ 2308 2 4 2K -] €L8'866°L $ OLL'EFY'OT $ LB6'89L°C § 38T TET voL 256 $ TEL'STL $ SLY'8L9'T § waIgs
SBL'9VY'TT St hv‘692°2 652 ELY'9 0oL ZYL'S 9%0’'8%S'2 6LT 9%6‘L06 LBL'LOS TEL'STP'T (S501) SN14¥NS LAN
€99'€09°2 zt 286 '80€ 210°989°2 ¥66 66T %1 28¥ 12 616°6L 9TL'€BE SE9'€9Y (ISNAAXE) /INNTAFY ONILVIZAO-NON TYLOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOTLAHIYLNOD NOILWAOEWT10D
9bT '8 [4 344 SLE'TT 029’11 260°C (£T) (€12) S29°1 (44 20 HWOONI INIWLSHANI
(EBT’S6T) ¥ (889°'9) (¥6T'65T) (z8B’'S9T) (z1e’'82) 62 (56%'9) (zvL'z2) (LEZ'62) ASNEdXE YIA0-NON YIHLIO
T96'E1T (%) (6ES'¥) €6L'PTT ¥S2'0TT ZS8'LT (z) (0tTE) 66€°91 680'9T FNNIAZY YFJO-NON ¥THLO
(0LS5S¥) 0 3 (86L7LZ%) (S6L'LZY) (180'59) 0 0 (¥TT'19) ($TT'19) ISNAIXT\ANNIATA INI QNOH 0D
0P TET'T 0 (€) 86L'L9Z°T S6L'L9T'T ST6'SLT 0 0 $TT 18T YT 18T SAXYL d0dd ANOE 0D
¥58°L89°T 0 0 8€0'6EL'T 8EO6EL'T [4488 4 14 0 0 YEY'BVT vEY'8¥Z FONIAZY XYL ALIIIO¥d
TSH'ETT 622 ¥96 '61€ 000'0%T %96 '6SY Z95'8ET SEY LEG'98 000'0Z LE6°90T SNOIL¥NOQ
1 ASNAAXT\ENNIATY ONILVHIdO-NON
SZ/1€/10 FONVINVA FONVIdVA 9Z/1€/10 9z/1€/10 sz/te/10 FONVINVA SONVI¥VA 9Z/1€/T0 9z/1€/10
UX YOIV INED¥Ed OHEN/S04 rasang TYAIOV ¥X 4OT¥d INADUEI DEN/504 180009 TYOIOY

-HINOW INEWMOD--=--~====<=-<~=cmce-sozcnooc]

9Z/1€/10 QOI¥Hd ¥Od

€2056 YO ‘¥ALSITIOR
QEANIGHOD - TVLIASOH TVIHOWEWR SNIXMVE TAZVE

Z govd

TAOYTIAS *I3S()
LYZT ® 9T/91/20 ‘2=

Page 80




Z86°LOT'8 LT 891 °'988 1LZ'S6Z°¢€ 6EV'TBT ¥ LEZT'996'T vEY ‘T TIE'6€L 0EB'6Y TvT 68L (SSOT) FWODNI ONILVHEEO LAN
LB6'608°SL 1 260’ €EE9 85891V €8 05660 ¥8 809°L69°1T 8 z05'126 €ZE'CET'TT SZ8'¥SO'ET SASNFdXE TYLOL ~—
zZ9'EWL T (8) (LZE€'9LT) $68'0€S € L95'¥SZ € LEV' 60V € €85 '€T 956 '18Y 6ES'S6Y ¥IHLO oC
665 €62 (12} (699 '82) 906 'LET LEZ'60T SOT'S (8¥) (90€'6) TES'6T szz'0T LSSYALINT ()]
8S9°9¥6°T 8 ¥Z9'191 EET'EE6'T LSL'¥60°'T S¥0'v97 €T Tve'9€ T19T°9LZ 205'ZTE LAOWY ¥ NOILWIDHHLAQ (®))
EET'ZTLOT [4 z00 ‘LY €S9'0€T'T SS9LYT T €86 'S9T ot 856°ST 6€8 19T LeL LLT TYLNIY o
zL8'0€9’8 (1) (€ze’ 121} 8v.L'0Z8'8 ST0'669°8 €66 '€8E'T (48] (STT'L 1) 6685821 veL 89z’ SEOIAYIS AISYHOUNG _nul
628090 'L 0 €18°T 699°L62'8 z8€'662'8 TOE'T8T'T L 8L6°68 TES'TT2'T 605'20¢'T SEI14d0S
00T'6€0°TT 11 t6s’0TT T 809 ‘S6¥’TT 66T'90L°2T 9I¥s'6€9°T Lz £08°'SYY v8zZ'Z¥3 ' T L80'880°C SEEd TYNOISSAA0Ad
TLT'€98'TT (2) (986 '852) 506 'TLS €T 616 'ZTE €T ¥66°098°'T ¥ 059°'zZLZ €ET'8T0°2 €8L'062°2 SLIJENIE FIROTIWI
996°1IBZ '€ Lz 85¢°'068 0ZTEEE’'E 8Lb €T’V ¥SS'20S €Y Ly1'302 09T'9LY LOE'Z89 A4LSIOEA
6€0°8L8'LT (€) (€67 '296) ZZ0°691° 1€ 6zL'z0T 0€ 6%9'LLZ'Y (€) (9€5'2Z¢€T) 628855V v6Z 92V’ Y SAOYM 3 SHIYVIVS
:SASNEAXE ONILVEIJO
696'L16'€8 z 092°61S'T 6Z1'ZTIL 98 68€°1£2'88 p¥8 €99 €T 5T ET8°099°T €ST€8T'ZT 996 '€¥8 €1 INNIATI ONIIWVNALO JLADV 13N
SE8°'GE6 'Y 89 SOT'€66°S 69%°'8EZ'8 PLS'TER'ET 08€°LYS 9 8zy'L89 CLL'SET'T 10Z'€28'T ANNFAHY ONILV¥EJO UFHLO
YET’'Z86 '8L (5} (yv8'€L0' %) 099°'€Ly 8L 918 '66E VL YIP9TT €T 6 SBE’ELE 08E’L¥0 1T §9.°'020°2T FNNIATY INIILYd JLOOY L3N
v0L’09€°9LT S 192°2Z¢’'6 686 °TLS'98T 052 '¥68°S61 ¥69°'¥92'¥2 S 666'052°1 8.0'995°LZ SL0°LT8'8Z AONIATY WO¥A SNOLLONAEd FLADV TYIOL
0 zzT'SST 0 zZT'SST 0 (68€) 0 (68¢€) MOTTVY TYAIDVALNOD SAAd\LSITYLIGSOH
058'606°Z¢€ S 0L6 6TL'T 96T 'LES EE 99z ‘LSz 'SE 355 '910°S 4 €TV 6T TOL'9S6 ¥ YZT'6¥%T'S SINAWLSNOAY ANV STYALOVALNOD ¥FHLO
8S€E'0LT 99 0Z8 ' €HT 995°812 98¢ 'Z9¢ €6L't (8) (sty'z) €0€'2¢E 828'62 JUYD ALINYHD
T%Z'982°S (62) (LSS'8T0°2) Zv0'¥90°L S8V ‘SY0’S LIL'TLY (z9} (0EE'SP9) 86€°'S€0°'T 690°'06¢ ASNI4XI LEIa dVE
LE0'086°'89 L $85°5v2'S LET'ERS'TL zZzL'89L 9L 0ZV'0EL’E €T L¥0'9LE"T Z88°0L5'01 626°'996 11 SEINYMOTTY TYNLOVALNOD TVO-IdaW
81Z'PT¥ 69 9 TZT'9L0’ Y 8%6'82Z°¥L 69T'S0£ 8L 89T'9%0°6 € ZeZL’0tEE Z6L'0L6'0T PISTOE IT SEINYMOTTY TYALOVALNOD FAVOIQIW
TELOOY FNNIATE WO¥d SNOLIDAQId
BEB’'2ZPE'SST z LIv’8ve’s 6%9°5%0 592 990°'¥62°0LT 85T 'I8E'LE 9 yge‘vee’'e 95% €19 '8¢€ 0%8'LEB 'OV INNAATY INAILYd 3LODY SSO¥D TYLlOL
ETE'EV6 €02 z 212'602°S €8L°€00' %12 5662712612 £0€2EZ'0¢€ ] €89°5%E'2 606 °90Z'TE Z65'255 €€ HANSAZY LNSILVJLNO SSO¥D TYIOL
0 14 28-ETR 0 vzy'99L 0 62E'66 0 6Z%'66 FANNIATY d\O LSITYLIdSOH
ETE'EV6 ' €0T z 88L CHY'¥ €8L €00 ¥IT TLS 9%V 81T £0€'Z€T’0€E L pSE9VZ T 606°902°1¢€ €97 /€S EE ANNIATY INIIIVALAO AIYTIIONY
v25°66€°TS 0 S0Z'6€ 998 'T¥0 ‘TS TLO'T80°TS S58°9%1°L (z) (662'12T) L¥S'90% 'L 8%2'S58Z L FANIATY INITIVANI SSOED TYIOL
0 0LE’29Z'T 0 0LE’ZIT'T Q €EE6ST 0 €€£'6ST 20NIATY d\I LSITYLIISOH
69L'20L"LT (1T} (zsL’'v88'2) 9¥S9%E LT ¥6L 19V 9T 8vg ' LsT’Y (1) (1v93'82C%) 7E8'806°¢€ T6T'08Y'€E BANIAZY INFILVANI AAVTIIONY
SSL'969'€Z L L85°199°T 0ZE'S69°€2 L0695€'ST L00't66'2 ¥ 600891 STL'LEY'E $ZLSPIE INNIATY ANILNOY
JEANIATY INFIIVd SSO¥D
SZ/TE/T0 FONVIYVA FONVINVA 9z/TE/10 sz/1e/10 sz/1e/10 SONVINVA HONVINVA 9Z/1€/10 9Z/TE/T0
¥X JOTud INFOHEA 9EN/S04 13oang ™NALOV ¥X YOTIAA INEDNES 9EN/S0d 1a5a08
[EREEEEE B e RREEEETEET- A4 ( SleA B0 4 - * SEEEEEEEEE bbb secanomnaa- R | | -EEEEEEE “eseseemo-e-o--o.---HINOW INHWMOD---------- .-
9Z/T£/10 AOI¥Ed dOd
€20§6 VO ‘WEISITIOH
ALITIOVA HINOV - TVLIGSOH TVINOWEW SNIANVH THZVR
INYTIAS :I9s0)
T g9vd 9vZT ® 9Z/9t/T0 :33ed




z===zzz=z==== zsz=s======= == ==] = ==

Page 82

L8L'T05'01 134 0ST'S6T'T 6€6°55L'S 680 156’9 90%'8T¥'Z ¥oe 62T°'618 ¥SE IOV €85°02Z°T (SSOT} SNT3¥AS LAN
¥08°€68'T €T z86 '80¢€ 899'09%°¢ 059°69L'T 0LT'CSY ix4 616 6L ¥ZS'TSE €Y TEY (ASNEAXT) /FANTATY ONILVYIJO-NON TYIOL
] 0 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOTILAGIVINGD NOILWNOEWITOD
9v1'8 4 S¥YZ SLE'TT 0Z9'11 260°2 (€T) (€12) SZ9'T [A4 20 FWOONI LINIWLSHANI
(998 °1ST) S (689'9) (8S58°€21) (LPS'0ET) (vz1'22) LE (S6%°9) (v69°LT) (68T '¥2) ISNIdXE ¥IIO-NON YFTHLO
195 €11 (v) (6€ES'Y) €6L°VTIT vSZ'0TT 581 (Z) (0T€E) 66€'9T 68091 ANNIASY ¥3d0-NON ¥FHLO
(0457°8SY) 0 € (86L°LT¥) (56L'LT¥) (180'S9) 0 0 ($TT'T19) (PIT'19) ISNIAXT\EIANTATY INI ONOE 0D
€0%'TEZ'T 4] (€) B6L°L92'T S6L'L92'1 ST6'SLT o 0 11’181 PIT T8T SAXYL dOdyd (NO" 0D
8L9'PED’T Q Q 85€'8LY'T 8SE'BLY'T ¥S6 ‘%02 o 0 v6T 112 6T TIZ SANFATY XYL ALYIJOUd
15 '€T2 [:X44 ¥96 '61€ 000'0%T ¥96°'6S% Z95'8¢€1 SEY LE6 98 000'02 LE6'90T SNOILYNOQ
:ISNIAXI\INNIATY ONILVHIIO-NON
sT/TE/T0 EONVIVVYA EORVIYVA 92/1€/10 9z/Te/10 $Z/1€/10 BONVIWYA EDNVIVVA 9z/1e/10 9Z/1€/10
¥X WOI¥d INZOTES OEN/S0d l3aoang TELLOY 4R 9ordd INFD¥Ed 9EN/S0d raoang TYOLOY

9Z/1€/T0 QOI¥Ed ¥Od
€206 YO ‘¥ALSITIOH
ALITIONd SL0OV - TYLIISOR TVIHOWEW SNINNVH THZVH

WAAYTIAS (I880

T 3ovd 9%ZT ® 9Z/91/Z0 338




866 ‘vV6 0st 162°¥L0'T 0ZE'LIL TT916L°T 6€9°62T €8 LTL'B8 €€V 301 0ST'S6T (SS07T) SNIJYNS LIAN
858602 0 0 YYE'STT YVE SZT 086 ‘62 0 " zZ61'2¢ Z61'2E (ISNAAXT) /ANNITATY ONILYHIAO-NON TYLOL o)
(BTE'€D) 0 0 (9€€°S¢€) (9€€'SE) (881'9) 0 0 (8%0°'S) (8v0°'S) ISNIAXT IFJO-NON HIHLO O
9LT'€ST 0 [} 083°092 089°092 89T °9¢ 0 [} 0Pz 'LE 0%¥Z'LE ANNIATE XWI ALJIIJ0¥d Qu
0 0 [ 0 [ 0 [ 0 0 0 SNOILYNOQ (@)
:ASNAAXT\FINNIAZE ONILYEHA0-NON %
0T SEL [} £4 162°'6L0°T 3L6'16% L92'998'T 099 '66 0zT 91L'88 14748 72 L56°'291 (SS071) ZWODNI ONILYHEdO LaN
88€E'BLO'ET 4 090'vTZ STE'9BLET SBE 000 PT 6€9°'GE6°T 8 6EL'8ST 95V 2861 SET'TPT T SASNIIXE TYLOL
vLL'68E T ¥05°’S 9T oY 599°'9%¥ TLT'6E (z) (856) S¥T'¥Y L8T €Y YFHLO
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 LSAYILNI
YEE'TLT € EPT L L8z €L 0E¥ 082 8TV '6€ S €96°'T V0 '6€ %00 ' TV NOILVYIDEAEEA
109'1% 811 866 L9 ZEI'LS 0€9'52T 90L'¥T T z8s‘s 916’ L 86V ET TYLNZY
EVE ‘269 0 £€0z'e L98°22¢L 0L0'SZL YEL 80T LT 0L9'Lt L0Z'¥0T LL81TT SEOIAYES QISYHOENG
oY ' €89 LT ¥06 ' ¥1T €67'€89 LEE'B6L 826 %01 ztT 609°1T 89¢'86 LL6'60T $4114dNS
0Ly 'ST (zv) (0£0°2) 00S°LT oLy ‘ST 01Z'Z (zt) (062) 005°2 01z°2 5334 TYNOISSHA0¥d
LEI'ETY'E 9 S9Z €12 TY9‘8ES € L06 TISL'E Tr9'E8Y ¥z 000 '€£21 Z0S'¥1IS T0S'LEY SLIJENIE FFAOTIWI
880°'€Z¢E 143 €28 60T 0LS'¥PE €6E'¥SP 18 '8Y £€¥ T90'1C ¥ZT'6Y s8z'oL AALSTOTY
8L0'9VT 'L (%) (6L ¥0E) €LTLOL L vZv'zov'L 8TE '$60'T (z) (868°02) €S¥'2ZT'T §§5'TOT'T SAOVM ¥ SHIUVIYS
:SISNIAXT ONIIVHIIO
92S'€18°€T 6 1S€°'882°T TQE'BLZ'PT 759'995'ST 667'SE0°Z tal 13 A 24 L69°950'T €5T°'%0€’C FNNIATY ONILIVIEJO dNS 13N
0 60L YL 0 60L'BHL [ L8E'901 o LBE'90T FANTAHY ONILWYEAO YIHLO
BZS'E€T8'ET 4 Z¥9'EvS TOE 'BLT'PT €v6'TZ8 71 66Z2°'SE0°2 L 690°T9T L69°950'Z 99L'L6T'T FONIATY INZILVd 3NS LaN
S66°¥€9°T (1) (80T +0¥)} €85'688°'C 9LS S8V’ 2 POL'SEE v 508 ‘8T pZT 62TV 626 °LbY INNIATI WOdd SNOILONAHA ANS TYIOL
65ST'6E2 (sT) (262'9¢) vSE'EVL 290102 ¥LZ’99 szt 9€0 ' ¥¥ 9€Z 'SE zLe'6L SLNIWLSACAY ANV STYALOWVALNOD YTHLO
0 959 % 0 959'% [ 0 0 0 0 YYD ALIUVHD
(89€°'65) (95T) (TEv’' ¥S) 000'S€E (TEV'6T) (€€0'2) (£12'1T) (Tv9'09) 000°'S (1¥9°'8S) 3SN3I¥E 1680 aVE
TLT'90L - (€8) (086 '18S) ¥9L'869 ¥8L'9TT z10'68 (1€) (98€°'TE) ZSL'00T 99¢'69 SEONYMOTTY TYALOVEINGD TYD-IAdW
£E6'BYL'T 12 6€6°'€9C $95°2ZT6'T ¥0S°9LT’C 5% 281 £Z 96L°'99 9¢7°882 ZE6 ' ¥SE STONYMOTTY TYALOVEINOD FHWOIAIW
(NS ENNIAZY WO¥d SNOILONGEd
€25'8v9°91 T SES'6ET 86 LIT LT 615'L0E"LT €00°'TLE'T 9 ¥L8'6ST 128°68% 2 G569°S¥9°C INNIAZY INIILVd dNS SSOUD TYIOL
ETT'PIS'2 LT 6T0'6ED ¥8%'659°C €05 %60 '€ [32 28443 ov ¥¥5'9ST TZE'€6E 698’695 ANNIATY NS AYVTTIONY
OTE PE6'ET (2) (589 '662) 006'2TS'¥T 9TOETZ'¥T 095650°2 0 0€E'€E 005'260°2 0€8'560°2 INNIATA INS INILOOY
(ENNIAZY INIILVd dNS SSO¥O
SZ/1E/T0 FONVIUVA FONVIUVA 9Z/1€/10 9Z/1€/10 ST/IE/10 FONVINVA EONVINVA 9Z/TE/T0 9Z/T¢/T0
¥X AOI¥d INEDYH 9aN/S0d lgsang TYLOV WA WOIN4 INEDWA DEN/S504 1=9and TVOALOY
B semmmmmeo ~eunne-ELVQ-OL-YVEK =~ ~=--=--~~ semmmme-- R ERREEE] Jemmmmmm-- cesammec-ssesee----HINOK INIWHOD------- B EEEEEEE
92/T€/10 dOINId YOd
VO ‘¥ZLSITIOR
SEILITIOVA ONISUAN AETIINS SKINMVH TIZVH
AYIIas ‘x3asn
T 39vd 92T @ 92/91/Z0 :33eQ




Date: 02/16/26 @ 1246
User: SDILAURA

PAGE 1

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
HOLLISTER, CA
For the month ended 01/31/26

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
01/31/26 12/31/2% VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/25

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 42,518,478 42,001,600 516,877 1 46,670,217
PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 70,098,341 67,843,853 2,254,488 3 66,556,290
BAD DEBT ALLOWANCE (6,511,708) (6,138,977) (372,732) 6 (7,062,672)
CONTRACTUAL RESERVES (42,298,564) (40,510,534) (1,788,031) 4 (40,404,377}
OTHER RECEIVABLES 6,220,741 9,397,125 (3,176,384) (34) 4,952,401
INVENTORIES 5,037,902 5,032,572 5,330 0 4,981,471
PREPAID EXPENSES 2,972,992 2,748,231 224,761 8 2,599,584
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES (181,860) (181,860} 0 0 (181, 860)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 77,856,322 80,192,012 (2,335,690} (3) 78,111,054
ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED
BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS 7,752,213 7,634,354 117,860 2 5,666,884
TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS 7,752,213 7,634,354 117,860 2 5,666,884
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
LAND & LAND IMPROVEMENTS 3,370,474 3,370,474 0 0 3,370,474
BLDGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS 100,124,163 100,124,163 0 0 100,098,374
EQUIPMENT 48,296,262 47,983,561 312,702 1 46,216,122
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 7,161,891 6,711,255 450,636 7 4,324,809
GROSS PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 158,952,791 158,189,454 763,338 1 154,009,779
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (100,872,712) (100,504,323) (368,389) 0 (98,393, 920)
NET PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 58,080,079 57,685,131 394,948 1 55,615,859
OTHER ASSETS
UNAMORTIZED LOAN COSTS 287,023 292,765 (5,742) (2} 327,215
PENSION DEFERRED OUTFLOWS NET 5,277,892 5,277,892 0 0 5,277,892
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 5,564,915 5,570,657 (5,742) 0 5,605,107

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED ASSETS 149,253,530 151,082,153 (1,828,624} (1) 144,998, 904
RESTRICTED ASSETS 128,806 128,348 459 0 127,208
TOTAL ASSETS 149,382,336 151,210,501 (1,828,165) (1) 145,126,112

Page 84




Date: 02/16/26 @ 1246 FAGE 2
User: SDILAURA

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
HOLLISTER, CA
For the month ended 01/31/26

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
01/31/26 12/31/25 VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/25
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 7,149,888 6,841,683 (308,205) 5 6,221,841
ACCRUED PAYROLL 2,096,397 4,141,119 2,044,722 (49) 3,467,229
ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES 122,703 271,933 149,229 (55) 257,552
ACCRUED BENEFITS 4,348,789 4,624,372 275,584 (6) 5,074,320
OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES 38,082 37,741 (341) 1 80,907
PATIENT REFUNDS PAYABLE 4,790 4,388 (402) 9 1,310
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES 3,505,599 4,339,018 833,419 (19) 5,056,186
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 880,287 895,131 14,844 (2) 777,080
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 18,146,534 21,155,385 3,008,850 (14) 20,936,425

LONG-TERM DEBT

LEASES PAYABLE 4,750,616 4,757,602 6,986 0 4,799,273
BONDS PAYABLE 28,335,241 28,363,761 28,520 0 28,534,881

———————

TOTAL LONG TERM DEBT 33,121,362 35,506 0

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

DEFERRED REVENUE 0 0 0 0 0
LONG-TERM PENSION LIABILITY 24,488,121 24,688,121 200,000 (1) 25,888,121

TOTAL OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 24,488,121 24,688,121 200,000 (1) 25,888,121

TOTAL LIABILITIES 75,720,512 78,964,868 3,244,356 (4) 80,158,700
NET ASSETS:

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 64,915,019 64,915,019 0 0 64,817,839
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 101,285 100,826 (459) 1 149,573
NET REVENUE/ (EXPENSES) 8,645,520 7,229,788 (1,415,733} 20 0

TOTAL NET ASSETS 73,661,824 72,245,633 (1,416,191) 2 64,967,412

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Page 85



S

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOISPITAL

San Benito Health Care District
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

JANUARY 2026
Description MTD Budget MTD Actual YTD Actuatl YTD Budget FYE Budget
Average Daily Census - Acute 14.79 13.61 13.96 14.50 15.00
Average Daily Census - SNF 90.00 89.71 88.01 90.00 90.00
Acute Length of Stay 2.81 3.17 2.85 2.80 2.80
ER Visits:
Inpatient 132 977 1,638
Outpatient 2,460 2,315 15,375 15,542 27,053
Total 2,592 2,420 16,200 16,519 28,691
Days in Accounts Receivable 50.0 53.0 53.0 50.0 50.0
Productive Full-Time Equivalents 575.17 9 575.17 575.17
Net Patient Revenue 13,104,077 m 89,221,759 92,751,961 157,730,532
Payment-to-Charge Ratio 31.9% 31.0% 32.9% 32.4%
Medicare Traditional Payor Mix 28.29% 29.15% 28.71%
Commercial Payor Mix 23.80% 22.83% 23.36%
Bad Debt % of Gross Revenue 2.50% 2.50% 2.53%
EBIDA 725,731 1,678,475 10,443,770 7,998,873 13,769,729
EBIDA % 5.10% 10.39% 10.06% 7.92% 7.98%
Operating Margin 0.87% 3.75% 3.79%
Salaries, Wages, Registry & Benefits %:
by Net Operating Revenue 61.37% 59.08% 59.06%
by Total Operating Expense 61.91% 61.38% 61.39%
Bond Covenants:
Debt Service Ratio - 1.25 4.65 8.55 7.36
Current Ratio - 1.50 2.00 2.00 2.00
Days Cash on hand - 30.00 87.59 87.59 110.00
Met or Exceeded Target
Within 10% of Target
Not Within 10%

Page 86



2JUBLIEA

pueH uo yse) paiadpng

e T T e R R e I e S S M B I e e e

£EY'925'eS

Sv0'266'8€$

8€'G6

BALGPFS

0$ 8.b'81S'ZPS 8.¥'815'TVS
212'029'9p 009'100'2P
(6£L'151'Y) 828915
{988°6%) 0
(i62'8¥5'}) {905's£2)
Ayjrgen uoisuag wis) 3uol (ooo'coy'L) {ooo'002)
SpUOg TZ0Z YIM SPUOH £T0T J0 Bunueuyay 3 |ediduLd 09 ¥T0Z (ov9'661) {0zs'82)
(159'8p) {986'9)
(6¥1°'886'9) {ssv's.ia)
uoneziowy 761 0¥ Zvl's
spuag 1202 2 (S00Z) PTOT - WudwAed 1u| 3 [ediduLd puog {0g€'s80'2) (o98'2LL)
0 0
(e10'ey6'y) (gee'e9/)
{201'802Z'Y) 101'21T
spucg 3nuaAdY TZOZ '3 0D 00T - 'IU| [BNUUY-IW3S $¥6l'S (#p8'FL)
(065'055'Y) (Z1p'ces)
08¥'c 0¥
(vza'zy) Le
(552'¢€1'2) (ses'69v'2)
0 0
805'826 50Z'80¢
0 ]
(60y'cLE) (192'v22)
(1ev'98) {ogg's)
(co8'89Z't) y8e'aLL's
(8zg'g6L'2) (LzL'c6)
162'8.b'2 68¢'89¢
00.'2pL'8$ €CL'SLY' LS
9Z0Z/1E/4 9202Z/1L€/)
3jeq-ol-sea ) (JuUon
juaungd jua.ung
SINIWWOD MOTd HSVD

puey uo ysen sheq |euonesedo

Jouisiq oy} unJ o} Aep sad 150D

pouad Jo pu3 ‘ysed
pouad jo Buiuwnbag ‘ysep
yses uj (aseasdaq)/eseassu] JaN

S13SSVY QFLOIYLSIN NI ASVIHIIA/(ISYIHONI

saniARoy Buioueuld 10} pasn ysed 19N
sayiqer wia) 6uo Jsy)O u (esealcag)aseasoy|
1q9(1 @bebuop puog i (aseasoaq)/eseasouy|
199 @sea |e)de) ui (8seassaq)/esealsu)
'SIILIAILOY ONIONVNIJ WOYd SMO14 HSVD

sanApoy Bunsaau) Aq pasn ysed 18N
$)9sSY Jayl0 ul aseassaq/(aseasnul)
S}9ssSy @sM pauwWIT JAUYIQ vl asea1dsq/(aseasou)
SJUBLISAAU] PUB ySeD as} PajWI ul asealssq/(esesasoul)
wawdinb3 pue Jue|d ‘Auadold Jo aseydind
'STLALLOY ONILSIANI WOHd SMO1d HSYD

:saAnay BunesadQ Aq papinoid ysed 19N
nigert usLng 1Yo ul (eseasdaq)/esessou|
SONIIqEI/SaouBApY Alled pay) ul (9sea1d9(q)/asesiou)

a|qehed spunjay Juaned ul (aseaid9()/aseasou)
sasuadxg paniody Ul (aseassaq)/aseasouy|
sjyauag pue (|01Aed panIddy Ul (9seaI0aq)/asealou|
ajqeded sueot pue S3JON Ul (aseainaq)/asealou]
a|qeked SjunoddYy Ui (aseasda(])/eseasou|
seijed piyl wol4 ang w aseasdaq/(esealouy)
sasuadxg pred-aid ul aseasdaq/(aseasnu|)
SoLIOJUBAU| Ul aseala(/(asealou|)
$8|qEAI909Y JBUJO Ut aseasda/(esealou)
2|qeAIDaY SIUNOJDY Judlled 19N Ul aseasdaq/(aseasoul)
uoneaideqg
‘sapanoy Bunesado Aq papiroid
ysen JoN O} 2Woduf 19N 8|Iou0d8Y 0} sjuswisnipy
(s507) awodu| 19N
'SIILAILOY ONILVHIJO WONL SMO14 HSVD

9z0zZ ‘1¢ Auenuep Buipus Yuow USASY
VO “181siljoH
|e}dso} |euOWayy SUMEH [9ZeH

SMO|J USED JO JUaW3)e)S

Page 87



LIT'Z8Y'PT L19°V0T'ST
{980°060°€) S
6L5'V8E'8
£€02°2LSLT 8£0°0289
LTTZ8Y' VT L19'407'ST
L61°85V'8 119'58S"Y
‘8707 A4 1Nun paAejap %09 JO uoINPAI T 'Y'H  TST'09Z'T S09°ST0°T SOHG
*9JU3aI3YIP 1502 [ENYIE UO paseg - -
'9707 42903130 B ‘AInf ‘AeW ‘YdIelN paadxa sywd A0 900°0LS'E SOHQ
"QLA StuawAed 10D pIE 8 ‘PUZ ST PISY  €98VHT'E - SJHQ
'$Z0Z ‘O aunf Aq juawAed iib Yiy 9y 01 padadx3  T79'180°T = SOHQ
‘%207 ‘v 'das 99y ££5°690°T 2 SOHQ
‘HVYDD J2PUn MOU AJUNOD) "S44 UO paseg ‘SZOT ‘LT YDIB UO PaAIRIRY  S8S'Z08'T 2 SOHQ
‘sjuawided Pa3Qg
07€'€20'9 900'6T9°0T
"¥Z0T ‘6 49qwdaQ uo pled  (980°060°€) - PuIsIg
"Gz, AON/PO Ul JuawAed 133dx3 ‘80 TPO'6LES 'PUTT ‘8N U 191 papuny  €S8°0TL 160°€V9 SJHQ
'9707 Aew/1dy Buipuny "33y ‘9Z0T JeN/q34 3np 19} papuny €L5'6VCT HYDD
*§Z0Z 120 Ul P23y ‘ST EY'006S ‘PUTZ “3ny U0 191 pspuny €15°6Y2°T HYD
"ARIN U1 29y "YdUBWN Ul 6LETYE'TS 4O LO1IUAS 09T TTE'Y - SOHQ
*5T6 9V 40 aded u1 sea soud ueyl 13YSIH "9Z0T ‘€T Auenuer uo paAIRddyY - 69L°T16C HVD
‘6707 Adeniqad ul panivaRy  THT'6EE'T - wayiuy
‘AeiN 1 29y “judy UL €6T'290'TS JO 11 Pled  9S0°L0Y'T 0000912 HYDD
‘570z dunf Aq JuawAed 1adx3 "9z0z judvy anp |91 ZOE'SOE 00520 SJHQ
*Z70T 3unr Aq uawAed 1adx3 ‘9707 |Mdy anP 191 S6L'6E 005°20¢ SJHd
-uanjaa Juiynew Joy yem pue wesdosd puny o3 s sanbay
:S3ION SZ0Z A4 9Z0Z Ad l1oAed
jen)y jenidy

sjudwAhed [exuawaiddns 1N
pted [e3oL

Juipuad je10]

PaAIaIay |e10]

sie1o) puess wesdoid

. 1€303-gns | HI-UON

(HSQ) a4eys areuoruodoadsiq [eD-IPIN -

(4N/dQ) Aupoeg SuisinN ‘bed ounsiqQ -

X! (4¥DH) pung asueinssy Ajjenp |endsoH 6€2 8S -
1IA (4¥DH) pung aoueinssy AujenD |eNdsoH 6€Z 4S -
HIA (AVDH) pung ddue.inssy AuenD (endsoH 6€Z 8S -
(4VOH) pung adueinssy Apjen)) jeudsoH 6€T €S -
ST-T0Z AS ST6 9V -

:swesdold 19jsuel] {eJUSWUIFA0SIBUI-UON

[e103-qns 19}

JawAeday ueo g Ad 41D -

2027 AD (dGHQ) suawAed payasg |endsoH 1a1s1Q -
¥202 AD 10} JusWwAed ,|euld, JUSWINAS L Ad 41D -
70T AD 10§ JUSWARY , WIIALU, JUBWIINAS L Ad dID -
€207 AD JUBWNAS 9 Ad dID -

$70T ‘1€ "330 yYSnouyy yz0 ‘1 "uer asuey ey -
€207 ‘1€ "23Q Y3nouy3 20T ‘T "uer d3uey aley -

5702 AD (4VDH) pung 3auesnssy AjjenD |endsoH 6€Z &S -

9707/5707 A4S WIS STOT/¥TOT A4S

§707/6707 A4S WdwAhed [euld $20Z/€20T A4S
(Hdan) |lendsoH Jjqnd paleudisag-uoN €1T Y -
:swiesBo4d 1ajsues ] [BIUWUIBA0BIU|

9Z0T ‘0€ dunf IA4

9207 ‘T€ Asenuer jo se Q1A
sweidoid Juawhed |eyuawz)ddng
|endsoH |elowa Supmen [9zeH

Page 88



9202 ‘wel Meniged
suolejey Japjoyayels-10sinpy Adljod Jolusg ‘Jsjesyp) piessnolg Abbad
uoneAouU| [eaIUID 10y J10j0aag Aindag 192140 [EBDIPSIAl J81UD "OSIN AIN BISJSL YauswsT

221JOPJIOM\ JOSIAPY JOIUSS ‘UBIAOISOYY XINOH

wnio4 diysiepea jendsoH 1ousid
10} Jesodoud (LHYIED) UonewIojsuel] yljeaH |einy S Bluloji[e] JO MIINBAQ

welboid uolnjewaojsuel] yjjesH jeiny

U0 ELWIIOJU| PUR $SIDIY
a4e) YIESH j0 3usuntedag

A0 H




‘spaau AJlunwwiod

yoea 9210j10M Ujjeay ayj
pue ‘uoljeuwliojul ajqeuoijoe
‘sanijioey jualjisal

ybnouyj suejuiojijed

||e 40} aied yjjeay
ajqepsoye ‘Ayijenb o3 ssadde
a|qejinba spuedxa |YOH

UoISSIN INO



-9o1d Juasedsuel) ‘Mo e Je sbnip ouauab spinoid pue ‘suoposjoid
Buijjiq [endsoy a210juT "enjeA aoueApe 0} sainseaw pue ‘sjebie) bulpuads
‘sisAjeue ejep ybnouy) Ayjigepioye aied yyesy aroidw| :Ajjigepioyy

-adeospue| aiedyjjeay
s eluloji|eD ynoge uonewsoyul yodas pue azhjeue ‘ebeuew 109||0) :ejeQ

‘90101 10M
yyeay asionip Ajjeonsinbull pue jusjadwod Ajjeinjnd e 8jowold :8310)40M

‘S92IAI9S puedxa 10 dojaAap 0} sanjioe} aledy)esy
jjoiduou 1oy _E_amo pue wEEm JIWSISS ‘90uUBINSUI UBO| pINOld :Buloueuid

sy Buisinu nm___v_w pue m_m“_awoc S m_Eo,:_mo_
jo AJojes 2IWSIas pue ‘uol}eAOual ‘UOIIONIISUOD 8y} JOJUOIN :sani|ioed

sealy weiboid I[VOH



|lesodoud jueib JHYIBD -

Juswabebuas Jap|oysyels .

Bulpun} weiboid «

(LHY[eD) uonewsojsuel| YjesH [einy S eluiojen .

MB3IAIBAQ



Aldde suonolysal,

Ajliqejiene
=189 ieay aleo saoueApe
aAljeAOUU| |eJoineysqg * pe 1l
. . a)eldoiddy
aouejsisse suoijn|os suswAed aseasIp
92I0YJOAN |ea1uyos} ABojouyos} Jmn_>9n_ 21U0IYD pue
pue bBuiuies ] Jawnsuo) . uonuaAalid

‘sal0Ba)e0 pajeubisap-SIND U} JO 9a1y) JSes) Je 10} pasn 8q Jsnw spund

spunj jJo

asn 9|qissSiwidg




UOISIABI

196pnq ay}
Malnad Aua
/202 '0€ d8S — 920 L€ PO 10 .n:osw
Z pouad jebpng ‘anosdde
. 01 SIND
bn
920z ‘0¢ bny 91 yoJew Ag

anq uonediddy uonjenunuod

9202 ‘L€ Inr —Gcoc 6¢C 99d
pouad Bunioday jenuuy

/202 0€ 190 —S§20¢ 6¢ 9°9d
L poliad Buipuadg

9202 '0€ 120 — 620 6¢ 98d

uoisiAal Jabpnq WIN9'EEZ$ papiwqgns

nwqns jsnw popieme :O_umo__ﬂﬂm

wuco_a_owg alels eluiojijed ucm._m dlHY VO

M3IATY SIND o€ uer Ag 62 99Q UO  AON UO

uoisiAai }abpnqg pancidde sey
SND un spuny Buisn uo uonouIsay

| Poliad 1oBpng d1HY au1 0 (9202) | pouad 1ebpng 10} 80€‘6€9'EETS -

YRAVARRTAA
auljowil] wia] JeaN

uoneu

ay} ul pJeme 1saybly p.c SU} papJeme Sem BIUIOJI[ED

ejuiojijed 1o} piemy d1Hd SINO



S92IAISS aled y}jeay pue ssauipeal [ed0]| puny

o} Jusw£ked sjqeurejsns ubije pue ‘sbuipss 89inosal
MO| Ul %lom ey} sjoo} Aojdep aJed paseq-aduspind
Ajdde ‘sdiysisuped pue ‘syJomjau ‘saAljeloqe||od

uoIjeuIpI002 a1ed [euoibal [eini dojaAsp (IM | HYIED

‘adn)jonJjseqjul ejep
pue ABojouyda)} ulapow ‘@210)}I0M djqeulejsns
e Aq pauoddns ‘swoy 0} 8s0j0 aied yjjesy [eJolreyaq
pue ‘Juswabeuew aseasip J1UoIYD ‘Ajeroads
Apusejew ‘Arewid passjusd-uosiad ‘Ajawi} ssadd€e Ueod
uelulofl|eD Januoly pue [eins Aaas ydiym ul wo)sAs
yijeay |eind Jual|isal ‘pajoduuUod e si UOISIA weiboud
(L HYeD) uonewlojsuel] yjeaH |einy eluiojljed syl

jesodoid LHYI®)



(dVdd) weiboid ss800y AleiyoAsd [e1euliad pue (dey-1v0) [eHOd SS800Y YieeH [EJUsy JUSISS|OPY PUE PO eluioyeD 158N 90
(OHD3 10901d) SBWOANQ BiedylEaH ANUNWIWOD JOJ UOISUSIXT .0} PRYILUI| JOU /€ ING '8pNjoul S|spow paseq 8auspiAg |

‘sjusuodwoo W4 a|qiseay ur abebus
Anjbuiuesw o} jeusjod ayj aney jey)
sjejidsoy jeins passalisip Ajjeroueul) of

sjuawAed

uoljeuwojsue.t]

,S|8poW paseq-sduspIng

Bunusiweldwi pue ‘UoISUB)X8 8210I0M
‘Buuojiuow-4es Juaed sjowel
‘s)insu0y-e 'ssaooe Ajjeroads ‘Ajuwisjew
Lewud yjesyasjs) puedxa jim jey |

ABojouyo9} abeiana

I9PON 249 A eWIOjSURL] BAlJeIU]

‘suoissajoud yjjeay pajjje

J8Y)0 pue ‘sonmpiu ‘seinop ‘SNAT
‘SMHD 40 Juswdojansp Buruoddns
‘sdiysmoyia) buturely soL}8)sqo
Buuayjo Aq ssedAq jeins 8onpai o]

Aj1oedes aasopjiom
jeans yoddns pue puedx3

UOIRUIPI00D 8189

pue Ayjenb yjoq sroudwy o} siapiroid
J8YJ0 pue SoIUIo [B20] Yim sqny [eydsoy
jeuoiba. Buijosuuod Aq aieo yjeay

jeini ajeAsye jey) sdiysisuyed pue
‘SYJOM)BU ‘SBAIJEI0QqEJj0D 8183 Jeuoibal
Awsjew pue Lewyd jeini 8)eald of
s)yJomjau ayods-pue

-qny |euoibai ysijqeis3




a
'] (d¥dd) weiboig $sa00y Aleiyohsd (g1euuad pue (dep-Tv0) ([BHOd SS200Y YIESH [EJUS JUSOSSIOPY PUE PIIUD eiuloied) 1SaN 90
1 {OHDT 199/01d) SEWONNQ SJLOYYESH ANUNWIWOD 10} UOISUSIXT (0} PAJILUI| JOU 31 JNq 8pnioul S|SPow paseq 82uapIng |

‘Sjuelb uoleoofe.l pue uonusjal
104 Buipuny vy 104 Ajdde jjim [e}idsoH Jousia

g uondo

‘Sjusuodwoo

WO 8jqisesy ui abebus Ajjnjbuiuesw
0} jenjuajod ay) aAey jey; sfejdsoy
[eni passausip Ajjeroueul 0} sjusiifed
aAjewLiojsuell puny [fiM L HHIED

y uondo

‘sanIAoe WO L ajdipnuw
ul pabebus 3iomjau aAljeI0qe|j0d
jeuoibai e uiof [im [e}idSOH JoL3SIa

¢ uondo

|9PON @1e9 SAiewIojSuel] 9Alje3Iu]

Juswabeuew 8[2A2

anusanal Buinoidwy pue ‘Ajjiqesadossiul
Buiziwndo ‘spiodal yjjesay d1uoijos|e
anosdui o) Buipuny w4y 104 Aidde jim
joB1) paulap YSYH e ul [ejdsoH 1oujsig

¢ uondo

,Sjepow paseq-eousping bunuawajdwy
pue ‘uoisuajxa aaiopjiom ‘buuoyuow
-J|es jusned ajowsl ‘S}NSU0D-8 .SS839€
Ajeroads Apuwsjew fiewud yjjesys|s]
puedxa [im weiboid ay| ‘sispirosd
J8Yjo pue So1Uljd |820] 0} S8JINIBS

118y} Spus)xa pue aJed [einl Sadueyus
jey) saeniul wesboid [aAoU e Jwqns
pue (y4y) uoneayddy 10 jsenbay

ay} 0} puodsal |jim [e)idsoH JouISIg

} uondo




W pue
Aupiqers usypbusss jeyj spoddns punose deim pue SaAlusIUI ybnouy) pepaau
usym [eonjoe.d Juswyinidal 8xyeu pue SeIUNWWOI [eins Uj Jus|e) doeoay 0}

UOIJUd}aY PUE JUBW}INIIBY

"SaIUNWILLIOD
jeanu ui eonjoeid pue ‘Aejs ‘urel) o} wayj 10f sAemyjed pjinq pue suoissajoid
yjiesy uil suealed buinsind syuspnjs [eini Jo auljadid ajqeulejsns e 8jeald 0f

s)Jomlau Juawase|d

[eaiunjd pue skemyjed Buiuiesy uayjbuang

‘sof0J poddns 81e0 paseq-wes) pue sueloiulfo
ssoJoe sdeb Ajoedes [araj-Ajunoo Juiodurd pue spuai) puewisp Anuspi of

[00}
Buiuuejd pue Buiddew asiopjiom [eunl e ysijqeis3

juswdojarag 9210D1I0M BAlERIU]



‘Buipodas pue burojuows
-}|8S U0 S18Wnsuod bulyeanpae pue
saibojoulyos) pue sjooj [ejibip 8|qissaooe
40 Juswdofanap bunowouid Ag

siownsuod Jamodwd
0} sjoo} p ABojouyosa}

"S99IMIBS 098] JO Juswebeuew paieys
pue Buiseyoind dno.b uoj sapunuoddo
8je8.0 pue siapiroid [eint Joj usping
Buyejs pue s3soo Abojouyos) adnpa. O}
SLI0Yd 8)eUIPJ00D 0] 18JUBY BIOUEISISSY
jeoluyd8/ [einy ayj buibeiers| Ag
uoneloqe}|od

jeuoibai puedx3]

‘saajue.lb Jayjo pue

sjuedioied wo o} poddns uo-spuey
pue 8oiApe padxa sapirold jey) 18jua)d
80UB}SISSY [ROIUYO8] [einy e ybnoiy |
aouejsisse [edluydaj

Juawabeuew

81942 enuanai buinosduil pue
“Aupqesadossyur Buiziwndo ‘suuogerd
}INSU02-8 PUE Y}|edys|s) ‘SWajSAS
yyreay uoneindod ‘sfo0} bulusslos
quswebeuew 8913oeid ‘SpJ0dal yjeay
o1uoJjosfe Buiziusepow buipnjoul spaau
JO AjalieA e uj siepiroad poddns of

Buipuny juels

=

"SyIompau
a1e0 [euoibal uj Ajanioaye ajediped
0} ABojouyoa} auljeseq josl saljijus
yjreay jeins poddns pue Ssasse 0}

jJuswiadueyua

ainjonJisesu]

sjoo]l ¥ ABojouyoda] :aAnenRIu|



‘uoijejuswa|dwil
Injsseoons Buioddns pue ‘enbojelp usdo Bunowoid

‘sjouped |e20] pue aje}s HBuowe uoljeloqe||0d
siapjoyayels Ajunwiwiod Jayjo pue

suoneziuebiQ peseg-Anunwiwio) Buliaysoj ‘10jeyi|ioe) pue JISUSAUOD B Sk JOE |IIM DdHY

Sueld YiesH ay] ‘spoyd wiogais Buioueuy apinb pue yuswubije
Sa2140 J8pInoId
s1opeaT [BqLi] Koijod ainsua ‘ssaiboid weiboid | HY|eD MalAal

soluI|) [eny lIIM [1ouno? ay) ‘Ajiauenb Bunesy '[wOH 0} Apog

s|eldsoH |einy
syuawpedaq Bulqis AlosiApe apimale)s e se paysijgelsa aq [lIM DdHY @4l

IVOH

(2dHY) 119unog Adjjod Y3leaH jeiny
sjuedionied OdHY LHY 189



dg.l — Jeuigam jied
ag.] — Jeulgem jawuwng

dg.l — sjuswadunouue mmwcm‘_@ }1SiiH o

qg -o1ep aseajal uoneoiiddy Jo) isenbay

ag.l — Jeuigam Buudsg
920z Arenigad -auljuo paysiiand sov4
sajeq Aoy weiboid LHIED

¢LHY

l1ouno) Adljod uileeH
jeiny ayl 9UBAUO0D -

uoijessiuiupe
sjuelb dn Buipuels
pue ubisap weiboid

spuny
JO asn ayy uo |eAoidde

uief 0} SWO yIm
suolissnosip 9)9|dwo) .

[eD 1o} Ixau S Jeym



Aobed’1eoy®@ LHYIeD
jlewd ased|d

¢/ suonsand



COMMERCIAL LEASE

THIS COMMERCIAL LEASE (“Lease”) is made effective as of March 1, 2026 (“Effective
Date”) by and between CEGLIA PROPERTIES, LLC (“Lessor”), and SAN BENITO HEALTH
CARE DISTRICT, a local health care district organized and operated pursuant to Division 23 of the
California Health and Safety Code (“Lessee”), upon the following facts and circumstances. Lessor
and Lessee may be collectively referred to as the “parties” or each may be referred to individually
as a “party.”

RECITALS

A. Lessor is the owner of those certain parcels of real property consisting of
approximately 0.643 acres, located at 101 McCray Street, #E-7 and #E-8, in the City of Hollister,
County of Monterey, State of California, designated as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 054-340-021
and 054-340-022, as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto, incorporated by
reference (“Property”). The Property is improved with a strip mall building consisting of multiple
suites (“Building”).

B. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, Lessee desires to lease from
Lessor, and Lessor desires to lease to Lessee, a portion of the Building commonly known as Suite
108 consisting of approximately Three Thousand Five Hundred Ninety Six square feet (3,596 sq. ft.
+/-) of medical office space (“Premises™). The Premises are illustrated on the diagram attached
hereto as Exhibit B, incorporated by reference.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements, representations
and warranties contained in this Lease, the parties agree as follows:

l. PREMISES. Subject to the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in this Lease,
Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from Lessor the Premises subject to all recorded
covenants, conditions and restrictions, utility easements, other recorded private easements,
reciprocal easement agreements and any other recorded instruments affecting the use of the
Premises or Property as they may exist as of the date of this Lease.

2. CONDITION OF PREMISES. Lessee acknowledges that Lessee has occupied the
Premises for six (6) years under terms and provisions of an earlier lease, is fully familiar with the
condition of and has fully inspected the Premises. Lessee is satisfied with its physical condition and
accepts the Premises in its AS-IS condition. Except as expressly provided herein, Lessor makes no
representation or warranty with respect to the condition of the Premises or its fitness or availability
for any particular use or purpose.

3. TERM. The term of this Lease shall be five (5) years (“Term’), commencing on
March 1, 2026 (“Commencement Date”) at 12:01 AM and terminating on February 28,2031 at
11:59 PM. Notwithstanding anything else herein, Lessee shall have the unilateral right to
immediately terminate this Lease by written notice to Lessor upon the expiration or earlier
termination of that certain Professional Services Agreement of even date herewith by and between

Page 103



Lessee and Focus Physical Therapy and Gym Management Services, Inc., a California professional
physical therapy corporation.

4, POSSESSION. Lessee is currently in possession of the Premises.

5. RENT.

5.1 Base Rent. Lessee shall pay in advance to Lessor a monthly base rent (“Base
Rent”) of Ten Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Five and 83/100 Dollars ($10,555.83). Base Rent
shall be increased by two percent (2%) on each anniversary of the Commencement Date during the
Term. Base Rent is payable and due on the first day of each month during the Term, without notice,
demand, counterclaim, setoff, deduction or defense. Base Rent shall be prorated for any partial
calendar month during the Term.

5.2  Additional Rent. In addition to the Base Rent, Lessee also agrees to pay to
Lessor as additional rent (“Additional Rent”), all other amounts and obligations Lessee assumes or
agrees to pay under this Lease; provided that, if under the terms and conditions set forth in this
Lease, Lessee is to satisfy such obligation to someone other than Lessor, Lessor shall have no claim
to said amount as Additional Rent unless a claim is made against Lessor for such amount or if
Lessor has satisfied such obligation in order to protect its rights and has demanded reimbursement
from Lessee.

5.3 Rent Payments. Base Rent and Additional Rent shall collectively be referred
to herein as “Rent.” All Rent payable to Lessor in accordance with this Lease shall be paid to
Lessor at the address set forth in Section 20.7 or such other address as the Lessor shall instruct the
Lessee in writing. All Rent and any other amounts due under this Lease shall be payable in lawful
currency of the United States of America.

5.4  Late Payment Obligations. Lessee acknowledges that the late payment by
Lessee of any monthly installment of Base Rent or Additional Rent will cause Lessor to incur
additional costs and expenses, the exact amounts of which are extremely difficult or impractical to
fix at the time. Therefore, if any Rent is not received by Lessor from Lessee within ten (10) days
after the same becomes due, Lessee shall immediately pay to Lessor a late charge equal to five
percent (5%) of such delinquent rent.

6. USE.

6.1 Permitted Uses. Subject to the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease,
Lessee shall use the Premises as a medical office and related healthcare purposes (“Permitted
Uses”). Lessee’s use of the Premises shall be subject to all Laws pertaining to the use and
occupancy of the Property. “Law” or “Laws” as used in this Lease shall include any judicial
decision, statute, constitution, ordinance, resolution, regulation, rule, administrative order, or other
requirement of any municipal, county, state, federal or other governmental agency or authority
having jurisdiction over the parties hereof, in effect either at the Effective Date hereof or at any time
during the Term.

6.2  Nuisance: Waste. All noise or odors generated by Lessee’s use of the
Premises shall be contained or muffled as much as possible so as not to create a public or private

Page 104



nuisance or to interfere with the quiet enjoyment of any other tenant of the Property or persons
residing on neighboring properties. Lessee shall keep the Premises in a neat, clean, attractive and
orderly condition, free of any objectionable noises, odors, dust, debris, weeds, rodents or nuisances
which may disturb adjacent property. Lessee shall not use the Premises in any manner that will
constitute waste or cause damage to the Property.

7. PARKING. The Property shares a parking lot with other occupants of the Building.
Lessee shall have shared access and use of the parking lot subject to the rules applicable to the
shared parking lot.

8. UTILITIES. Lessee shall provide for the Premises, at its sole expense, sewer, water,
and garbage services. Lessee shall also provide, at its sole expense all other costs of occupying and
operating the Premises, including but not limited to, electricity, telephone, cable, janitorial, and
window cleaning.

9. ALTERATIONS OR IMPROVEMENTS: LIENS.

9.1 Permitted Alterations and Improvements. Lessee shall make no alterations to
the Building or the Premises or construct any structure or make any other improvements on or to the
Premises without the prior written consent and approval of Lessor which may be withheld at
Lessor’s reasonable discretion. Any and all alterations, changes, and/or improvements built,
constructed or placed on the Premises or made to the Building by Lessee shall, unless otherwise
provided by written agreement between Lessor and Lessee, be and become the property of Lessor
and remain on the Premises at the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease.

9.2  Liens. Lessee shall keep the Property free from any liens and shall pay when
due all bills arising out of any work performed, materials furnished or obligations incurred by
Lessee, its agents, employees or contractors. If any claim of lien is recorded against the Property as
a result of or arising from Lessee or Lessee’s agent or employee’s actions, Lessee shall bond against
or discharge the same within twenty (20) days after the same has been recorded against the
Property. Should any lien be filed against the Property or any action commenced affecting title
thereto, the party receiving notice of such lien or action shall immediately give the other party
written notice thereof.

10. TRADE FIXTURES. Throughout the Term, Lessee shall, at its sole expense,
provide, install and maintain in good condition all trade fixtures required in the conduct of its
business on the Premises. Lessee shall own and may remove the trade fixtures upon expiration or
sooner termination of this Lease provided such removal is done without materially damaging the
Premises. Any trade fixtures not removed at the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease
shall, at Lessor’s election, either become Lessor’s property or be removed from the Premises at
Lessee’s sole expense.

11.  TAXES.

11.1 Real Property Taxes. Lessor shall pay all real property taxes and special
assessments on the Property.

Page 105



11.2  Personal Property Taxes. Lessee shall pay before delinquency any and all
taxes, assessments, license fees and any other charges levied, assessed or imposed upon Lessee’s
personal property or Lessee’s business property.

12. INSURANCE.

12.1 Lessee’s Insurance. Lessee shall procure, pay for and keep in full force and
effect during the Term the following policies of insurance:

(a) Commercial general liability insurance with limits of not less than
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00)
general aggregate limit insuring against all liability of Lessee and its authorized representatives
arising out of and in connection with Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises. Lessee’s general
liability insurance shall insure performance by Lessee of the indemnity provisions of this Lease;

(b) A policy or policies of fire and property damage insurance with
standard extended coverage endorsement on all of Lessee’s fixtures, equipment, leasehold
improvements, merchandise and personal property situated in or on, or about the Premises
(“Lessee’s Property”), with limits of not less than the full replacement value of Lessee’s Property.
So long as this Lease is in effect, the proceeds from any such fire insurance policy shall be used for
the repair or replacement of the fixtures, equipment or other personal property so insured; and

() Workers’ compensation coverage and any other employee benefit
insurance or equivalent for Lessee’s employees sufficient to comply with all Laws.

12.2 Lessor’s Insurance. Lessor shall procure, pay for and keep in full force and
effect during the Term the following policies of insurance:

(a) Commercial property insurance written on a special form or “all-risk”
basis covering Lessor’s portion of the Building and other improvements of which the Premises form
a part (excluding Lessee’s furniture, equipment, trade fixtures and other personal property), in an
amount not less than the full replacement cost thereof, together with ordinance or law, demolition,
and increased cost of construction coverage to the extent required by Lessor’s lender or reasonably
carried by prudent institutional owners of comparable properties in San Benito County. Such
property insurance shall insure against risk of direct physical loss or damage, including fire and
other customary perils, subject only to such deductibles and exclusions as are commercially
reasonable.

12.3  Protection of Policy. Lessee shall not use or permit any person or entity to
use the Premises in any manner that is likely to cause a cancellation of any insurance policy
covering the Premises. Lessee shall comply with all requirements of any insurance company,
insurance underwriter, or Board of Fire Underwriters which are necessary to maintain the insurance
coverage carried by either Lessor or Lessee pursuant to this Lease.

13. REPAIRS: MAINTENANCE.

13.1 Lessor’s Responsibilities. Except as otherwise provided herein, Lessor
agrees to maintain in good condition and repair the Premises at its sole cost and expense, except for:

Page 106



(i) reasonable wear and tear; and (ii) repairs, maintenance and replacements which are required as a
result of Lessee’s (or Lessee’s employees, agents, customers, invitees, licensees or other visitors)
negligent or willful misuse of or damage to the Premises; each of which shall be repaired,
maintained or replaced at the sole cost and expense of Lessee. Lessee agrees to immediately give
Lessor written notice of any defect or need for repair, after which Lessor shall have a reasonable
opportunity to repair the same or cure the problem.

13.2 Lessee’s Responsibilities. Lessee shall (i) maintain the Premises in
approximately the same or better condition as existed on the Effective Date, reasonable wear and
tear excepted; (ii) pay at its own expense, all repairs, maintenance, and alterations of Lessee-
installed fixtures or improvements; and (iii) immediately notify Lessor of any condition on the
Premises requiring repair, maintenance, or replacement.

14.  LIMITS ON LIABILITY: INDEMNIFICATION.

14.1 Limitation on Lessor’s Liability and Actions. Lessor shall not be liable to
Lessee, nor shall Lessee be entitled to terminate this Lease under any circumstances, except as
expressly stated in this Lease. Further, Lessee shall not be entitled to any abatement of rent for any
injury to Lessee, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees, for any damage to Lessee’s property
or for any loss to Lessee’s business resulting from any cause, including without limitation (i) any
failure, interruption of any utility system or service, labor disturbances of any character or other
incidents or conditions beyond the reasonable control of Lessor or by the making of repairs or
improvements to the Premises or Property; (ii) any limitation, curtailment, rationing or restriction
on use of water, gas, diesel, propane or electricity or on any other form of energy or any other
service or utility serving the Premises or provided by Lessee’s business; or (iii) any fire, flood, or
other natural disaster. In no event shall Lessor be liable to Lessee for special, consequential,
punitive or exemplary damages.

142  Indemnification. Each party hereto (the “Indemnifying Party”) shall
indemnify and hold harmless the other party and such party’s employees, directors, officers,
subcontractors, agents and affiliates from and against all claims, actions, damages, losses, liabilities,
fines, penalties, costs or expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees)
(“Losses”) suffered by such party arising from or in connection with (i) the Indemnifying Party’s
negligence or willful misconduct, and (ii) any breach by the Indemnifying Party of this Lease, in
each case to the extent caused by the Indemnifying Party or its contractors, invitees, licensees, or
agents. The foregoing obligations shall apply to third-party claims and, as between the parties, to
claims asserted by the Indemnified Party(ies) to the extent resulting from the matters described in
the preceding sentence; provided, however, that no party shall be required to indemnify the other to
the extent any Losses result from the negligence or willful misconduct of the party seeking
indemnification or its contractors, invitees, licensees, or agents. The indemnification obligations set
forth herein shall not apply to claims to the extent covered by property or general liability insurance
carried by either party under this Lease, and each party hereby waives and releases claims against
the other to the extent of insurance proceeds actually received (or that would have been received
had the required insurance been maintained) and agrees to obtain from its insurers waivers of
subrogation consistent with this Lease. :

Page 107



14.3  Survival. The provisions of this Section 14 shall survive the expiration or
sooner termination of this Lease with respect to any claim or liability occurring prior to such
expiration or sooner termination.

15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.

15.1 By Lessee. Except as otherwise provided herein, Lessee shall not assign,
sublet, sell or otherwise transfer (“Transfer”) this Lease (by operation of law or otherwise) without
the prior written consent and approval of Lessor which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

15.2 By Lessor. Lessor shall have the right to Transfer its interest in the Premises
at any time and to any person or entity, provided that Lessor shall promptly notify Lessee in writing
of such Transfer. For a period of ninety (90) days following receipt of notice of such Transfer,
Lessee shall have the option to terminate this Lease without further obligation.

16. LESSEE DEFAULT.

16.1 Events of Default. Lessee shall be in defauit of its obligations under this
Lease if any of the following events occurs: (i) Lessee shall have failed to pay Rent within fifteen
(15) days after such payment is due; (ii) Lessee shall have failed to perform any term, covenant or
condition of this Lease except those requiring the payment of Rent, and Lessee shall have failed to
cure such breach within thirty (30) days after written notice from Lessor specifying the nature of
such breach; or (iii) Lessee shall have abandoned the Premises.

16.2 Lessor’s Remedies. In the event of a default by Lessee, Lessor shall have the
right to (i) immediately terminate this Lease upon written notice to Lessee and enter and take
possession of the Premises; and/or (ii) pursue all remedies at law and/or in equity. Notwithstanding,
nothing in this Section 16 shall waive any Lessee rights pursuant to California Code of Civil
Procedure sections 1174 and 1179 and California Civil Code section 3275.

17. LESSOR DEFAULT.

17.1  Events of Default. Lessor shall be in default of its obligations under this
Lease if Lessor shall have failed to perform any term, covenant or condition of this Lease and
Lessor shall have failed to cure such breach within thirty (30) days after written notice from Lessee
specifying the nature of such breach; provided, however, that if such failure cannot reasonably be
cured within such thirty (30) day period, Lessor shall not be deemed in default so long as Lessor
commences to cure such failure within such period and thereafter diligently and continuously
prosecutes such cure to completion.

17.2  Lessee’s Remedies. In the event of a default by Lessor, Lessee shall have the
right to (i) immediately terminate this Lease upon written notice to Lessor and abandon the
Premises; and/or (ii) pursue all remedies at law and/or in equity, including California Civil Code
section 1942.

18. CERTIFIED ACCESS SPECIALIST INSPECTION. Neither the Premises nor the
Property has undergone an inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (“CASp”). Pursuant to
California Civil Code section 1938, Lessor hereby advises Lessee as follows: 4 Certified Access

Page 108



Specialist (CASp) can inspect the subject premises and determine whether the subject premises
comply with all of the applicable construction-related accessibility standards under state law.
Although state law does not require a CASp inspection of the subject premises, the commercial
property owner or lessor may not prohibit the lessee or tenant from obtaining a CASp inspection of
the subject premises for the occupancy or potential occupancy of the lessee or tenant, if requested
by the lessee or tenant. The parties shall mutually agree on the arrangements for the time and
manner of the CASp inspection, the payment of the fee for the CASp inspection, and the cost of
making any repairs necessary to correct violations of construction-related accessibility standards
within the premises.

2

19.  ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE. Lessee shall, within ten (10) business days after
receipt of written notice from Lessor, execute, acknowledge and deliver to Lessor or to any party
designated by Lessor, a certificate of Lessee stating: (a) that Lessee has accepted and is in
possession the Premises, (b) the Term of this Lease, (¢) that this Lease is unmodified and in full
force and effect (or, if there have been modifications, that same is in full force and effect as
modified and stating the modifications), (d) whether or not there are then existing any defenses
against the enforcement of any of the obligations of Lessee under this Lease (and, if so, specifying
same), (¢) whether or not there are then existing any defaults by Lessor in the performance of its
obligations under this Lease (and, if so, specifying same), (f) the dates through which the Rent have
been paid, and (g) any other factual information relating to the rights and obligations under this
Lease that may reasonably be required by any of such persons.

20. MISCELLEANOUS.

20.1 Recitals. The preamble and recitals are hereby incorporated into this Lease
as if set forth herein in full.

20.2 Holding Over. This Lease shall terminate without further notice at the
expiration or sooner termination of the Term. Any holding over by Lessee after expiration or
sooner termination of the Term shall not constitute a renewal or extension of this Lease or give
Lessee any rights in or to the Premises except as expressly provided in this Lease. Any holding
over after such expiration or sooner termination shall be construed to be a tenancy from month-to-
month on the same terms and conditions herein specified insofar as applicable except that monthly
Base Rent shall be increased to an amount equal to one hundred five percent (105%) of the Base
Rent due the last month of the Term.

20.3  Number: Gender: Headings. Whenever appropriate in this Lease, terms in
the singular form shall include the plural (and vice versa) and any gender form shall include all
others. Section headings in this Lease are for the convenience of the parties only and do not form a
part of this Lease, nor should such headings be used to interpret any provision of this Lease.

20.4 Binding Effect. This Lease shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their permitted successors and assigns, and any reference to a party
hereto shall also be a reference to a permitted successor or assign.

20.5 Complete Agreement. This instrument, any attached exhibits, and the
documents expressly described or referred to in the Lease constitute all of the understandings and

Page 109



agreements existing between the parties concerning this Lease and the rights, interest,
understandings, agreements and obligations created by this Lease. Any prior discussions or
documents relating to this Lease and the subject matter hereof are fully and completely integrated
herein, and no such prior discussion or document outside of this Lease shall be considered or used
in any way to interpret any provision of this Lease.

20.6  Severability. If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Lease is
held by a court of competent jurisdiction (or by an arbitrator who adjudicates any dispute or
interprets this Lease) for any reason to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any such provision shall not affect any other provisions
hereof, and this Lease shall be construed as if it did not contain any invalid, illegal or unenforceable
provision.

20.7 Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this
Lease shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of service if
served personally, the date transmitted by email to the party to whom notice is to be given, or on the
second day after mailing if mailed to the party to whom notice is to be given, by first class mail,
registered or certified, postage prepaid, and properly addressed as follows:

Ifto Lessee: Ifto Lessor:

San Benito Health Care District Ceglia Properties, LLC
Attention: Chief Financial Officer Attention: John Ceglia
911 Sunset Drive 154 Stony Brook Dr.
Hollister, CA 95023 Hollister, CA 95023
E-mail: mrobinson@hazelhawkins.com E-mail:

With a required copy to:

Noland, Hamerly, Etienne & Hoss
Attn: Danny Little

P.O. Box 2510

Salinas, CA 93902-2510

E-mail: dlittle@nheh.com

Any party may change their or its address for purposes of this section by giving the
other party written notice of the new address in the manner set forth above.

20.8 Amendments. The exclusive method to change or modify this Lease shall be
by a written amendment, signed by the parties, and shall be effective from the date specified in such
amendment unless the parties agree to another effective date of amendment in such writing. No oral
agreement conflicting in any manner with the terms hereof shall be effective, whether or not
partially performed, unless and until embodied in such an amendment to this Lease and signed by
the parties to this Lease.

20.9 Controlling L.aw. This Lease has been negotiated, drafted and executed in
San Benito County, California. The parties agree that this Lease and the rights and remedies of the
parties hereunder shall be governed by California law. Each party consents to the exclusive

Page 110



jurisdiction of the Superior Court of California in and for the County of San Benito with respect to
any dispute which is not otherwise resolved as herein provided and for the enforcement hereof.

20.10 Preparation of Agreement. The parties acknowledge that the law offices of
Noland, Hamerly, Etienne & Hoss, a professional corporation (“NHEH”), has prepared this Lease
on behalf of Lessee, and that NHEH has not provided legal representation or given legal advice to
Lessor in connection with negotiating, drafting or executing this Lease. Lessor acknowledges that
Lessor has been given a reasonable opportunity to obtain independent legal advice in connection
with his negotiation, drafting and executing of this Lease.

20.11 Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Lease and failure to
comply strictly with this provision and the time periods specified herein (unless waived or extended
by written agreement) shall be a material breach of this Lease.

20.12 Cumulative Rights. All rights and remedies of any party under this Lease or
under applicable law shall be separate and cumulative, and no right or remedy, whether or not
exercised, shall preclude a party from exercising any other right or remedy it may have.

20.13 Interpretation/Construction of Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this
Lease was drafted after negotiations between the parties. The parties agree that any ambiguities or
uncertainties shall be resolved by giving effect to the ascertained intent of the parties pursuant to
California Civil Code section 1654 without any presumption against either party.

20.14 Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same
agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Lease as of the date first
above written.

LESSEE LESSOR
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT CEGLIA PROPERTIES, LLC
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
9

Page 111



EXHIBIT A
Property Legal Description

All that real property located in the City of Hollister, County of San Benito, State of California
described as follows:

PARCEL 2 AND PARCEL 3 AS IS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN PARCEL MAP FILED FOR
RECORD OCTOBER 17,2007 IN BOOK 10 OF PARCEL MAPS, AT PAGE 49, RECORDER’S
FILE NO. 2007-0012755, SAN BENITO COUNTY RECORDS OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA

Page 112



EXHIBIT B

IMlustration of the Premises

Approximate location of the Premises identified in red ink.

4910-0514-2665, v. 3

Page 113



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made, entered into and effective as of March 1, 2026
(“Effective Date”), by and between San Benito Health Care District, a local health care district organized and
operated pursuant to Division 23 of the California Health and Safety Code (“SBHCD”), FOCUS PHYSICAL
THERAPY AND GYM MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC., a California professional physical therapy
corporation (“Corporation”).

RECITALS

SBHCD owns and operates Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital, a licensed general acute care facility
located at 911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, California (“Hespital™”). Hospital provides inpatient and outpatient
services to residents of the San Benito Health Care District and surrounding communities which constitute
the Hospital’s service area (“Hospital Service Area”).

SBHCD owns and operates a physical therapy clinic provide services to patients in the Hospital Service
Area (“Clinic”). Clinic operates under the name “Focus Sports Therapy” at 101 McCray Street, Ste. 108,
Hollister, CA 95023.

Corporation is a California professional physical therapy corporation organized under the Moscone-Knox
Professional Corporation Act (“Act”), duly licensed and authorized to practice physical therapy in
California.

Corporation’s physical therapists (each a “PT” and collectively the “PTs”) are licensed to practice
physical therapy in the State of California, and experienced and qualified to provide physical therapy
services. The term “PTs” includes all physical therapists who own shares in, employed by, contracted
with, or serving as director or officer of Corporation on the Effective Date and at any time during the
Term of this Agreement.

Section 32129 of the California Health and Safety Code provides that a health care district may contract
with physicians and health care provider groups to render professional health services in order to ensure
that adequate health care is available to all residents within its service area.

SBHCD has determined that entering into this Agreement with Corporation is in the best interests of
SBHCD and the public health of the residents of the Hospital Service Area and is an appropriate way to
assure availability of skilled physical therapy services to patients in the Hospital Service Area.

The parties desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their respective responsibilities in connection
with the Services provided by Corporation through PTs at the Hospital and Clinic during the term of this
Agreement.

The parties hereby agree as follows:

1.1

ARTICLE 1 - DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF CORPORATION

Services. Beginning on March 1, 2026 (“Commencement Date”), Corporation shall provide
Services (as defined in Exhibit A) to patients at Clinic and/or Hospital and on the schedule more fully
described in Exhibit A, which is attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this reference. Services
include Medicare services, Medi-Cal services, services pursuant to any other federal health care program
or a state health care financial program (“Governmental Programs”), workers’ compensation services,
and charity care. Corporation shall ensure PTs cooperate to enable Clinic’s and Hospital’s participation
in Medicare, Medi-Cal, Governmental Programs, workers’ compensation services and commercial payor
programs. PTs shall provide Services to all patients, including Medicare, Medi-Cal, Governmental
Program, and workers’ compensation beneficiaries, in a non-discriminatory manner and in accordance
with all applicable laws and SBHCD policies and procedures, as developed and implemented in
collaboratton with leadership of Hospital and Clinic.

Page 1 of 10 Page 114



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

Qualifications.

1.2.1 Corporation shall: (i) be duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of

California; (ii) meet all licensure and registration requirements to practice physical therapy as a
professional corporation; (iii) not be excluded from participation in any governmental healthcare
program; and (iv) have no shareholders or directors other than “licensed persons” as defined in the
Act.

1.2.2  Each PT shall: (i) be duly licensed to practice physical therapy by the State of California; (ii) be

qualified to perform the Services by having adequate levels of competency and experience; (iii) have
skill comparable to those prevailing in the community; (iv) not be excluded from participation in any
governmental healthcare program; and (v) be certified as a participating providers in the Medicare
and Medi-Cal programs.

Compliance. In connection with the operation and conduct of the Clinic and Hospital and rendition of
Services, Corporation and PTs shall, at all times and as applicable, comply with the applicable terms of
this Agreement and with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including
requirements for participation in the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs, SBHCD rules and regulations,
and applicable policies and procedures, and will at all times be aware of and participate in meeting the
SBHCD Corporate Compliance program goals and objectives.

Credentialing. In order to be efficiently credentialed with payors contracted with SBHCD, PTs shall
participate in the Council for Affordable Quality Healthcare (“CAQH”) credentialing program (as
applicable) and shall timely comply with requests from CAQH or SBHCD personnel for (i) credentialing
information regarding each PT, and (ii) documents necessary for the credentialing of each PT.

Use of Premises. No part of the SBHCD premises shall be used at any time by Corporation or PT as an
office for the general or private practice of physical therapy (other than Services pursuant to this
Agreement).

Patient Records/Chart Notes. Each PT shall provide appropriate and necessary documentation for each
patient’s record for all patient encounters in the Clinic and Hospital in compliance with the Hospital’s and
Clinics’ policies and procedures.

Coding. PTs shall properly code all professional services rendered to patients. PTs’ coding shall be used
for purposes of billing for Services provided by Corporation. All such coding shall be subject to review
and audit by an independent auditing company mutually agreed upon by the parties.

Professional Standards. In performing Services, Corporation and PT shall comply with the principles and
ethics of the American Physical Therapy Association, the California Physical Therapy Association and
any federal, state or municipal law, statute or ordinance dealing with the practice of physical therapy by
PTs. Each PT shall further abide in all respects with the Code of Conduct applicable to professional health
care providers of any hospital, outpatient clinic or surgery center, including but not limited to SBHCD, at
which Corporation provides professional services. Corporation and PTs shall provide services to all
SBHCD patients on a courteous and prompt basis, be available and accessible to patients, provide them
with full and meaningful information and render services in a manner which assures continuity of care.

ARTICLE 2 - DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF SBHCD

Duties. SBHCD agrees to furnish at its own cost and expense, for the operation of the Clinic and Hospital,
the following:

2.1.1 Space and Equipment. Space and Equipment as may be reasonably required for the operation of
the Clinic and Hospital as determined by SBHCD. SBHCD shall provide Corporation office
space sufficient to perform the administrative and management services rendered as part of the
Services.

Page 2 of 10 Page 115



2.2

23

24

3.1

32

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

2.1.2  Services and Supplies. Maintenance, repair, and replacement of equipment as are reasonably
required; all utilities, including telephone, power, light, gas, and water; and all supplies that may
be reasonably required for the operation of the Clinic and Hospital.

2.1.3  Non-physician Personnel. All non-physician personnel with appropriate education, training and
experience required to operate the Clinic and Hospital, including qualified administrative
personnel (except as required of Corporation as part of the Services). SBHCD shall have the sole
right and responsibility for the hiring and termination of all its employees. SBHCD shall be
responsible for the scheduling of non-physician Clinic and Hospital personnel.

Eligibility. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Clinics and Hospital shall remain eligible to
participate in the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs.

Contracts. SBHCD shall be solely responsible for negotiating all contracts for the reimbursement of
Services provided in the Clinic and Hospital. SBHCD in its sole and absolute discretion shall determine
the negotiation parameters for the terms, conditions, and rates for such contracts.

Access to Records. Corporation and PT shall have access to the SBHCD patient medical and business
records for quality of care and compliance purposes.

ARTICLE 3 - BILLING AND ASSIGNMENT OF REVENUE

Billing and Collection. SBHCD shall perform billing and collection services under this Agreement for
all professional services rendered by PTs. Corporation and PTs shall cooperate with SBHCD and shall
use its/his’her best efforts to furnish appropriate documentation of patient care services provided by PTs
to enable SBHCD to timely and accurately bill and collect for such services.

Assignment of Professional Service Revenues. Corporation and PTs hereby assign to SBHCD the right
to all revenue from any and all patients, third-party payors, and Governmental Programs for all
professional services rendered as part of the Services by Corporation and PTs at the Hospital and the
Clinic under this Agreement. The parties intend that SBHCD may bill and collect directly from the
Medicare carrier for PT’s services to Medicare beneficiaries in compliance with Medicare Publication
100-04, Chapter 1, Sec. 30.2.7.

ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES BY CORPORATION

Compensation. As compensation for the provision of Services in the Clinic and Hospital, SBHCD shall
pay Corporation as outlined in Exhibit A to this Agreement and in accordance with the normal SBHCD
contract payment process for Services provided hereunder. Neither Corporation nor any PT shall not bill
for facility fees, administrative, supervisory, medical director, or similar services.

Schedule of Charges. SBHCD, in its sole and absolute discretion, shall decide upon the schedule of
charges for the Clinic and Hospital. Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 32129, the
SBHCD Board of Directors may review the fees and charges for Services provided at the Clinic and
Hospital to ensure such fees and charges are reasonable, fair, and consistent with the basic commitment
of SBHCD to provide adequate health care to all residents within the Hospital Service Area.

ARTICLE 5 - TERM AND TERMINATION

Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and continue for a period
of five (5) years, unless terminated earlier as provided in this Agreement, and shall automatically renew
for successive one (1) year periods thereafter unless (i) either party gives written notice of nonrenewat
not less than sixty (60) days prior to renewal, or (ii) the Agreement is earlier terminated as set forth herein.

Termination. Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without stating a cause or
reason and without cost or penalty upon ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the other party.

Page 3 of 10 Page 116



53

5.4

Notwithstanding, either party shall have the right to terminate the Agreement for cause upon written notice
to the other party as set forth below.

Definition of Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, “cause” shall include, but not be limited to, the

occurrence of any of the following events:

53.1

532

533

53.4

53.5

53.6

5.3.7

53.8

53.9

5.3.10

SBHCD, Corporation, or any PT is in breach of any material term or condition of this Agreement
and such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days following written notice of such
breach.

SBHCD or Corporation becomes insolvent or declares bankruptcy.

Corporation fails to meet any licensure or registration requirement promulgated by the Physical
Therapy Board of California.

Any PT’s license to practice physical therapy is revoked or suspended.

SBHCD fails to carry or reinstate the insurance required in ARTICLE 8 of this Agreement or
such coverage is cancelled or revoked within fifteen (15) days following notice of revocation
from its insurance carrier.

SBHCD’s determination, in its sole discretion, that Corporation or any PT has violated a material
term of ARTICLE 9 of this Agreement.

The performance by either party of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement which
jeopardizes the licensure of Hospital, Hospital’s participation in Medicare, Medi-Cal or other
reimbursement or payment program, or Hospital’s full accreditation by The Joint Commission or
any other state or nationally recognized accreditation organization, or the tax-exempt status of
Hospital’s bonds, or if for any other reason such performance violates any statute, ordinance, or
is otherwise deemed illegal, or is deemed unethical by any recognized body, agency, or
association in the healthcare fields, and the jeopardy or violation has not been or cannot be cured
within sixty (60) days from the date notice of such jeopardy or violation has been received by the
parties.

Any PT being charged with or convicted of a crime other than an infraction, traffic citation, or
similar charge.

Any PT’s engagement in: (i) willful misconduct (which means the knowing and intentional failure
to exercise ordinary care to prevent material injury to SBHCD or the commission of an intentional
act with knowledge that it is likely to result in material injury to the SBHCD), (ii) fraudulent
activities, (iii) crimes or acts of moral turpitude, (iv) any breach of a duty to SBHCD, a patient,
or any third party payor, (v) sexual harassment or abuse, or (vi) or any other action or omission
that could materially affect SBHCD’s business or reputation in an adverse manner.

Termination or expiration of the Commercial Lease for the Clinic by and between SBHCD and
Ceglia Properties, LLC of even date herewith.

Termination/Expiration Not Subiect to Fair Hearing. It is agreed between the parties that should either
party exercise its right to terminate this Agreement such decision to terminate, and the actual termination
or expiration of this Agreement, shall apply to rights under this Agreement only and not to any PT’s
medical staff privileges or membership on the medical staff of Hospital (if applicable). The termination
or expiration of this Agreement shall not be subject to the Fair Hearing Plan of the Medical Staff Bylaws,
the hearing procedures provided by Healthcare District Law, or any other fair hearing procedure regarding
medical staff appointments or privileges.

Page 4 of 10 Page 117



6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

ARTICLE 6 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Independent Contractor Status. Corporation is engaged in an independent contractor relationship with
SBHCD in performing all work, services, duties, and obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Neither
SBHCD nor Hospital shall exercise any control or direction over the methods by which Corporation or
any PT performs work and functions, except that each PT shall perform at all times in strict accordance
with then currently approved methods and practices of PT’s professional specialty. SBHCD’s sole interest
is to ensure that PT performs and renders services in a competent, efficient, and satisfactory manner in
accordance with high physical therapy standards.

Independent Contractor Responsibilities. The parties expressly agree that no work, act, commission, or
omission of Corporation pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be construed to
make or render Corporation or any PT the agent or employee of SBHCD. No PT shall be entitled to
receive from SBHCD vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, Social Security, workers’
compensation, disability or unemployment insurance benefits or any other employee benefit. Corporation
shall be solely responsible for paying when due all income, employment and withholding taxes and
employment benefits, if any, including estimated taxes, incurred as a result of the compensation paid by
(i) SBHCD to Corporation, and (ii) Corporation to any PT for Services under this Agreement. Corporation
is responsible for providing, at its sole own expense, disability, unemployment, workers’ compensation
and other insurance (if applicable), training, permits and licenses.

ARTICLE 7 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

SBHCD Representations and Warranties. SBHCD for itself, and its board of directors, officers,
employees, and agents (collectively, “Agents”), represents and warrants to SBHCD, upon execution and
while this Agreement is in effect, as follows:

7.1.1  SBHCD has all requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its
obligations under this Agreement;

7.1.2  This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by SBHCD and is a legal,
valid, binding obligation of SBHCD, enforceable in accordance with its terms;

7.1.3  The parties have bargained at arms’ length to determine Corporation’s compensation under this
Agreement, the compensation is fair market value for the Services; and the compensation is
consistent with fair market value for similar services in the community; and

7.1.4 The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby by SBHCD will not violate and provisions of, or constitute a default under,
and contract or other agreement to which SBHCD is a party or by which it is bound, other than
violations, defaults or conflicts that would not materially and adversely affect the ability of
SBHCD to perform the its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.

Corporation Representations and Warranties. Corporation, for itself, each PT, and its Agents, represents
and warrants to SBHCD, upon execution and while this Agreement is in effect, as follows:

7.2.1  Corporation: (i) is a duly organized professional physical therapy corporation, validly existing
and in good standing under the laws of California, (ii) is qualified to do business in, and is in good
standing in, every jurisdiction where such qualification is required, and (iii) has all requisite
corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this
Agreement, including all required licensure and registration with the Physical Therapy Board of
California;

7.2.2 No PT's license to practice physical therapy in California or in any other jurisdiction has ever

been denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary
action, or restricted in any way;

Page 5 of 10 Page 118



8.1

9.1

723 No PT's medical staff privileges at any health care facility have ever been denied, suspended,
revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or made subject
to terms of probation or any other restriction;

7.2.4 NoPT has in the past conducted, and is presently not conducting, his/her physical therapy practice
in such a manner as to cause said PT to be suspended, excluded, barred or sanctioned under
Medicare or Medi-Cal, or any government licensing agency, nor have they every been convicted
of a criminal offense related to health care, or listed by a federal agency as debarred, excluded or
otherwise ineligible for federal program participation;

7.2.5 Each PT has, and shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, an unrestricted license to
practice physical therapy in California and privileges at the Hospital/Clinic;

7.2.6 This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Corporation and is a legal,
valid, binding obligation of Corporation, enforceable in accordance with its terms; and

7.2.7 The parties have bargained at arms’ length to determine Corporation’s compensation under this
Agreement, the compensation is fair market value for the Services; and the compensation is
consistent with fair market value for similar services in the community; and

7.2.8 The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby by Corporation will not violate any provisions of, or constitute a default
under, and contract or other agreement to which Corporation or any PT is a party or by which it
is bound, other than violations, defaults or conflicts that would not materially and adversely affect
the ability of Corporation or any PT to perform the Services required under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 8 - LIABILITY/MALPRACTICE INSURANCE COVERAGE

Coverages. At all times during the Term of this Agreement, Corporation shall maintain general and
professional liability insurance coverage for Corporation and PTs for the Services provided hereunder to
SBHCD patients during the term of this Agreement in a minimum amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence
and $3,000,000 annual aggregate. In the event the coverage that Corporation obtains to comply with this
Section of this Agreement is a “claims made” policy, and Corporation, as applicable, changes insurance
carriers or terminates coverage upon or after termination of this Agreement, Corporation shall
immediately obtain and shall maintain “tail” coverage in the amounts otherwise required under this
Section for at least seven (7) years following termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 - PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

Protected Health Information. Corporation and the PTs shall maintain the confidentiality of all Protected
Health Information (“PHI”} in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations,
including, but not limited to, the California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act and the Federal
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and regulations promulgated thereunder
(“HIPAA”). Without limiting the foregoing, Corporation agrees to maintain PHI, as defined from time
to time under HIPAA, which may be made available to or received by Corporation or any PT pursuant to
this Agreement, in accordance with the requirements of HIPAA. Corporation and the PTs shall:

9.1.1 Not use or further disclose PHI in a manner that would violate HIPAA if done by Hospital or
violate the requirements of applicable laws or this Agreement;

9.1.2 Use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of PHI except as permitted by law and
the terms of this Agreement, and report to Hospital any use or disclosure of PHI not permitted by

law or by this Agreement of which any PT becomes aware;

9.1.3 Comply with the elements of any compliance program established by Hospital that applies to the
use or disclosure of PHI and ensure that any subcontractors or agents to whom Corporation

Page 6 of 10 Page 119



9.2

10.1

provides PHI agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Corporation and PT with
respect to such PHI;

In accordance with HIPAA, (i) make available PHI to the subject patient; (ii) make available PHI
for amendment and incorporate any amendments to PHI; and (iii) make available the information
required to provide an accounting of disclosures of PHI to the subject patient;

Make Corporation’s internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of
PHI available to the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services for
purposes of determining Hospital’s and Corporation’s compliance with HIPAA,

At termination of this Agreement, return or destroy all PHI received from or created by SBHCD
and retain no copies of such PHI or, if return or destruction is not permissible under law or the
terms of this Agreement, continue to maintain all PHI in accordance with the provisions of this
Section and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction
of the information infeasible.

Electronic Protected Health Information (“EPHI”). Corporation will: (i) implement administrative,

physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity,
and availability of the EPHI that each PT creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of SBHCD;
(ii) report to SBHCD any security incident with respect to EPHI of which Corporation or any PT becomes
aware; and (iii) ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom Corporation or any PT provides
EPHI agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect such information.

ARTICLE 10 - REQUIRED DISCLOSURES

Required Disclosures. Corporation shall notify SBHCD in writing within three (3) days after any of the

following events occur:

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.13

10.1.4

10.1.5

10.1.6

10.1.7

Any PT's license to practice physical therapy in California or any other jurisdiction lapses or is
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished (under threat of disciplinary
action) or made subject to terms or probation or other restriction;

Any PT's medical staff membership and/or privileges at any health care facility or entity are
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished (under threat of disciplinary
action), or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction;

Any PT is required to pay damages in any malpractice action by way of judgment or settlement,
except that Corporation and PT shall not be required to breach a settlement or confidentiality
agreement;

Receipt of notice of the commencement of any investigation into PT's physical therapy license
or PT's physical therapy practice by the Physical Therapy Board of California, California
Attorney General, the Department of Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General,
the Department of Justice, or any other entity of federal, state, or local government;

An event occurs that (i) substantially interrupts all or a portion of Corporation's or any PT’s
professional practice, including the termination of any PT’s shareholder, director, or
employee/contractor relationship with Corporation, (ii) materially adversely affects
Corporation's or PT’s ability to perform their obligations hereunder, including the Services, or
(iii) could likely cause Corporation to be in breach of this Agreement;

Any PT's conviction of a criminal offense related to health care or any PT's listing by a federal
agency as being debarred, excluded or otherwise ineligible for federal program participation; or

The occurrence of any event that would constitute cause pursuant to Section 5.3.

Page 7 of 10 Page 120



11.2

11.3

11.4

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

ARTICLE 11 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Notices. Any notice to be given to any party hereunder shall be deposited in the United States Mail, duly
registered or certified, with return receipt requested, with postage paid, and addressed to the party for
which intended, at the addresses set forth in the signature block, or to such other address or addresses as
the parties may hereafter designate in writing to each other.

No Waiver. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed, or shall constitute, a
waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver.
No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in the County of San Benito, California.

Ownership of Patient Records. All Clinic and Hospital patient records shall be maintained by SBHCD
and are the property of SBHCD. Corporation shall have the right to access such records during normal
business hours.

Patient Choice. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, all compensation paid to Corporation
pursuant to this Agreement is solely for the purpose of obtaining the services of Corporation, through PTs,
for patients of the SBHCD community. The parties recognize and affirm the importance of individual
patient choice in selection of medical services. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be interpreted
to obligate, encourage, or solicit, in any way, the referral of any individual patient to any health care
facility, including the Hospital, contrary to that patient’s choice of another provider of medical services.
Further, nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted to prevent, restrict, or discourage the PT from
referring patients to any other provider of health care services.

Exclusive Property of SBHCD. All data, files, records, documents, promotional materials, and similar
items relating to the business of SBHCD, whether prepared by or with the assistance of Corporation or
any PT or otherwise coming into Corporation’s or any PT’s possession shall remain the exclusive
property of SBHCD and shall not be removed from SBHCD’s facilities under any circumstances
without the prior written consent of SBHCD.

Confidentiality. The parties acknowledge and agree that during the term of this Agreement and in the
course of the discharge of Corporation’s duties hereunder, Corporation and PTs shall have access to and
become acquainted with information concerning the operation of SBHCD, and information which,
pursuant to applicable law and regulation, is deemed to be confidential, including, but not limited to, trade
secrets, medical records, patient medical and personal information, and personnel records. Corporation
agrees that such information shall not be disclosed either directly or indirectly to any other person or entity
or used by Corporation or its Agents in any way either during the term of this Agreement or at any other
time thereafter, except as is required herein. Corporation understands breach of this article will be an
irremediable breach of this Agreement. Such breach will result in immediate termination of this
Agreement, and SBHCD shall be entitled to pursue any available at remedies at law or equity resulting
from such breach.

Binding Agreement: No Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit
of the parties to it and their respective legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns. No party
may assign this Agreement or any rights hereunder, or may they delegate any of the duties to be performed
hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party.

Indemnification. Each party hereto shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party and such
party’s employees, directors, officers, subcontractors, agents and affiliates from and against all claims,
actions, damages, losses, liabilities, fines, penalties, costs or expenses (including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys’ fees) suffered by such party arising from or in connection with (i) any breach of this
Agreement or any applicable law, or (ii) any negligent or wrongful acts or omissions in connection with
the performance of this Agreement by the party or its employees, directors, officers, subcontractors, agents
or representatives.

Page 8 of 10 Page 121



11.10

11.11

11.12

Dispute Resolution. If any dispute, controversy, or claim arises out of this Agreement, for a period of
thirty (30) days following written notice of the dispute, controversy or claim from one party to the other,
the parties will use their good faith efforts to resolve the dispute, controversy, or claim. If the matter
cannot be resolved by the parties in this fashion, then such dispute, claim or controversy shall be heard in
San Benito County, California, pursuant to the provisions of California Code of Civil Procedure Sections
638 through 645.1, inclusive. The hearing shall be final and binding to the greatest extent permitted by
law, and the cost thereof, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, shall be borne by the losing party in such
proportions as the referee may decide. Judgment on the award may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof.

Section 952 of Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1980. In accordance with Section 952 of the
Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980 (PL 96-499), Corporation agrees that the books and records of
Corporation will be available to the Secretary of Department of Health and Human Services and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or their duly authorized representatives, for four (4) years after
termination of this Agreement. In the event that any of the services to be performed under this Agreement
are performed by any subcontractor of Corporation at a value or cost of $10,000 or more over a twelve
(12) month period, Corporation shall comply and assure that such subcontractor complies with the
provisions of Section 952 of the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980. If not applicable to this Agreement,
this Section shall automatically be repealed.

Entire Agreement: Amendment. This Agreement, its exhibits, and all referenced documents constitute
the entire agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter contained herein. This
Agreement supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations and understandings of
the parties which relate to the subject matter of this Agreement. No supplement, amendment or
modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all of the parties.

***Signatures follow on the next page***

Page 9 of 10 Page 122



The parties hereby executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date first set forth above.

SBHCD CORPORATION
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT FOCUS PHYSICAL THERAPY AND GYM
MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.
By: By:
John L. Ceglia, CEO
Name:
Title:
Addpress for Notices: Address for Notices:

San Benito Health Care District
Attn: Chief Executive Officer
911 Sunset Dr.

Hollister, CA

Page 10 of 10 Page 123



EXHIBIT A
SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. Services. Beginning on the Commencement Date, Corporation shall provide the following
services (the “Services”):

A.1  Administrative and Management Services. All administrative and management (non-
professional) services required to operate the Clinic, including but not limited to patient scheduling and
PT coverage. Corporation shall also provide input on business matters as requested by SBHCD, e.g.,
marketing, business development, etc. (“Administrative and Management Services”).
Notwithstanding, SBHCD shall retain sole authority to direct the medical, professional, ethical, and
business aspects of the Clinic.

A.2  Professional Physical Therapy Service. Corporation, through the PTs, shall provide
professional physical therapy services to SBHCD patients at the Clinic as directed by SBHCD
(“Professional Services”). Corporation shall provide Professional Services at the Clinic at the rate of
not less than 2.7 full time equivalent PTs each month.

B. Schedule.
B.1  Full Time Basis. Corporation shall provide Services and operate the Clinic on a full-time

basis, which shall mean five days per week (Monday through Friday) for eight hours per day, or during
such other period as the parties may agree.

B.2  Holidays. Corporation may close the Clinic on SBHCD recognized holidays.

C. Compensation.

C.1 Fees.

C.1.1 Management Fee. SBHCD shall pay Corporation a monthly flat fee of
$63,194.00 to provide the Administrative and Management Services (“Management Fee”). Each year
on the anniversary of the Effective Date, the Management Fee shall be increased by three percent (3%).

C.1.2 Professional Services Fee. SBHCD shall pay Corporation the following
amounts as compensation for the Professional Services: $42,000.00 per month (“Professional Services
Fee”). Each year on the anniversary of the Effective Date, the Professional Services Fee shall be
increased by three percent (3%).

C.1.3  Proration. If Corporation fails to provide the minimum level of Services
required by Section A.2 or B.1, compensation shall be reduced to reflect such variance.

C.2  Timing. The Management Fee and the Professional Services Fee shall be paid on the first
day of each calendar month.

C.3  Payment on Termination. On termination of this Agreement, which is not extended,
renewed or superseded by another agreement, SBHCD shall pay to Corporation any amounts due to
Corporation within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement.

D. Services and Activities in Support of SBHCD. SBHCD and Corporation acknowledge and agree
that certain services and activities may be required of Corporation and PTs in support of SBHCD to
ensure a continuing high level of patient care. To that end, SBHCD may request Corporation or PTs
participate in functions or events from time to time, in support of SBHCD. Corporation agrees PTs will

Exhibit A —Page 1 of 2 Page 124




perform such services or participate in such activities at SBHCD’s reasonable request and such services
are Administrative and Management Services and are compensated as part of the Management Fees.

) Practice Guidelines/Best Quality Practices.  PTs shall demonstrate cooperative work
arrangements with the Medical Staff, Quality and Safety Leadership and SBHCD Administration to
achieve mutually accepted practice guidelines and the best quality practices.

4918-3268-1099,v. 3

Exhibit A — Page 2 of 2 Page 125



@ oo 4% Innova

INNOVA Revenue Group and Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
Statement of Work ("SOW")

This Statement of Work ("SOW") is entered into by and between San Benito Health Care District, a'local health
care district organized and operated pursuant to Division 23 of the California Health and Safety Code d/b/a
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital ("Client") and INNOVA Revenue Group ("Consultant”) pursuant to the existing
Master Services Agreement ("MSA") between the parties on the following date March 1, 2026 (“Effective Date”).
1. Recitals

WHEREAS, Consultant has expertise in revenue cycle management, coding, clinical documentation
improvement, utilization management, billing, and credentialing services; and

WHEREAS, Client desires to retain Consultant to provide such services under the terms of the MSA and this
SOwW;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

2. Purpose and Supersession

This SOW supersedes and replaces all prior Statements of Work between Client and Consultant related to the
services described herein. This SOW amends the MSA only to the extent expressly stated and is subject to all
other terms and conditions of the MSA.

3. Term

The term of this SOW shall be three (3) years, commencing on the date of last signature below ("Effective
Date"), unless earlier terminated as provided in the MSA or in Section 3.1 below.

3.1 Termination for Convenience

Either party may terminate this SOW for convenience upon ninety (90) days' written notice to the other party.
Upon termination, Consultant shall deliver all work in progress and submit a final invoice for services rendered
through the effective date of termination. Termination shall otherwise be governed by the applicable provisions
of the MSA.

4. Annual Rate Adjustment

All rates outlined in this SOW shali increase by two percent (2%) annually on each anniversary of the Effective
Date, calculated based on the immediately preceding year's rates.

Page 126



5. Scope of Services

Consultant shall provide the services described below, as requested by Client in writing. Services outside this
scope require a mutually agreed written amendment or change order.

Service Area Scope / Tasks Rate

5.1 Revenue Cycle Oversight RCAT participation; SME support across revenue cycle functions; $75/hour
collaboration with department leadership and providers;
workflow/process optimization support; oversight and guidance of
hospital and clinic coding teams

5.2 Hospital Coding & Charging ICD-10-CM diagnosis and applicable procedure coding; $75/hour
infusions/injections; facility E/M leveling (CPT or PCS); encounter
types: IN, INO, ED, SDC, REC, REF, SNF

5.3 Clinic Coding & Charging ICD-10-CM diagnosis coding; review and leveling of E/M services and | $75/hour
procedures; primary care and specialty clinics (e.g., Orthopedics,
OB/GYN)
5.4 Chargemaster (CDM) CDM build, maintenance, and charge mapping support; $75/hour
Specialist Services identification and resolution of charge capture issues; compliance-
focused charge guidance
5.5 Utilization Management (UM) | Medical necessity review using MCG guidelines; CDI support to $125/hour
& Clinical Documentation improve documentation accuracy and completeness; provider
Improvement (CDI{) education related to medical necessity and documentation
5.6 Hospitalist Coding & Billing Review of hospitalist documentation; charge review and corrections; | $75/hour

claim submission and post-submission follow-up

5.7 Hospitalist Credentialing Credentialing and re-credentialing of hospitalist providers; $65/hour
enroliment and maintenance with Medicare, Medicaid, and
commercial payers; follow-up with payers to ensure timely
activation. Additional providers may be added upon request and
mutual agreement.

All coding shall be at least 95% accurate as determined by the audit described in Section 6, below.

Consultant hereby represents, warrants, and covenants as follows: (i) Consultant is duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization; and qualified to do business
in, and is in good standing in, every jurisdiction where such qualification is required, and has all requisite
corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement, and that its
execution, delivery, and performance will not breach the terms of any existing agreement to which itis a party;
and (ii) Consultant shall perform the services required pursuant to this Agreement consistent with generally
accepted industry standards and all applicable laws and performed by trained and qualified individuals in a
professional, timely, skillful, and workman-like manner, exercising care, skill, and diligence consistent with
industry standards and in accordance with this Agreement.

Consultant shall provide to Client, upon written request by Client, the credentials of each employee and
contractor of Consultant performing services pursuant to this SOW which shall include a summary of the
credentials, curriculum vitae, and the location (city and state) of said employee or contractor.

6. Project Management and Communication

Consultant shall provide ongoing coordination, reporting, and communication with Client leadership throughout
the term of this SOW. Reports may be provided monthly or as otherwise agreed in writing. In addition to and
not in lieu of such communications, Consultant shall conduct quarterly audits of coding with a minimum sample

Page 127



size of thirty (30) records per coder. The results of each audit shall include the audit findings in the template
mutually agreed to by the parties, which shall include coding references. For inaccurate or miscoded records,
Consultant shall conduct further education and training with a written plan of correction for any Coders failing
to meet the 95% accuracy requirement set forth in Section 5 above.

7. Compliance

Consultant shall perform all services in accordance with applicable federal and state laws, CMS regulations,
payer guidelines, and Client policies, including HIPAA and other privacy regulations. Consultant shall maintain all
necessary licenses and certifications and notify Client immediately (within forty-eight (48) hours) if Consultant
becomes in violation of this Section 7. If any coder fails to meet the requirements of this Section 7, Consultant
shall, within forty-eight (48) hours, prevent said coder from working on any Client matter until such breach is
cured. Additionally, Consultant shall conduct a HIPAA security risk analysis and risk assessment annually as set
forth in the BAA (defined below). Consultant shall report the results of all assessments, findings, and training
that occurred in the previous quarter to the Client within thirty (30) days following the end of each calendar
quarter.

8. Invoicing, Payment, and Travel Expenses

Invoices: Consultant shali submit itemized invoices bi-weekly (every two (2) weeks), in arrears, unless otherwise
agreed in writing. Each invoice will include dates of service, service category, hours worked, applicable hourly
rate(s), and a brief description of work performed. Invoices are due within thirty (30) days of receipt (Net 30).
Late payments may accrue interest as provided in the MSA. Payment terms and other invoicing obligations shall
be governed by the MSA unless otherwise specified herein.

Travel Expenses: Client shall reimburse Consultant for pre-approved, reasonable, and necessary travel expenses
incurred in connection with the performance of services under this SOW. Such expenses may include airfare,
lodging, ground transportation, and meals. All travel expenses must be documented with receipts and submitted
with the corresponding invoice. Travel arrangements should be made in accordance with Client policies
whenever feasible.

9. Confidentiality

Consultant shall treat all information received from Client as confidential, including patient data, business
information, and operational processes, and shall not disclose such information except as required by law or
with Client's prior written consent. Consultant shall implement reasonable safeguards to protect confidential
and sensitive information. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this SOW, the MSA and/or the
Business Associate Agreement (“BAA”) entered into by the parties on or around the Effective Date, priority shall
be given first to the terms of the BAA, then this SOW, then the MSA.

10. Limitation of Liability

Consultant's liability for any claims arising under this SOW shall be limited as provided in the MSA. Nothing in
this SOW shall be construed as waiving any rights or defenses under applicable law. Notwithstanding, each
party hereto shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party and such party’s employees, directors,
officers, subcontractors, agents and affiliates from and against all claims, actions, damages, losses, liabilities,
fines, penalties, costs or expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees) suffered by such
party arising from or in connection with (i) any breach of this Agreement or any applicable law, or {ii) any
negligent or wrongful acts or omissions in connection with the performance of this Agreement by the party or its
employees, directors, officers, subcontractors, agents or representatives.

11. Offshore Services

Page 128



Consultant shall not permit any (i) Protected Health Information (“PHI”) to be stored outside of the United
Stated, nor (ii) workforce member or subcontractor located outside the United States or its territories to access,
receive, maintain, process, transmit, or store PHI unless the Consultant has first:

a.

e.

Provided written notice to Client identifying each offshore country location and the services
performed;

Completed and submitted all offshore disclosures and attestations required by the applicable
Medicare Advantage Organization or Part D Sponsor, consistent with guidance issued by the Centers
for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS);

Implemented and documented appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to
protect PHI, consistent with HIPAA, Medicare program requirements, and CMS audit and oversight
expectations;

Ensured that each offshore subcontractor is bound by written agreement imposing obligations at
least as protective as those set forth in this Agreement, including audit, breach notification, record
retention, and cooperation with CMS and Client oversight; and

Obtained Client’s written consent to do so.

To the extent offshoring activities are restricted or prohibited by applicable state law, including state privacy,
data localization, or health information protection laws, Consultant and its subcontractors shall comply with the
most restrictive applicable requirement up to and including prohibitions on offshore access to or storage of PHI.

12. Signatures
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this SOW as of the dates set forth below.

INNOVA Revenue Group Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Signature: Signature:

4904-0936-7181, v. 4

Page 129



convergint

5860 W Las Positas Blvd, Pleasanton,California 94588
Phone Mobile 4083108417
jesse.ramos@convergint.com

February 6, 2026

Hazel Hawkins Hospital Quotation: JR32885686P
Hazel Hawkins Hospital ED RFP#:

License/Cert
Attention: Hazel Hawkins Hospital

Reference: S-Weapons Detection HHH ED XtractOne HW,
SW, Labor

On behalf of Convergint’s global network of colleagues, | would like to personally thank
you for providing Convergint with the opportunity to present this proposal addressing your
electronic security needs.

Convergint’s reputation for service excellence is backed by a foundational commitment
to our core value of service, and we have been recognized as the #1 Systems Integrator
by SDM Magazine. This recognition reflects the strong relationships Convergint has
developed with the industry’s top technology manufacturers, and our history of success
with providing exceptional service to our customers.

Our guiding principle has always been to be our customers’ best service provider. Our
dedicated and certified team of professionals strives to uphold our customer-focused,
service-based mission to make a daily difference for our customers. After achieving a
successful on-time and on-budget project installation, Convergint will provide you with the
industry’s best ongoing service, including our 24/7 customer portal iCare, designed to
track service work orders, project progress, and provide you with detailed metric reporting
for continuous improvement.

The following security proposal is specifically designed to meet your needs. As your single

point of contact, please feel free to contact me with any additional questions you may
have. Thank you again for trusting Convergint as your partner.

Page 130



convergjnt

Scope of Work

Convergint is providing the materials identified below only. Convergint is not providing,
and will not be responsible or liable for, any services related to the weapons detection
products being purchased. All services, including installation, programming, training, and
maintenance, are being provided by Xtract One in accordance with Xtract One policies,
procedures, and terms.

Materials
Line Qty Part
1
2 000 |00 MSC-
31000 |35
4 |ooo | LOIMSG-
5 000 | jorSC
6 [000 | rorMSC
7 000 | forPAT
8 [o00 lgeor
o [1.00
10 |1.00
1 |1.00

Description

Xtract One Smart Gateway, 4-Year License

SmartGateway

Initial Gateway Art Wrapping
View Gateway License Per Lane
View License Base

General Onsite Training Per Visit
Installation Base

Installation Per Lane

Hardware & Software
Maintenance, 4 years
Installation Per Lane

Equipment Total
Total Labor

Other Costs
Freight/Warranty
Tax if applicable
Total Project Price

Unit Price

51,294.81
0.00
1,800.00
1,200.00
6,493.51
5,844.16

2,337.66

55,356.93
42,128.92
15,976.50

$

€ N hH P &P

@ H P & R2 “« & « <« -

Extended

Price

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

55,356.93
42,128.92
15,976.50

113,462.35
2,457.00
0.00
11,862.02
10,495.27
138,276.64

Page 131



convergint

Clarifications and Exclusion

1. All work proposed herein, shall be performed during normal business hours Monday

through Friday 8:00 am - 5:00 pm.

Low voltage wiring shall be installed via open air code approved methods.

Provision or installation of conduit, wire, boxes, fittings or other electrical installation

materials unless specifically listed under Inclusions or Bill of Materials.

Permits or associated fees are not included.

Customer to provide static IP addresses and network connections at panel locations.

Customer to provide a secured staging & storage area for project related materials.

Pricing assumes that electronic Auto CAD files are available from customer for our

use in creating submittal drawings.

Fifty percent (50%) of the proposed sell price shall be payable to Convergint for

project mobilization. Mobilization shall be invoiced and due upon customer

acceptance of this proposal.

9. Proposal does not include sales tax unless otherwise noted.

10. Anything in the Contract Documents notwithstanding, in no event shall either
Contractor or Subcontractor be liable for special, indirect, incidental or consequential
damages, including commercial loss, loss of use, or lost profits, even if either party
has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

11. Convergint reserves the right to negotiate mutually acceptable contract terms and
conditions with customer by making mutually agreeable changes to the formal
contract included in the Bid Documents.

12. Supply Chain Delays & Price Adjustments: Customer acknowledges that supply
chain disruptions and shipping delays may occur for reasons beyond Convergint's
reasonable control and agrees to grant reasonable extensions for such delays.
Pricing is based on current market conditions and excludes increases due to tariffs,
duties, manufacturer-imposed surcharges, or other cost increases arising from trade
policy, regulatory actions, or external factors beyond Convergint's control. If such
cost increases arise, Convergint will submit a formal change order, and Customer
agrees to approve reasonable adjustments. Convergint will use commercially
reasonable efforts to minimize such increases.

W

N

®

REVIEW IMPORTANT PRODUCT SAFETY AND SERVICE INFORMATION PRIOR
TO USING A CONVERGINT-INSTALLED SYSTEM: See the “IMPORTANT PRODUCT
SAFETY AND SERVICE INFORMATION” documentation, available at
convergint.com/terms.

Page 132



convergjnt

IMPORTANT NOTICE
You requested that Convergint provide you with certain security and safety products and services.
By using these products and services, you acknowledge that:

o Under no circumstances should Convergint-provided products and services be your sole
method of security or safety. Effective security and safety require a multi-layered approach involving
people, processes, and technologies. Convergint-provided products and services do not guarantee
security or safety, will not detect or prevent all threats or risks all the time (including threats they are
designed to detect), and will not ensure overall safety and security. You are ultimately responsible for
your people, premises, and property, including for maintaining an effective response plan and promptly
implementing your response plan in response to alarms or threats.

o All security products and services have limitations. No product or service can guarantee safety or
security. It is your responsibility to ensure you are informed about product or service limitations and
that you regularly test and validate the products and safety plans. Reach out to your Convergint
account executive to learn how our support services can help. And if you have a service plan, you are
responsible for promptly notifying Convergint in the event of any defect, malfunction, or performance
issue with the products and services.

e Various factors can impact product performance. Selecting products and settings may involve
tradeoffs between the level of security and safety on the one hand and speed, convenience, and cost
on the other hand. Convergint can give you guidance, but you are ultimately responsible for selecting
products and settings based on your organization’s risk profile and tolerance.

¢ The products are made by third-party manufacturers, not Convergint. You are bound by and must
use, test, and maintain the products in accordance with the manufacturer's terms and instructions.
Convergint does not independently validate the accuracy of claims or statements made by
manufacturers, and makes no assurances regarding their accuracy. You are responsible for using the
products and services in compliance with laws and regulations applicable to you or as permitted in your
jurisdiction.

e All products and services are governed exclusively by a final agreement. No advertisement,
literature, brochure, website, or statements made during the sale process or otherwise (whether orally or
in writing) should be interpreted as a promise, warranty, or other assurance.

e You have reviewed the “IMPORTANT PRODUCT SAFETY AND SERVICE INFORMATION”
documentation, available at convergint.com/terms.

Page 133



convergint

Performance items

Items Included
Applicable Taxes Freight (prepaid)
Material (listed in the BOM) Owner Training
Project Management

Items Excluded
120 VAC Power and Fused Disconnect Switch 120 VAC Power Receptacles
Additional Lighting Requirements for Cameras Attend General Contractor Project Meetings

Attend Owner Project Meetings Authority having Jurisdiction permit drawing
(requires customer CAD)

Cable Ceiling Tiles and Ceiling Grid Repairs

Connection to Building Fire Alarm Panel Correction of Wiring Faults Caused by Others

Door wiring typical connections Electrical installation Permit

Electrified Door Locking Hardware Engineering and Drawings

Equipment rack layout drawing FA Permit and Plan Review Fees

Fire Stopping (Excludes Existing Penetrations) Fire Watch

Floor Coverings for Lifts Floor plan with device placement and numbering
(requires customer CAD)

Horizontal Core Drilling Installation of Bridle Rings

Installation of CCTV Cameras Installation of Conduit, Boxes and Fittings

Installation of Control Equipment Enclosures Installation of Control Panels

Installation of intercom Systems installation of Intrusion Panels

Installation of Low Voltage Wire Installation of Network Cabling to Card Readers

Installation of Network Cabling to [P Cameras Installation of Network Cabling to IP Intercoms

installation of Specialty Backboxes Installation of Terminal Cabinets

Installation of Video Recorders (DVR/NVR) Installation of Wire and Cable

Installation of Wire Hangars Lifts

Loading Software on Customer Provided Low Voltage Permits

Computer

Mounting/Termination of Proposed Devices On-Site Lockable Storage Facility

One-Year Warranty on Labor One-Year Warranty on Parts

Operations & Maintenance Manuals Owner to Provide DHCP Lease Reservations for
Network Connected Devices

Owner to Provide Static IP Addresses Panel Wall Elevation drawing (may require
customer CAD)

Panel wiring with point to point connections Patch and Paint

Payment & Performance Bonds Record Documentation (As-Built)

Riser drawing with home run wiring Servers by Convergint

Servers by Others Specialty Backboxes

Submittal Drawings System Engineering

System is Design-Build System Meets Pilans/Drawings

System Programming Terminal Cabinets

Termination of Control Equipment Enclosures Testing of all Proposed Devices

Vertical Core Drilling Wire

Workstations by Convergint Workstations by Others

Page 134



convergint

Total Project Investment: $ 138,276.64

Thank you for considering Convergint for your Security needs. If you have any questions
or would like additional information, please don't hesitate to contact me immediately. If you
would like to proceed with the scope of work as outlined in this proposal, please sign below
and return to my attention.

Sincerely,

Jesse Ramos

Convergint
Jesse Ramos

By signing below or accepting the services described in this proposal, Customer accepts
and agrees to this proposal, including the enclosed Terms and Conditions, along with any
addendums or exhibits that may be attached or referenced therein. Any additional or
contrary terms, including on a Customer PO, are expressly rejected. By signing, you
represent and warrant that you have authority to accept this proposal on behalf of Customer.

February 6, 2026

Customer Name (Printed) Date

Authorized Signature Title

Page 135



Convergint Technoiogies Terms and Conditions (Instali & T&M)

Throughout this Proposal, including these Tenms and Conditions and any atachments,
(togethar, "Agreement’) tha 1em “Converginl” rafars 10 the Convergint Tachnaingies affliae
oporating in the stato/province in which the Worx is bong perormed and “Convorgint Relatod
Parieg” means Coovergint Ak s conteaciors,  subcontactors,  thisd  pady  praduet
manufaciurers or providers.

SECTION 1. THE WORK

Ty Agreerment takes | Jonce over @ st all prior progosals, conespundence,
and oral or writlon agroements or roprosentations relating to the work sof forth in the attached
seopa af work (“Work™). This Work commances on the sian date and will be padomaed pursuant
10 the schaduie specited mn the attached scope of work and, subject 10 any change orders of
addenduims. represents the anlie agreement between Convaergint and Customer. This
Agreemant apphes 1o the exchsion of any ather terms that the Custome? seeks to Imposs of
incorporate {such as Customers purchaso order ‘orm) which are in addition to or inconsistent
with the 16ms ana CoNGRoNS of tus Agreement, of which are implied by trade, cusiony prachce
of course of dealing. all of which are deemed expressly rejected ana wii not be binding

This Agreement 1 mada wihoul regart o comphance wilh any spaciar sourcing anior
manutaclunng requirements, minorty or dsadvaniaged supplier requirements. or samiar
govemment procurement laws. Shouka such requirements b applicable to this Agreement,
Cornvargint reserves the right to modify ars/or withdraw its Aguement,

Cusiomer undersiands thnt Convergint is an authorized diswibulor or reseller and not the

manufacturer o developer ("OEM’) of softwaré, nardware and squipment (cotaclivedy, “Third

Pany Products’) purchased by Cuslomer und certan services e gebvered to Customer oy

such OEM

Convergint agrues 10 sucordance with the mutually sgreed propc scheduie

a. To submit shop drawings product data, sampios and similar submittals i roquired ie
prarforaning the Wek;

b, Vo pay for alt labor, matenals, equpient 10018, SUPBVIEON progranumng, lasting, stertup
and documentation roquirod to portorm the Work in accordance with the Agreemen:;

€. Secure and pay lof cermits and governmoental fees, doanses, and inspochans neressary
foo proper exacution and compiation of the Work, unluss loca regulabons provide
otherwiso: and

d. tHhe subcontractors and ordar material to pedarm pant of the Work, if necessary, while
rentarHng responsitie for the completion of the Womn

Customer agrees 1n accordance with the mutually agreed projest schedule. ana at no cost

o Convergint:

a. 1o promplly approve submitiais srovided by Convergant.

b. To provide access Lo all areas of the site which are necessary 1o complete the YWork:

¢.  To supply suitable electrical service as required by Convergint:

d. Toromove site obstackes and job safety hazards,

e, Yo prompily paricipate and approve acteptence tasting, il applicabia;

t  Upon completion of commissionng of agreet to acteplance critena, to promptly
provido sign-off establishing job closeout; and

g. Thatin the event of any emergency or systems fallure, roasonable safely precautions
will be taken by Customer to protect He and property dunng the period from: when
Convengint is first notifed of the emorgency or fallure and until such time that Convergint
nolifies the Customar thal the systems are operabonal or that the émergancy has cleared.

THE WORK AND/OR THIRO PARTY PRODUCTS ARE DESIGNED TOHELR REDUCE. 8U1
NOT ELIMINATE RISKS OF LOSS RELATING TO PEOPLE PREMISES OR PROPERTY
IHE AMOUNIS BEING CHARGED BY CONVERGINT ARE NOT SUFFICENT TO
GUARANTEE THAT LOSS OR DAMAGE WILL DECREASE OR BE ELIMINATED Customer
acxnowledges hal propec safely and securly requires & mult-layared approach of people,
processes, safety ana technotogies. The Work, including Third Party Products. providod by
Converping is rot sufficient 1o ensure overnall safuty s sacanty  Cuslonar acknowledpas arxd
agrees that it 16 responsibie for its overall safety and security. includng testing anc maintenance
of the Thire Party Praducts (except to the extent contracted ta Convergint by written agreement}
and truimng of its personnel. Customer acknowledges any aprees thut it has a duty of care and
is solely rosponsibio tor its compliance with applicable laws. rules, and requiations. including but
ot bowterd W axpont axt re-expor restricliins and regulatons, privacy @nd data proleation
regulabons. applicable OEM instructions. lerms and conditions. EULAs. and proper product
usage

Risk of luss. includmg any Thisg Parly Prosuct comprising the Work, shall pass to Custorser
as the Work is completed aad the materials pre ncorparated icto the Werk at Customer's
sile subject (o any end user hcense agreements, If or Thrd Party Products are eacher slored
on Customer's sito pursuant to agroement betwoen Customor and Convorgint, risk of loss
wilh regpact to such or Thed Party Product shall pass o Customer upon detivery 1o
Customer's site.

Anplicable ta Monitoring Services Only: It Manitonng Services are identified i the Proposal,
lhe parves agree thal (a) these Terms and Condions ara not applicable, and (b) Monitoring
Services are govemned by the Monitoring Services Terms and Conditions effoctive on the
Effectve Date of he Propossl antd avalabite at htips Seww convergint camitermry, which lg
incorporated by retoronco as if sot torth horoin in full. ‘Momtonng Sorvices” is dohnod as
“Services” in the Moaitoring Services Terns and Canditons

SECTION 2. PRICING

Pricing nnd amounis proposed shall -omain vatid ‘e 30 days uniess atherwise specified. Price
inclucus onty the Third Parly Praducts bsted based on Convergint's inlerpretation of plans anc
specifications unless noted otherwise. Addivonal Third Pany Products, unless negotated prior
16 prver plavernuent wili be Lilled accordiogly  Sules laxes (o 8y sppticable GST, PST, VAT o
similar tax) anct any other laxes assessed on Customer shall be added to the price upon iavoce
toCastomer.

SECTION 3. INVOICE REMITTANCE AND PAYMENT

Customer agreas to pay Convergint fifty (50%) percent of the total arice as a mobilzaton
fe b1 1he tiena of oxeculing thiey Agreamant

It the Work is performed over more than one month, Convergnt will invoice Customer each
month for the Work parfamied dunng the previous month. Customer ageees to pay the amount
due (o Convergint as mnvoiced wiltin thirty (30) says of the gale of such invoice. If the Work is

Version 4.1 {(US AND CANADA) September 2024

completed in toss than ono month. Customer agrees to pay Convergint in fuil aftor the Work nas
Do completed within thidy (30) days of the date of invoica. Invascas shail not ba subyecl to &
projoct relontion percontage and payment to Convergint sr:all not be conditioned on payment by
an upstteam party. If Customern is ovardus in any paymenl, Convargint shall ba entited o
suspend the Work withoul Rabllity until pwd. charge Customer an inlerest rale 1 and /2%
parcent poe month (or the maximum rale pamitted by 1aw, whichavar is 1088). and may avail
dsell of any olber legal or squitable rerredy. Customer shak reimburse Convergint costs incutred
in coilecting any amounts that bocome overdue. Including attoimoy fees. court costs and aay
other raasonabla expandiure.

SECTION 4, WARRANTY

Warranties for Convergint's serwices ana Third Parly Products are described in the Limited
Warranty tor Producty and Services avaiiaole at Wile s cogverond con e which
6 in effect as of tne effective date of this Agreement ang /s incorporatea by relerence as i
sé forth haeain n ol

SECTION 5, CHANGES

Withaut invalidaling this Agreemaent or any bond given heraander, Customer or Convergint may
request changes in the Work wilh a change order signed by both partkes it Cuslomer orders (.}
any changos to tho Work (0.9. change in abjoctive. doliverablas. tasks or hours). (i) cranges to
scheduie (extension or acceledation), or {ili) causes any matenal inlerference with Convergint's
performanco ot the Work. Convergint shidl be entitied to an equitable agjustment in the time for
pecdomancs and in the Pnoe, inckdling a reasonatia allowance for averhaan and orofit.

SECTION 6. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither Customer nor Convergint shall be liabia for any dolay or faikire in the performance of
thenr respactve obligations pursuant 1o this Agreernent due to crawnstances beyork! thwie
roasonable controt (‘Force Majeure’) anc withowt the tault or neglbgence of the party
axpatiancing such delay A Force Magure avent shall inchuda, bit not be limted 1o s of
God. pandemic or epidemic, diseases, quarantines. unavoidable casuallies. conceslec
conditians, acts of any civii ar mililary authority. riot, insurractiors and civil disturbances,
war, wvasion. acl of foreign vnemies. hostitlies {regardiess of whether or not war 18
doclarea). rebeliion, revolution. torronst activifies: strikos. lockouts or other labor gispulos
ambargoss; shortage o unavadability of labor supphas, materials, aaupinant on systems;
accdent. fire, stomm, water. flooding. negligence ot others, vandalism, power falwre instailabon
of incompatible equipment, improper aperaling procodures, source ourent fluctuatons or
sighting, fransportation contingencies: iaws. statutes. requiations, ana other legal requirements,
odens or judgements: acts or arger of any goverment of agency or official thereof, atner
catastophes or any oher semalar oocutrences. |f performance by either party is delsyed due lo
Force Majoure. the time for performance shali be extonded tor a period of bme reasonably
necassary 1 avartomié e affect of the dday and Convengel shall be ectiied 10 an aguitatie
adgjustment of the Price.

SECTION 7. INSURANCE

in neu of any Custormner insurance requrements, kr Services performed n iha Unded Stalws,
Convergint shak maintain the following insurance coverages during the ierm of this Agreement
and upon requesl. shall provide certibcates of nsuranve o the Custormer
Worker' s Compensaton Statutory Limits
Emplaysr's Liability $§1,000,000 par octurnance/aggrat;ate
Commercial Genecal Liability $1.000.000 per occarrence
$2.000.000 general aggregato
Autornotsle Liability $1,000.000 per oucurrencedaggregale
Excesslimbroka Llabllity §3.000.000 par accurrenco/aggregate

Cornmercal General Listily pobcy shat name the Customer as “aodilions msared’ on &
primary‘noncontriblitory basis with respect o liability ansing out of the Services. as appicabie. but
only ta the exlgn! of iiatiities lalling within tha incerminty obligations of Converginl pursuant 1o the
tems of this Agreement. Convergint shal not provide loss runs or copies of #ts insurance policies.
Convergint shail provide to tie Customer no iess than trinly {30) days’ notico pnor 1o the
termination or cancellation of any such insurance policy.  For services perfomieg in Csnada,
Convergint shall mainain similar insuranco covemge dopendont upon the local requirements in
Canada and upon the Fsurance avallable onder Convergint's irsurance vogram. Al reouinsd
insurance covernge snall be reasonable wn the ofcumstances and compliant with local

roegulations.
SECTION 8. INDEMNIFICATION

Ta the fullest extent alowed by law, Convergnt shail indemndy and hold Customer harmiess
from and against clams. damages. losses, and expenses (excludng ivss of use) atinbulatile o
oodily injury, sickness. disease or death. or to gostauction of tangibio praporty, but only to the
axtant Caused by the naghgent acts or omessions of Convergint or Convergint's employess or
subcontractors while on Customer's site.

If Convergint is providing oroducts or services for intrusion detection, detectan of spacific
threats to paopis or proparty (inctuding gunshot, or drone 3. mass notifi
pallistics or explosives protection, or processing of biometric, health firancial, or
govarnment ldertifer data (collectively, “Special Offerings”). than 1o the fullesl extenl
allowod by law (i} Convorgint's ndomniticalion obligations under the Agroement do not
apply whatsoever and Canvergint Relatad Paries have na tiabllity ta Customer for any
0sses or dameges caused by any Special Offerings; and (il) Customer shall indemnify,
defend. nnd hold harmless Convergint Related Pames, from and against all claims,
dermands. aclions, liabdites, vamapes, ana cousts (includng ressonavie sltomeys’ fees)
ralating 1o Special Offerings provided by Convergin: . except ta the axteat of Convergint s
gross naglgence nstaking such Special Olferings. Any wavier of darnsges or limttation of
iiability contoined in the Agreement and as modified heremn shall not apply to Customer's
ndemnificatior, hoid harmiess and defense obligations heroin

Applicable fo Weapuns Delecton Only: if Convergint provides YWeapons Detection Systemsy
or Services, then such Systams and Services are further govemed by the Weapons
Detection Adosndum effuctive an the Effective Dute of (his Proposst and availsbie at
nitps://www .convergint.com/terms, which is incorporated dy refsrence as it sei forth herein
n fuil. “Weapons Detection Systems or Services™ muans any “Systams” andlor * Services”
as gach are oefined i the Weapons Detection Acdendum

Page 136



SECTION 8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

EXCEPT AS PROVIDED HEREIN, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW (A)
IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER CONVERGINT RELATED PARTIES, OR CUSTOMER BE
LIABLE UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS PROPOSAL FOR SPECIAL, INDIRECT,
INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, LIQUIDATED OR CONSFEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING
COMMERCIAL LOSS, LOSS OF USE OR LOST PROFITS. EVEN IF THAT PARTY HAS
BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES AND (B} THE AGGREGATE
LIABILITY OF CONVERGINT RELATED PARTIES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNTS PAID 8Y CUSTOMER TO
CONVERGINT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT . THE EXISTENCE OF MORE THAN ONE CLAIM
WILL NOT ENLARGE THIS LIMIT. THE LIMITATION SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION SHALL
APRLY WHETHER THE CLAM IS BASED ON CONTRACT. WARRANTY. TORT
{INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHER LEGAL THEORY.

SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW, SAFETY, & SITE CONDITIONS

Convergint agrees to comply with all laws. res and reguistons applcable 10 its provision of
the Work. Customer will comply with all applicable laws and agreaments applicablo 10 its uso
and opsration of the Work, Convergrt shall comply with ail safety retated taws and regulations
and with the safoty program of tha Customer. providod sucr program is supptiod 1o Convergint
POOE 1D DEgInng Work.

It during the course of ils Work Corverginl encounters conditlions al the sile thal ure
subsurface, differ matenally from whal s reprasentad in the conlract documants. of
otherwise contealed pnysical conditions. Convergint shall ve entitked Lo an extension of
time and adaitional costs for the pedormance of its work.

If Convergnt discoverns o suspects he pressnce of huzardous Materiss or unsals worklig
conaitions at Customer s sito whore tho Work is 10 be performed, Convergint is ontltiod to stop
1he Work @t thal site if such hazardonus matedials, ar unsale working conditions were nol provided
by or causes by Convergint. Convergint in ils solg discretion shall determine when il Is “sale”
10 roturn ta parform the Work at Customar's sito. Convergint shall havo no responsitdity fos the
Giscovery, presence, handing, removng o disposal of or exposwe of persons to hazardous
matorials in any form ai tho Customer s site. To the tuilost extont aliowed by law, Customor shall
indamnfy and hoid harmibass Convergint from and aganst clams, damages, insses and
axpenses, including dbut not kmited 1o, reasonatye attomey s tees. ansing out of or resulting from
undisclosad hazardous matarials or unsale wondng conditions at Customer’s site,

SECTION 11. PERSONAL DATA & SECURITY

Convargint's obligations and liabiliies regarding Procossing of Personal Data and
miormalion securnty shabk be lmited solely to Processing performed by Convergint's
porsonnel. Processing by OEMs or Third Party Products are governed by any applicable
OEM and user icansing agraements of tenns and conditions,  Cusitmar raprasants angd
warrants that it whl comply with all applicable Data Protection Laws. Although certaln
products dailvered by Convergint may ba capable of processing Biamalrie Information.
Personal Health tnfortration. inancial mforination. or government identifiers {"Sensitve
Information”), Cuslomer acknowlodges that Convergint is not Procossing Sonsitive
tnformation (o 1o tha extenl it I8 Processing Sensdive Information, it is doing so strictly in
accordance with Customer's nstructions) and Customer 15 solely responsible for
complianca of all such Pracessing with Data Protection Laws. To the fuillest extent allowed
by law. Customer shalt ndemnify, deferd and hold harmiess Convergint lrom and aganst
all claims, domands, actions. liabllties, damages, and costs {including reasanablo
attorneys fees) susertey by a lhurd party angsing oul of or relaling o failure to comply wath
applicable Data Protoction Laws Including but not limited to those reiated 10 Sonsilive
Information. Convargint's ubligations and isbilities mgarding informalion secunty amd
Processing of cusiomer :nformatice or data. including Personal Data. are limiled lo
Pracessing perfarmed by Convergint (if any). OEM and Thira Pany Product information
secunly and Processing 1$ governed by applicable OEM end user licensing agresments or
torms. Personal Data”, “Proceas{ing). "Biomotric Information”. and "Personal Health
Information shall e aierpratad 0 accondsnce wits, arkl shalt include  analogous
lerminology as used in. applicable iws and regulatons relating to data privacy. information
security, data protection, data breaches, cross-border data flows. andior the rights end
obmations of persons or entilivs regarding parsonal nformation (*Data Protection Laws”)

To the extent Convergint accesses Gustomer's information systems. Convergint will nat be
responsible or hadle lor lsses or harms caused by followng Customer's instructions
causad by Third Party Products. caused by third party or Custamer-specitiod remote access
woltware, or that are otherwise nol due 1© Ihy fault ol Convergint. Customer-authorized
cnanges to Customer information systems are at Customers own risk and Customer
acknawledges It is responsible for tho overall security of its information systems

SECTION 12, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Convorgint shall retain ttlo and ownership of ail intellectual property rights reinting 1o tho
grawings, techmcal documentation, or other techmcai information ("Documentaton’)
delverod undor this Agreement. Tho OEMs shall retain titto and ownorshep of all intollectuat
Pty rghts raliating e Ihe Thicd Party Products and will grant any dcense s right to
ves 0 conpection witk the herd Party Product through the OEM's end user license
agrecment or other lerms ang condiions  Cuslomar shali not use any Documentation
supphed by Convergint for any purposes ather than those direclly related Lo this Agreement
or ‘or the use and’or mainienance of the Third Pany Pragust.

SECTION 13. PRICE ADJUSTMENT

Convergint may nutomatically adiust tha prce. with five (§) days prior writton nalice, if based
on: {u) changss by its vendors 1o the cost of malenaly or Third Party Products o be
solivored andlor labor cos:s rolatod to personnel responsiblo for performing the Work. (b)
macroccanomit conditions  such as taxes, tadffs or dunes, natural disasiers, labor
shorlagessirikes, elc.. {c) mwrkel condiions such as price volalilly or uvailablity
limitations, or (d) other eveals not within Convergint's control that impact the cast of
performing the Work The adjustment shall be consistent with applicatie markel indexus,
whero avaliable, third-party sources or other avidence. Convargint rasarves the right to add
penextic swcharges including without tintation, adjustinants for the then cutrent prce of

V4.1 September 2024

Page 20f 2

fuel. such surchargos o Se specified and nvoiced by Convergint.
SECTION 14. TERMINATION

If & party matenally bresches this Agreament. the othye party shal provide written notice of the
oroach and a reasonable sme to curo the breach. but in no event less than 30 days. if the
hraachung pady fads to cure the breach within the spacified tikne period, the non-braaching party
may lomminale this Agreement upon 15 days writters notice to the cihor party. It Convengint
aolifies Customer of # matarial brerch pursuant 1o this saragraph, Convergint nay temporarnily
suspend iy work without iiavikty anlil Customer cures the breach.

SECTION 15. GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTES

The parties agrese that thig Agreement shali be governed by the laws of the state/province
where tho Work is located, and venue for disputes shab bo locatea in that state/province

I e avient of any dispute batween Convergint and Custome?. Convergint and Custamer shal
first attompt 1o resalvo the disputo in the fiokd, but if that is not successtul, then in a moeting
nelwean authorized officers of each company. If seitement attempts are nol successil unless
the dspule requrres injunctive relie? then the dispute shail be decided extiusively by arbitrauon
Such arbitraton shall ba conducatad in accordanco with the Construction Industry Arbitration
Rulas of the American Artrtration Asscdiation (if me Servicey sre performed in the United
Statos) or Amitration fRulos of tho ADR Institute of Canada. Inc. (if the Servicos are peromed
n Canaaa) curtently i effisct by a singie arbitrator andd shal be a final binding resoition of the
ssues prosented between (e parties. The prevailing paty shal be entlied lo recover ils
raasonable atomoys’ foes and costs. Any award by the amitralor may be entered as ajudgamont
n dity count having junsaiction.

SECTION 16. MISCELLANECUS

T parias have requied thal this Agreamant be wntten n English ane have alsa agread thal
all nottes or other documens required by or corlemplaled in this Agreement be wrilten in
English. Los partios ont requis Guo colte convention soil ridigde en angais of ont dgalemient
converii Que tout avis ua aute document sxge aux lermes tes présentes ou gécoulant de Fune
quolconquo de sos dispositions sera orépard on anglas.

Any eaangss ta (his Agreanent shall be in witiyg sgned by both Customar amd Convargant

In the event any provision of this Agreement is hetd to be invalid or unenttorceable, the remaining
pravisions of tis Agreemant shall remaln in full force ana effect.

Custome: waves ail claims aganst Convergiril ansing from or relaled to suspeasion of work
aursuant to this Agreement

Cuslomer and Converginl are indepandant contractars, and nothing in this Agreament craates
any agency. joint venture, partnership. or cther form of joint srterprise employment. or fiducary
relationshup detween them. Nothing contained in this Agreemont shall be deemed to create a
retationship of smpkoyee or empioyer betwesn the parties. and nexther party shall be entlied to
any benefits that the other party provides for ils own omployeas, including workors
compansation and unemploymers insurancey  tach party snall have extusve control over ils
own empioycos, agents, and subcontractors, its labor and emoioyoo relations, anag its polides
ralating 10 wages, haurs, working conditions, o olher conditons.

Neither party 10 tres Agreement shall assign this Agreemert without the pror written consent of
e other pay hereto. Nohwithstanding the lnrogdng Convarght may assign tnis Agreoment
withoul notice or consent (1) to any of s p b s or COMPANIes or any
entity majority oanod by Convergint, or (W) In connaction with o acquisitior,
nsceggarteahion, sae nf @l of e spely nterssts ol Gonvetgins, o a salke of altar sutistantnity all
ol tho assaty of Convergin! to which this Agresmeny relates.

Notices shail be in writing and addeessed to the other pady. in accordance with the names and
audresses of the parties as shoan above. Al notices shall ba effective upon recept by the party
1o whom the natice was sent

In no vvent will Convergut be obligated 1o comply with any project lavp: sgreerents or
other collective nacgaining agreements.

A wawer of the tems harsudden by ane party W ibe olhwr party shall nol be effective urdess m
writling and sgned by 3 persor with authority to commit the Customer and Convergint. No
waiver by Customer ar Convergint snall operaic as a continuous walver, unless the wrtten
waver specifically slates that 1L is a continuous waiver of he terms stated in that walver

The Soctions rogarding involcing. waranty, Indeanity. kmitation of tinblity, contidontiaiity and
disiputas shall sucvive the termnabon of e Agresmant,

Convergint provides addivonat product salety and service information at

nitps:/iwww. convergint.comiterms/ (see IMPORTANT PRODUCT SAFLCTY AND
SERVICE INFORMATION®). which it enicourages Cuslomer Lo review pror (o use

Convergint Tochnclogies

Page 137



Customer Support Program Opt-Out

PLEASE REVIEW THIS DOCUMENT CAREFULLY. It relates to the safe and proper operation of the products,
including hardware and software, being installed for your organization Hazel Hawkins Hospital.

Customer has been advised of Convergint's Customer Support Program, which includes services such as product
testing, preventative maintenance (including system verification and validation), and software updates. While no
security system can be completely effective all of the time, the Customer Support Program services may prevent
system malfunctions, downtime, and performance issues.

CUSTOMER HAS DECLINED THE CUSTOMER SUPPORT PROGRAM SERVICES. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES IT IS
SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR PERFORMING THESE SERVICES AND FOR THE ONGOING MAINTENANCE, TESTING, AND
UPDATING OF THE PRODUCTS BEING PROVIDED.

Page 138



" TREANOR www.treanor.design

Mr. Mark Robinson, CFO

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
911 Sunset Dr.

Hollister, CA 95023

January 28,2026 Rev 1

Re: HHMH Clinical Lab Full Remodel - Design Services Fee Proposal
HC0978.2404.00 ASR06

Dear Mark:

Treanor is pleased to submit this proposal to provide Architectural and Engineering services to complete the full
remodel of the Clinical Lab at Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital.

1. Project Parameters
The Treanor team has been engaged in the installation of chemistry analyzers for validation, known as
Phase 1, the permanent installation of the chemistry analyzers, referred to as Phase 2, and the conceptual
design for the subsequent phases to fully remodel the clinical lab, previously identified as Phases 3 and 4.

The general intent of this project is to provide full design services in a phased construction manner to
complete the clinical lab remodel. The scope of work included in this proposal is outlined in the feasibility
report dated 3/7/2025. Any subsequent phases will be identified and defined within Phases 3 and 4, for
example Phases 3A, 3B, 3C, 4A, or 4B as required.

Please note that the existing blood draw and lab reception need to be relocated prior to the work started in
the lab as referenced in the feasibility report for Phase 3A. The design of the temporary locationis NOT
inciuded in this proposal and will be performed under additional services since the location has not been
determined at this time.

This proposal includes coordination efforts for the SPC retrofit work. The goal is to complete the remodel
and seismic retrofit simultaneously when construction occurs in the same area.

This proposal includes equipment planning assistance, covering the inventory of existing equipment,
preparation of an equipment plan and schedule, gathering information on hospital-selected equipment, and
coordination with the equipment vendor. At the time of this proposal, decisions on which existing
equipment will remain, be replaced, or be removed have not yet been made.

1 round of cost estimate at 100% DD is included in this proposal.

The preliminary timeline is outlined in the work plan and fee schedule. Construction is exnected to take
approximatelv 3 vears due to its multi-phase approach, which includes time for setup, cleanup, and closeout
between each phase while keeping the existing lab remains operational. Our fee includes the extended
construction administration period required to support this prolonged schedule.

2. WorkPlan
A. Project Management

e Update Project Charter and Project Management Manual which includes project goals,
assumptions, constraints, criteria, design parameters and other high-level information defining
the project success, when moving forward.

Submit weekly project progress report.

Conduct weekly project planning and coordination meetings with design team.

Conduct regular project monitor and control tasks.

Conduct regular Quality Control measures.

B. Schematic Design (6 weeks):

Pag&él%@



" TREANOR www.treanor.design

Implement the conceptual design and advance the drawing to Schematic Design.

Request preliminary information and coordinate with equipment vendors.

Collaborate with users on equipment selection and specifications. (Equipment planning)

Prepare SD design and documents for Stakeholder review, comment, and approval: 100% SD.

(1 submittal)

e Conduct SD user review meetings and collaborate design with Stakeholders. (4 virtual
meetings)

¢ Revise selected SD design based on Stakeholder feedback for Stakeholder approval to
proceed.

o Request and attend pre-application meeting with AHJ to review proposed work and seeking

official interpretation on code related issues.

C. Design Development (10 weeks):

Conduct User review meetings and collaborate design with Users on design. (6 meetings)
Collaborate with users on finalizing equipment selection and specifications.

Request final drawing and coordinate with equipment vendors. (Equipment planning)
Collaborate with vendor and specify lab furniture.

Prepare DD drawings based on approved Schematic Design.

Prepare and submit design documents for Stakeholder review: 100% DD. (1 submittals)
Coordinate with Cost Estimator for construction cost estimate at 100% DD. (1 round)
Revise selected DD design based on Stakeholder feedback for Stakeholder approval to
proceed.

D. Construction Documents (8 weeks):

Conduct User review meetings and collaborate design with Users on design. (4 meetings)
Prepare construction drawings based on approved design development documents.
Incorporate equipment selection and specifications to construction documents.

Prepare project manual and technical specifications.

Prepare functional program.

Prepare and submit CD for Stakeholder review: 100% CD. (1 submittal)

Prepare plan review submittal drawings and documents.

E. Agency Review (12 weeks):

e Prepare submittal packages seeking agency approval.

¢ Respond to plan review comments. (2 backchecks)

¢ Prepare required post-approval paperwork (Building Permit, TIO field review, Notice of Start of
Construction).

F. Bidding and Negotiation (8 weeks):

s Prepare bid documents and coordinate with Owner on bidding requirements.

e Atten bid walk-through. (1 meeting)

e Answer bidder questions (RFI) and prepare addendums as required. (1 addendum)
e Assist the Owner evaluate bids and contractor selection. (1 round)

G. Contract Administration (144 weeks):

The approximate construction start date is to be determined and the construction time is anticipated to
be approximately 36 months. Total number of CA hours, meetings, site visits, Facility Impact Study
(FIS’s) and milestone sign-off coordination are included and listed below as allowances during the
construction. When the total number of CA hours, meetings, site visits, FIS’s or milestone sign-off
coordination are reached, Treanor will notify the Owner. Additional services may be submitted for
review and approval if the listed services below extend beyond general project expectation. CA
services are listed under each phase below.

e Provide CA services: review submittals, respond contractor RF!, and other services as denoted
in AIA Document B201, 2017 edition, unless excluded herein.

Page 2 of4
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Rageshdd



" TR E AN OR www.treanor.design

Coordinate and conduct HCAI on site construction kick-off meeting. (1 meeting)

Attend Owner-Architect-Contractor on site construction kick-off meeting. (1 meeting)

Visit construction as required during the construction period. (12 visits)

Attend Owner-Architect-Contractor virtual meetings once per week during the construction
period. (144 virtual meetings)

Prepare NMA and ACD for HCAI review as required. Changes due to unforeseen conditions or
initiated by the Owner shall be considered additional services.

Conduct milestone walk-through and review; prepare compliance verify reports as required for
HCAI sign-off at milestones. (10 milestones)

Prepare amendments to construction documents for local AHJ review is not included in this
proposal.

Review contractor MOP for mechanical tie-in and interruption; prepare Facility Impact Study
for HCAI ACO review; engage HCAI ACO and facilitate review meetings seeking approval of
proposed work sequence and contingent measures. (5 FISs.)

Conduct punch-list walk-through and prepare punch-list. (10 punch-list walk-through)

H. Project Close-out Phase

Prepare project close-out documents as required by AHJ.
Coordinate efforts with stakeholders and the contractor for HCAI sign-off of project.
Conduct a project close-out walk-through with HCAI ACO.

3. Compensation
A. Fee Schedule:

This project will be billed for a lump-sum fee of $831,315 (Eight Hundred Thirty-One Thousand Three
Hundred and Fifteen Dollars, excluding reimbursable expenses mentioned below) broken down as
follows.

Architectural Fees:

A. Schematic Design (6 Weeks) $ 39,050

B. Design Development (10 Weeks) $ 51,650

C. Construction Document (8 Weeks) $ 46,110

D. Bidding / Negotiation (8 Weeks) $ 9,715

E. Permitting (12 Weeks) $ 14,960

F. Contract Administration (144 Weeks) $ 310,790

G. Project Close-out (8 Weeks) $ 1,640

Subtotal Treanor $ 473,915
ConsultantsFees:

Structural Buehler $ 139,800

Mechanical / Plumbing ColeBreit Engineering $ 150,000

Electrical Aurum Consulting Engineers $ 54,950

Cost Estimating Cumming Group $ 12,650

Subtotal Consultant $ 357,400

Total Fees $ 831,315

B. Exclusions

The following scope and services are currently exciuded from this proposal, but could subsequently be
added as Add Services:

Signage/Way Finding
Building accessibility upgrade work beyond the scope of work
Structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing and related infrastructure upgrades

Page 30of4
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Pageshdd



" TREANOR www.freanor.design

Furniture selection and specifications

Value engineering

3rd Party Plan Review

3-D rendering for public or Stakeholder presentation purposes

Detailed analysis of existing Structural, Mechanical, Electrical Plumbing systems not
associated with the project as defined

Detailed analysis of Civil engineering and site planning issues

Documentation of existing building systems or characteristics requiring destructive removal
have not been included in this proposal

Detailed analysis or testing of potential hazardous materials

Development of as-built or record drawings after construction

C. Reimbursable not to exceed $20,000.

These expenses are not included in the total fee above. The reimbursable expenses for Treanor and our
consultants will cover the costs associated with shipping, printing/plotting (including construction
related printing) and other miscellaneous costs incurred by Treanor. Expenses will be invoiced at a
multiple of 1.1 times the actual cost of expenses incurred and will not exceed the total estimated
amount without prior authorization.

We greatly appreciate the opportunity to provide these services to Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital. If you
have any questions, comments, or concerns about this fee estimate, please do not hesitate to contact me. If this
proposal is deemed acceptable, please sign and return one copy to our office.

Sincerely, Accepted By:

- Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
Chuang-Ming Liu, AIA, ACHA, EDAC, LEED AP Mark Robinson Date
PRINCIPAL CFO
Treanor

351 California Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94104

cliu@treanor.design

¢ 415.465.2776

Enclosures

1. Consultants’ Proposals
2. Feasibility Study Report, dated March 2025

Page 4 of 4
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Ragesbd?



2025/2026 CEO Incentive Goals

FY 26 EBIDA %

HCAHPS IP RATE 1-10 TOP
BOX

SNF AVERAGE DAILY CENSUS

PROVIDER RECRUITMENT

EBIDA INCENTIVE
% %
8.0 1.00%
10.0 2.00%
12.0 3.00%
12-MONTH
ROLLING
PERCENTILE
RANK
OCTOBER INCENTIVE
2026 %
64% 1.00%
65% 2.00%
66% 3.00%
SNF Average INCENTIVE
Daily Census %
87 Patients 1.00%
88 Patients 2.00%
INCENTIVE
%
[ 4 2.00%

Page 143




Administrative Policy Manual Finance
Reviewed: 08/26/2021, 8/2/2022
.m{.wuv‘ Revised: 08/27/2021, 8/2/2022

S i o Came faveeet

Page 1 of 2

SUBJECT: District Board Approval

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines for the San Benito Health Care District (District) Board
Members for when their approval is required in addition to the CEQ COO_or CEQ ofthe

T~ sy = = i = w vt

erganizationDistrict administration or executive staff in-for contracting with the-entities needed in
nrr‘gv #A Arnarata biha M G—ﬁh]fd Eartle ;

AN O T

POLICY:

The policy covers clinical and non-clinical service agreements including direct patient care and
support service agreements.

A. ContractsAgreements:

1. Purchased Service Agreements -are for services that the District does not
provide with ie-ewnDistrict employees. Examples ——
include the-Pharmacy- o

2. Operational Leases are for equipment thatthe District does not own. Examples
efthese agreementsweould beinclude the E.H.R. systems such as MeditTech
and eCW, and copier machines.

3. Maintenance Service Agreements are for service coverage for equipment
(whether it-is-owned or leased-by-the District). Examples weuld-include but are
not limited to the MRI, CT Sscanners, and other mashines-equipment used in the
Rradiology department.

4. Property Rental Leases are for property the District does not own. Examples
include the Liab Bdraw station on McCray and the clinics on 4" Street, San Juan
Bautista,_and the Multi-Specialty -and-Bamragan-Rural Healthcare Celinies

facilities.

B i der-Section A Ceontractsonlufgreements
and Ieases in thls Sect:on that-thess-thathave a term ofgreater than one (1) year
and a cost in excess of $406,000 $150,000 annually arereguired-teshall be
presented to the Finance Committee for recommendation and and-recemmeandad
the District Board for approval.

The CEO; €00; and CFO are authorized to approve the-agreements and leases in
this Section that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, including aareements with
a term of one (1) vear or less. and an annual cost of less than $150.000.

B. Capital Expenditures:

4899-6584-3507, v. 24800 8584 3507 v 24034 8375 2608 v 2 Page 144



1. Budgeted Capital Expenditures that-are-included in the annual Capital Budget,
which have been presented to the District Board with the annual Operational
Budget ferapprevaland approved, will-shall be considered approved throughout
the fiscal year. The CEOQ; £20; and CFO will-beare authorized to execute the
such capital expenditures when the timing is deemed appropriate and the cost is
within fifteen percent 15% in-exsess-of the approved budgeted cost.

2. Non-Budgeted Capital Expenditures will-shall be brought to the Finance
Committee for recommendation and District Board for approval if the cost
exceeds $400-000 $150,000. Fhis-These expenditures includes equipment thatis

required for new services and functions, te-replacement of obsolete units, and
add-addition _of al units.

C. Physician Agreements:

1. Group Contracts include aareements with physician groups that provide
medical coverage for the Emergency Department, Hospitalists program, and
Pediatric on-call for the OB Ddepartment.

2. Individual Physician Agreements include agreements with the-physicians
contracted as primary care, surgeons, orthopedists, and the various specialists
who are based in the District's clinics and may or may not have privileges to
perform services in the hospital.

3. Extension of agreements without any insreasesinthechanges to compensation
or-a-decrease-in-the compensatisnmay be approved by the CEOQ, COO- or CFO
with erly-notification to the District Board. The-eExtensions should not exceed
one (1) year.

4. New agreements with_eut-any no financial sempensatien-gr impact to the facility
may be approved by the CEO; SOG; or CFO with only notification to the District
Board. This type of agreement weulc-includes a physician having privileges to
provide medical services to the Skilled Nursing Ffacility residents.

5. Office Leases refertc-theare agreements where-in which the District is the
landlord and the physician is the tenant, or the District is the teranttenant, and
the physician is the landlord. A Fair Market Assessment for comparable rental
units in the area will be completed by the District prior to the agreement being
presented to the District Board.

Prior to being presented to the Finance Committee for a recommendation to the
Board, all Physician Agreements will comply with the Fair Market Value Policy and
Physician Services Contract Policy and Procedure policies included in the
Administrative Policy Manual.

4899-8584-3597, v. 248008584 3507 . 24034 S275-3608 4. 2 Page 145



Resolution No. 2026-09

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT MODIFYING THE NATIONAL UNION OF
HEALTHCARE WORKERS UNIT AT SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the San Benito Health Care District, a California Local Health Care District
(“District”), is governed by the Health Care District Law (Health & Safety Code sections 32000
et seq.);

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors (“Board”) approved Ordinance 2004-06
Regarding Employee Election of Labor Organizations (“Ordinance 2004-06”) in accordance with
Government Code section 3507(a);

WHEREAS, the Ordinance 2004-06 authorizes the Board to assess the appropriateness
of a bargaining unit requested by an employee organization and to determine the appropriate unit
based on specified criteria;

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2026, the National Union of Healthcare Workers
(“NUHW?) submitted a written request to modify the existing bargaining unit it represents to
include an additional classification for Security Guards;

WHEREAS, upon receipt of a request to modify an existing and recognized unit of
employees, the Board, pursuant to California Government Code Section 3507.1 and Ordinance
2004-06, has the responsibility to determine whether the modification to include a new
classification of employees would result in an appropriate unit of employees;

WHEREAS, on February 26, 2026, the Board held a public hearing to review the
proposed modification to NUHW, and consider the relevant criteria set forth in Section 2 of
Ordinance 2004-06;

WHEREAS, the Board determined the proposed classification meets the criteria set forth
in Section 2 of Ordinance 2004-06;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code 3507.1(c), NUHW has requested recognition
to represent employees in certain specified classifications pending the results of a secret ballot
election;

WHEREAS, the District, pursuant to Government Code 3507.1(c) and Ordinance 2004-
06, has agreed to recognize NUHW representing certain recognition to represent employees in
certain specified classifications pending the results of a secret ballot election, which will be
overseen by State Mediation-Conciliation Service; and

4917-5864-8976, v. 1 Page 146



WHEREAS, this Resolution is exempt from review under the California Environmental
Quality Act (Public Resources Code section 21000 et seq.) (‘CEQA”) pursuant to 14 Cal. Code
of Regulations, section 15061(b)(3), because it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that modifying a bargaining unit may have a significant effect on the environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the San Benito
Health Care District Board of Directors as follows:

SECTION 1. The District Board of Directors hereby finds and determines that the
foregoing recitals are true and correct.

SECTION 2. The Board, based upon the request filed by NUHW, finds and determines
that NUHW is the appropriate bargaining unit for the following classification of Security Guards.

SECTION 3. The Board directs District Administration to take any and all actions,
including executing relevant documents, to carry out the intent of this Resolution in accordance
with Ordinance 2004-06.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of February, 2026 by the following vote:
AYES:

NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:

William Johnson, President

Attested:
Nick Gabriel, Secretary

4917-5864-8976, v. 1 Page 147



RESOLUTION NO. 2004-06
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
CREATING AN ORDINANCE PURSUANT TO
CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 3507

WHEREAS, the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, California Government Code Section 3500
and following, empowers the Hospital District to adopt reasonable rules and regulations
regarding administration of employer-employee relations; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors believes it is in the best interest of the Hospital
District to adopt such an ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND DECREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Ordinance attached hereto as Exhibit A is adopted as the official Ordinance
governing employer-employee relations pursuant to California Government Code
Section 3500 and following.

2. The appropriate officers of the District and the Chief Executive Officer are hereby
authorized and directed to take all steps necessary to carry out the full intent of this
Resolution.

This Resolution was adopted by the Board of Directors on June 24, 2004 by the following
votes:

AYES: McCullough, Ivey, VerVaecke, Scagliotti, Machado
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

ABSENT None
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
)
By ﬁ“[j' L}ﬂﬁ’{)& Mo
Secrefary, Board of Direciors
Resolution No 2004-06

Page 148



EXHIBIT A

ORDINANCE PURSUANT TO
CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 3507

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
ORDINANCE REGARDING
EMPLOYEE ELECTION OF LABOR ORGANIZATIONS

San Benito Health Care District is a hospital district organized and operated pursuant to
California Hospital District Law (California Health and Safety Code Section 32000 and
following). As a public agency, the hospital district is governed by the Meyers-Milias-
Brown Act (California Government Code Section 3500 and following).

California Government Code Section 3507 empowers the governing body of a public
agency to adopt reasonable rules and regulations.

This Ordinance is adopted by the Board of Directors of San Benito Health Care District
pursuant to Section 3507 of the California Government Code in order to recognize the
right of employees to determine whether or not they wish to be represented by an
employee organization.

It is within the Board of Directors’ jurisdiction to authorize and approve the holding of
any election regarding representation by an employee labor organization. Any election
so authorized and approved by the Board will be conducted by the State Mediation-
Conciliation Division of the Department of Industrial Relations.

REGULATIONS
1. SHOWING OF INTEREST. Prior to filing a Petition for Certification, the employee

organization must obtain a showing of interest in the form of authorization cards
signed by 30% of the employees in the desired unit who are eligible to vote.

2. APPROPRIATE UNIT. The Board of Directors will decide the extent of the
appropriate unit. The hospital has historically recognized two employee
organizations who represent approximately 40% of the employees in the hospital.
Any additional units must take into account the appropriateness of the unit in relation
to the organizational structure of the hospital, the possibility of proliferation of units,
the history of labor relations in the hospital, community of interest, as well as other
relevant factors as determined by the Board of Directors. In the event of a dispute in
the appropriateness of the bargaining unit, the matter, upon request of any party, will
be referred to the State Mediation-Conciliation Division of the State Industrial
Relations Department for recommendation to the Board of Directors for the Board’s
final decision.

Page 149



10.

11.

INTERVENING ORGANIZATION. If there are two employee organizations vying
for the same unit, the second organization may intervene within twenty (20) days of
the final determination of the appropriate unit. The second organization must make a
showing of interest of at least 10%.

VERIFICATION OF SHOWING OF INTEREST. Any showing of interest as
provided in these Regulations shall be submitted to the State Mediation-Conciliation
Service for verification.

EMPLOYEE LIST. Within seven days from the State Mediation-Conciliation
Service issuing a Notice and Direction of Election, the employer will provide to the
labor organization an alphabetical list of those employees’ names, addresses and
positions in the unit.

AGENCY DUTIES. The agency conducting the election will compare the employee
organization authorization cards against the employer’s payroll list to determine if the
cards are current and sufficient in number.

DATE OF ELECTION. An election will be held on a date when it is most likely that
the greatest number of eligible employees will be present.

TIME OF ELECTION. The election shall be held on the employer’s time. In a
multi-shift situation, the polls shall be kept open long enough to give each employee
sufficient opportunity to vote, or reopened later so that another shift may vote.
Employees not scheduled on the day of the election may vote on the employer’s time.

LOCATION. The location of the polling place shall be easily accessible and
convenient to the employees.

NOTICE. The agency conducting the election will issue a Notice of Direction of
Election. The employer must then prepare a list of eligible voters and their addresses,
and file it with the agency within seven days of the Notice of Direction of Election.
That list is made available to all parties prior to the election. The Notice will be
posted in several places to advise the employees of the election.

ELIGIBILITY. All employees in the unit found appropriate who were employed
during the payroll period immediately preceding the date of the Notice and Direction
of Election are eligible to vote. Probationary employees are eligible to vote if their
duties are substantially the same as those of regular employees and they have
reasonable expectation of regular employment. Laid off employees are eligible to
vote if they have a reasonable expectation of reemployment in the foreseeable future.
Employees on sick leave or leave of absence are eligible to vote if they are to be
automatically restored to their duties when ready to resume work. Employees who
have quit or been discharged for cause are ineligible to vote. Employees who have
given notice of their intention to quit are eligible to vote provided they are actually
working on the established eligibility date.

Page 150



12. OBSERVERS. Any party may be represented at the voting by observers of its own
selection. The number of observers allowed by each side depends on the number of
employees and will be determined by the agency conducting the election. The
purpose of the observers is to identify the voters, check the names on the eligibility
list, and watch the ballot box and the voting booth.

13. CHALLENGE. An employee’s ballot may be challenged by the observers for the
following reasons: the employee’s name is not on the eligibility list, the employee is
a supervisor, the employee is not within the designated unit, the employee was hired
after the eligibility date, or the employee was discharged or quit prior to the date of
the election, or the employee cannot be identified as the person he or she claims to be.
The challenge must be made before the employee votes, usually at the time the
employee approaches the observer’s table to give his or her name and obtain a ballot.
The representative of the State Mediation-Conciliation Service will make a decision
as to the challenged ballot based on the employee list, description of the unit, and
employee identification when the employee arrives to vote. If the challenge cannot
be resolved based on those criteria, the official shall allow the individual to vote and
the individual’s ballot shall be sealed and set aside. That ballot will not be opened
unless it becomes outcome determinative. The State Mediation-Conciliation Service
will hold a hearing and make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding
the unresolved challenged ballots.

14. NO CAMPAIGNING. There will be no campaigning, electioneering, or long
conversations around the ballot booth.

15. TALLY OF BALLOTS. After the election, the ballots will be tallied by the agent. If
the employee organization obtains a majority of the votes of employees voting, it will
be certified as the recognized employee organization of the employees in the unit. A
majority is defined as one or more greater than half. If the election results in a tie
vote, the unit remains non-union.

16. CHALLENGED BALLOTS. If the challenged ballots are sufficient to affect the
outcome of the election, they will be opened by the agent conducting the election. If
the challenges can be cured at that time, they will be either excluded or included in
the final count. If they cannot be cured, a hearing will be held.

17. OBJECTIONS. If a party to the election believes that the conduct of the election was
inappropriate or that the polling place was tainted, that party may file objections to
the conduct of the election within five days from the date of the election (excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays). Said objections will be filed with the State
Mediation-Conciliation Division of the Industrial Relations Department who will
make recommendations to the Board of Directors.

Resolution No 2004-06 EXHIBIT A

Page 151





